

# **GENESYS**<sup>®</sup>

This PDF is generated from authoritative online content, and is provided for convenience only. This PDF cannot be used for legal purposes. For authoritative understanding of what is and is not supported, always use the online content. To copy code samples, always use the online content.

# Genesys Knowledge Center User's Guide

Knowledge Center Current

1/2/2022

# Table of Contents

Genesys Knowledge Center Help	3
Knowledge Center Plugin for Workspace Desktop Edition	4
Using the Knowldge Tab	6
Before you begin	7
Getting started	10
Advanced features	20
Using the options menu (Interaction-less Knowledge)	31
Using the CMS	34
Overview of the CMS User Interface	37
Knowledge Dashboard	44
Managing Knowledge Bases	49
Templates	60
Entities	72
Working with Content	79
Working with Documents	85
Working with Categories	111
Working with Customer Feedback	126
Publishing	136
Screening Rules	143
Testing Screening Rules	145
Screening Rule Reference	148
Variables	156
Using Variables in Standard Responses	158
Field Codes	161
Overview	163
Field Code Examples	168
Field Codes Reference Information	171
Escape Codes and Sequences	172
Data Types	173
Operator Precedence	178
Named Constants	179
Functions	180
Objects	208

# Genesys Knowledge Center Help

#### Tip

The latest version of our documentation (titled "**Current**") relates to release **9.0.x**.

Welcome to the *Genesys Knowledge Center Help*. This document provides procedures and instructions for common tasks you need to perform when administering, authoring, and using the knowledge that Genesys Knowledge Center provides. See the summary of chapters below.

Agent Assisted Knowledge Working with Knowledge Center Plugin for Genesys Workspace Desktop Edition	Authoring Learn how to use Knowledge Center Content Management System (CMS)
Knowledge Center Plugin for Workspace Desktop Edition	Using the CMS to Work with Knowledge Bases

# Knowledge Center Plugin for Workspace Desktop Edition

The Knowledge Center Plugin for Workspace Desktop Edition allows you to browse or search corporate knowledge bases while handling a customer's interaction.

There two ways to access the knowledge:

- by selecting the Knowledge tab
- by selecting the options button

The way to share knowledge will depend on the particular media that you are using to communicate with your customer.

Below you'll find information regarding integrating Knowledge Center with Workspace Desktop Edition.

#### Important

To work with Knowledge Center plugin you must have Knowledge.Worker privileges.

#### Overview

The Knowledge Center Plugin for Workspace Desktop Edition enables you to perform a number of tasks. Use the following guide to help you get the most out of your Knowledge Base:

#### 1. Before you begin

- Select a Language
- Select a Knowledge Base
- Select a Channel

#### 2. Getting started

- View recent customer questions
- Search for Answers in a Knowledge Base
- View attachments
- Copy Found Answers to a Reply

- Suggest answers for missing questions in knowledge base
- Provide feedback on an answer

#### 3. Advanced features

- Statistics:
  - Review document data
- Browsing:
  - Browse the Knowledge Base using Categories
  - Browse a customer's search history
- Favorites:
  - Browse Favorites
  - Add and remove Favorites
  - Browse Favorites by category
- My Documents:
  - Browse My Documents
  - Pending status
  - Accepted status
  - Rejected status

#### 4. Interaction-less Knowledge

- Getting started
- Knowledge Window differences

# Using the Knowldge Tab

The Knowledge tab provides an easy way to share knowledge with your customer while working your interaction.

### Important

To work with Knowledge Center plugin you must have **Knowledge.Worker** privileges.

See the following sections for more information on using the Knowledge tab:

- Before you begin
- Getting started
- Advanced features

# Before you begin

# Terminology

First, let's deep-dive into the Knowledge functionality within Workspace by reviewing some of the major terminology used:

- **Knowledge base** The organized collection of your digital assets. It allows you to group documents related to the same area within one collection.
- **Category** This is the taxonomy for a document within a knowledge base. It provides a logical grouping of documents belonging to the same topic.
- **Document** An element of corporate knowledge. The document may contain multiple content fields and attributes. The structure of the document depends on the document type.
- **Document type** Knowledge supports the following document types:
  - **FAQ** A document that is structured in a question and answer format for frequently asked questions.
  - **Article** A document describing the topic mentioned in the title. Ordinarily, an article provides much more detail than a FAQ.
- Attachment A supplementary document that is provided with the main document.
- **Channel** The channel/media of the interaction in which are serving your customer with. Different channels provide different ways of collaboration between you and your customer.

Next, let's review some of the first steps you'll take in using the knowledge:

# Selecting a Language

1	•	Ask	Browse	History		(en y
	CONT	What Is	Genesys Kno	owledge Center	?	en fr
	ACT	All knov	vledge bases	✓ All Chan	nels 🗸	
		What I	ls Genesys	s Knowledg	e Center?	
		Knowle	dge FAQ / G	eneral	wheage center is to convert your knowleage into answers to the questions your clients or agents have, it delivers a set of components for administering, authoring, and	
	C	Relat	ed catego	ories		
	D-BROV	General				
	/SE	No rel	evant results		en 🗸	
					de en	
					<u>fr</u>	
L	KNO					

To select a language, click the language menu and choose your language from the list.

# Selecting a Knowledge Base

<b>^</b>	0	Ask	Browse	History	
(3) (3)	CONTACT	What Is	Genesys Kno vledge bases	wledge Center	? nels
d the	$\rightarrow$	Air Krass Genesys groupor Knowlee	dge FAQ / Ge	nowledge enesys Kno eneral	<b>e Center?</b> owledge Center is to convert your knowledge into answers to the questions your clients or age
	CO-BRO	Relat General	ed catego	ries	
	WSE	No rele	evant results		
	KNOW				

By default, the Knowledge Base is set to **All knowledge bases** allowing you to search through all live Knowledge Bases at the same time. Should you wish to search a single Knowledge Base however, clicking on the Knowledge Base menu allows you to choose a specific Knowledge Base from the list.

The plugin obtains a list of available Knowledge Bases on initialization (available starting **9.0.005.x**). If the list is changed during an agent's working session, some Knowledge Bases can become inactive or an active Knowledge Base can become disabled. The plugin displays a notification and the agent can view this notification to obtain the actual list: *Click thumbnail to expand* 



# Selecting a Channel

	0	Ask Browse History	
	CONT	Ask a question	
	ICT	Knowledge FAQ	
		Customer's Recent questions	
		search	
		What reporting data is available in the Pulse plugin?	
		Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?	
	Ş	abra	
	BRO	How do I import data into my knowledge base?	
	WSE	What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?	
	/	Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?	
		How should I ask questions?	
1		How should I ask questions?	
L.		Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?	
Ι			

By default, Channels are set to **All Channels** allowing you to search through all Channels at the same time. Should you wish to search a single Channel however (for example, documents relating to Chat only), clicking on the Channels menu allows you to choose a specific Channel from the list.

Now, let's get started!

# Getting started

# Viewing Recent Customer Questions



Use the following procedure to view any recent customer questions:

- 1. Go to the **Ask** tab.
- 2. If there is no question asked, the system shows a list of the most recent customer questions.
- 3. For detailed knowledge on the customer's usage history please see Browsing Customer Search History

# Searching for Answers in a Knowledge Base



Use the following procedure to search for answers in a Knowledge Base.

#### Prerequisites:

- The incoming interaction has been accepted.
- 1. Click the **Knowledge** tab.
- 2. Click the **Ask** tab.
- 3. Enter the search term and either click the **Search** button or press **Enter**.
- 4. Knowledge Center will provide the appropriate search results.

### Viewing Attachments

	₽-	
	0	Ask Browse History
L (2)	CONTAC	How do I import data into my knowledge base?
vion	-	← How do I import data into my knowledge base?
		● 2016-02-25 ● 11 ★ 4.00 Channels: any
		There are a number of ways to do this. If you have decided to use the Genesys Knowledge Center CMS there is an import action available for every knowledge knowledge directly into the Knowledge Center Server, you can use the Indexer tool that is shinned with the product (see the Indexer tonic in the Deployment G
		the APT represence).
		Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet.pdf
	CO-BR	Copy content ☆ Add to favorites
	OWSE	Was this helpful? - Yes / No

Use the following procedure to view any attachments that might have been added to the documents:

- 1. Click the question heading to expand the answer.
- 2. Click the appropriate attachment to open it in a new window.
- 3. To close the attachment, simply close the new window.

# Copying Answers



Use the following procedure to copy public content of answers into your interactions:

#### Prerequisites

- The incoming interaction has been accepted.
- 1. Click the **Knowledge** tab.

- 2. Click the **Ask** tab.
- 3. Enter the search term and either click the **Search** button or press **Enter**.
- 4. Click the question heading to expand the answer
- 5. Click the **Copy content** button.

# Suggesting an answer

0	Ask Browse History	en 🗸
CONTA	Genesys	×
E CT	Knowledge FAQ V Chat V	
	How can I assign Genesys Knowledge Center Plugins to my agents?	
/	To provide access to Genesys Knowledge Center functionality selectively to your agents, ensure that they have the Knowledge Worker role. Knowledge Center also supports other sets of privileges. For ex Roles	
0 <del>.</del>	What components are included in Genesys Knowledge Center? Knowledge Center is made up of several elements, all of which work together to convert knowledge into answers. It includes the following components: - Knowledge Center Server – the heart of Genesys K General	
BROWSE	Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant? Genesys Knowledge Center will be information source for virtual assistants. But it is not a virtual assistant itself. It can help an existing or 3rd Party virtual assistant find the best answer to a q General	
/	Related categories General Roles	
KNOWLED	No relevant results Compose an answer	
- <b>R</b>	Do you want to compose an answer for this question?	
	Yes No *Question	
	Type your question	
	* Answer	
	Type your answer	
	Categories	
	Administrator for Genesys Kno	
	Confirm Dancel	

Use the following procedure to suggest an answer to the Knowledge Base:

#### **Prerequisites**

• The incoming interaction has been accepted.

#### Important

Only an agent that is granted authoring rights (with **Knowledge.AUTHOR** privilege) will have access to this functionality

- 1. Go to the **Knowledge Center** tab.
- 2. Open the **Ask** tab.
- 3. Enter the search term and either click the **Search** button or press **Enter**.
- 4. Click **No relevant results** button.
- 5. Click **Yes** when asked "Do you want to compose the answer for the question?".
- 6. Compose the answer, set the appropriate categories, and submit the answer by clicking **Confirm**.
- 7. You can copy the new answer as a reply to the customer by clicking **Yes** when asked, "Do you want to send this answer to the customer?".
- 8. Once submitted, your suggested answer can be found under **My Documents** in the **Browse** tab at the top. From there you can view their current review status.

# Providing Feedback

<u>^</u>	0	Ask	Browse	History	
(2)	CONTACT	How H	low do l impor	t data into my kno	wledge base?
er?"	Ç	Home How ( Keepin and in record Was th	/ Search: Ho do I know t ing your accour response to s or other do nis helpful? –	How do l impo he information int information a specific requests cumentation. We Yes / No	ort data into my kn / How do I know the information you h n you have on file about me is accurate? accurate and up to date is very important. You have access to your account information through various means, such as s. If your account information is incomplete, inaccurate or not current, please call or write to us at the telephone number e will promptly update or correct any erroneous information. Please contact us if you have questions or feel that we have
	KNOWLEDGE		Cer	A ROU TO ROUT	Ask       Browse       History         How How do I import data into my knowledge base?         Home / Search: How How do I import data into my kn / How do I know the information you h         How do I know the information you have on file about me is accurate?         Keeping your account information accurate and up to date is very important. You have access to your account inform and in response to specific requests. If your account information is incomplete, inaccurate or not current, please call records or other documentation. We will promptly update or correct any erroneous information. Please contact us if y         ☆☆☆☆         Please, leave a comment         Submit       No mment.         If Copy content       ☆ Add to favorites

If the answer provided has been helpful, this is your chance to improve the knowledge base by providing feedback. Answering the question "Was this helpful" allows the system to better serve your future interactions by training the knowledge base to know which answers are the most suitable. Leaving a star-rating helps with overall reporting.

Use the following procedure to provide feedback on a document in the Knowledge Base from the **Ask** tab:

- 1. Answer Yes or No to the question, "Was this helpful?"
- 2. Give the current answer a star rating of your choice.
- 3. Type your feedback in the field provided and click **Submit**.

Use the following procedure to provide feedback on a document in the Knowledge Base from the

#### Browse tab:

- 1. Give the current answer a star rating of your choice.
- 2. Type your feedback in the field provided and click **Submit**.

## Search Result Filters

#### Important

This functionality is available as of the 9.0.001.xx release of the product.

You can use search result smart filtering to improve the precision of your search results. Also, while browsing, smart filtering allows you to type in contextual information that is related to your question and Knowledge Center will provide suggested filters that can be applied in the given context. Knowledge Center analyzes the categories that documents are assigned to, as well as the documents' attributes, tags, and channels to come-up with the most relevant suggested filters for you to choose from. How to use smart filtering when asking a question

Ask Browse History		
center		
Filters +	Ask Browse History	
	center	
Can I prevent Knowledge	- Ceiner	
Today, Knowledge Center trie	Knowledge Center FAQ V	
U.S.	Filters Enter a tag, category, channel or custom attribute	
	Genesys Knowledge Center Server Category Genesys Knowledge Center CMS	
	Can I p General Today k Ask Browse History	
	upcomi Feedb	
	Genesy: Conings that Conter	7
	How d Integration Knowledge Center FAQ V	
	Genesy: History Police Filters p	
	Can Lu Languages Genesys Knowledge Center Workspace Plugin Category	
	The Genery's Knowledge Center Pulse Plugin Category questions? modified	
	Pulse Pulyin Attribute vieldge base no matter what question Traday.	ns
	Genesys Knowledge Center Server	
	What Is Genesys Knowledge Center? modified	
	Genesys Knowledge Center allows you to make the best use of your enterprise knowledge by capturi	
		) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Ask Browse Histor	ry English	
center		×
Kanada dan Sana Storija		
		$\frown$
Filters Plugin Pulse ×	Genesys Knowledge Center Pulse Plugin × +	Clear All
٢		
What reporting data is av	vailable in the Pulse plugin? modified	rill down
capabilities	o monitor the performance of Genesy's knowledge Genter and your knowledge bases. It provides a visual representation of your summary data and basic of	in down
Genesys Knowledge Center P	'ulse Plugin	- 1
Related categories		- I.
Genesys Knowledge Center Pu	ulse Plugin	- I.
		- II.
No relevant results		

Under the **Ask** tab, you'll find the **Filters +** area immediately below the "Ask a question" field. To add a smart filter:

- 1. click on the + button.
- 2. When you click in the filter area you will be immediately provided with some suggested filters.

- 3. As you begin typing in this field, Knowledge Center refines the list of suggested filters to reflect the context you are searching.
- 4. Knowledge Center suggests smart filters based on the:
  - categories used
  - document attributes
  - document tags
  - channels that knowledge can be used across
- 5. Click on one of the suggested filters to add it. This will refine the results on your ask query.
- 6. To remove a smart filter, click on the **X** next to the filter name.
- 7. To remove all applied filters, click on **Clear all** at the end of the Filters line.

#### How to use smart filtering when browsing the knowledge



Under the **Browse** tab, you'll find the **Filters +** area immediately below the knowledge base selection.

To add a smart filter you need to:

- 1. Click on the + button.
- 2. When you click in the filter area you will be immediately provided with some suggested filters.
- 3. As you begin typing in this field, Knowledge Center refines the list of suggested filters to reflect the context you are searching.
- 4. Knowledge Center suggests smart filter based on the:
  - categories used
  - document attributes
  - document tags
  - channels that knowledge can be used across
- 5. Click on one of the suggested filters to add it. This will refine the results on your browse query.
- 6. To remove a smart filter, click on the **X** next to the filter name.
- 7. To remove all applied filters, click on **Clear all** at the end of the Filters line.

Next, let's check out some of the Knowledge tab's advanced features!

# Advanced features

### Reviewing document data

Ask Browse			English
← What is Genesy 2018-07-23	s Knowledge Cente	er? ess than a minute Ch	nannels: any
Release 8.5.	eage Center Inclu	des Knowledge Cer	nter Server and Knowledge Center Content Management System (CMS).
Genesys Knowledge is needed.	Center allows you to	make the best use of	your enterprise knowledge by capturing, storing, and distributing it wherever it
Agents only con 8.5.304.09), Google 8.5.304.09), Micros	tent: Supported Brov Chrome (Google Ch oft IE (Version 11).	vsers: Apple Safari (Ve rome version 59 was 1	ersion 10), Firefox ESR (Mozilla Firefox release 54 was tested with version tested with version 8.5.304.09), Microsoft Edge(Starting with version
			Read only content and cannot be copy or paste
$\square$ Send document	Copy content	☆ Add to favorites	
$ \diamondsuit \ \diamond \$			
Please, leave a comm	ient	1	
-			

If you are curious to know:

- how current the document appears
- how many views a document has had
- how long it takes to read the document
- the word count of the document
- the average document rating
- the suggested channels that document can be used for

then simply look to the icons below the question heading  $\widehat{\mathfrak{D}}$  for all that useful information.

**Note:** Your document can contain both public and private content (private means only available for agents). The private content <sup>(2)</sup> is highlighted with a background color and denoted by a lock-icon with title, and a pop-up tooltip.

# Browsing the Knowledge Base using Categories

😂 Genesys • Workspace			
🛞 🚺 11 \ominus 00:00:10 🗠 💾 🊰 🖉 🔩 🖴		<u>*</u> •	
Case Information	0	Ask Browse History	
Origin: Outbound email	Z		
✓ 11	OWL	All documents V All knowledge bases V Email	
From: mcr@aks-dep-stbl.emea.int.genesvslab.com	ĐG		
To test@g.com; Add Cc ▾	m	👂 📳 Demo: GBank	
Subject:	1	Knowledge Center FAQ	
		🔺 🖿 General (7)	
Text 🔻 📮 🐥 English (United S 👻		Configuration (5)	· · · · ·
		Archiving (1)	
	8	Feedback (6)	<b>\</b>
	INI	History (3)	- 1
	CT	Sizing (2)	
		Solutions	
		Administrator for Genesys Knowledge Center (4)	
		Server	
		Genesys Knowledge Center Ciris (14)	
Dispositions Note		Integration (3)	
	-		
	RESP		
	NO		
	S		

Use the following procedure to browse the Knowledge Base using Categories:

- 1. From the Browse tab, click a category name from the tree of categories. Clicking the category name opens all documents relating to that category. The number near the category name indicates the number of documents in that category.
- 2. To view any child categories click the light triangle by the folder icon, next to the category name to expand it (clicking on the dark triangle closes the child categories).

#### Important

For information on copying answers, please see Copying Answers.

# Browsing Customer Search History

Current Session	/ ALL	~)							
Date 🔺	Туре	Knowledge base ID	Language	Query					
6 days ago	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?					
6 days ag <u>o</u>	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	Can I use Genesys	Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?				
6 days ago	Ask Brow	History	)						
6 days ago	All Linters		5 —						
6 days ago 🖌		✓ ALL	Last 24 h	Last 7 days Last 30	deye Âil				
6 days age	Date 🔺	Туре	Knowledge base	ID Language	Query				
6 days a	6 days ago	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?				
6 days	6 days ago	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?				
6 days	6 days ago	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?				
Details	6 days ago	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	How should I ask questions?				
Det unit	6 days ago	OPEN	knowledgefaq	en					
	6 days ago	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	How should I ask questions?				
Ę	6 days ago	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?				
Fi -	6 days ago	SEARCH	knowledgefaq	en	What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?				
	6 days ago	OPEN	knowledgefaq	en					
	Current Session Date - 6 days ago 6 days ago 7 6 days ago 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	Current Session V ALL           Date         Type           6 days ago         SEARCH           6 days ago         SEARCH           6 days ago         Ask         Brow           6 days ago         All History         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago           6 days ago         6 days ago         6 days ago	Date     Type     Knowledge base ID       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq       6 days ago     Ask     Browse     History       6 days ago     SEARCH     6 days ago     SEARCH       6 days ago     SEARCH     6 days ago </td <td>Date     Type     Knowledge base ID     Language       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     Ask     Browse     History       6 days ago     Ask     Browse     History       6 days ago     Ask     Browse     History       6 days ago     Gays ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq       6 days ago     SEARCH<td>Date     Type     Knowledge base ID     Language     Query       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     What Is Genesys H       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     Can I use Genesys       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     Can I use Genesys       6 days ago     Ask     Browne     History     ALL     Last 7 days       6 days ago     Ask     Browne     History     ALL     Last 7 days     Last 20       6 days ago     G days ago     SEARCH     knowledge base ID     Language       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq</td></td>	Date     Type     Knowledge base ID     Language       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     Ask     Browse     History       6 days ago     Ask     Browse     History       6 days ago     Ask     Browse     History       6 days ago     Gays ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq       6 days ago     SEARCH <td>Date     Type     Knowledge base ID     Language     Query       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     What Is Genesys H       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     Can I use Genesys       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     Can I use Genesys       6 days ago     Ask     Browne     History     ALL     Last 7 days       6 days ago     Ask     Browne     History     ALL     Last 7 days     Last 20       6 days ago     G days ago     SEARCH     knowledge base ID     Language       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq</td>	Date     Type     Knowledge base ID     Language     Query       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     What Is Genesys H       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     Can I use Genesys       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en     Can I use Genesys       6 days ago     Ask     Browne     History     ALL     Last 7 days       6 days ago     Ask     Browne     History     ALL     Last 7 days     Last 20       6 days ago     G days ago     SEARCH     knowledge base ID     Language       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq     en       6 days ago     SEARCH     knowledgefaq				

Use the following procedure to review the customer search history:

#### **Prerequisites:**

- The incoming interaction has been accepted.
- 1. Go to the **Knowledge Center** tab.
- 2. Open the **History** tab.
- 3. Browse either the customer's search history from the current session or the customer's entire search history (by choosing either **Current Session** or **All History** in the drop-down).
- 4. Filter the history events by type:

ALL - shows all events (you can define a date range here, if needed)
 SEARCH - shows the customer's search queries
 NO ANSWER - shows queries when the customer indicated that there was no answer found
 OPEN - shows documents that customer opened to view
 FEEDBACK - shows the customer's likes & dislikes

#### Important

When you select any line in the history table, the **Details** view is refreshed to show all

information on the selected event.

# Browsing Favorites



The ability to save documents as **Favorites** makes it easy for you to quickly access information that you use frequently. Once you add a Favorite, you can perform a number of actions from the **Favorites** option, found under the **Browse** tab such as:

- remove documents from favorites
- browse favorite documents by category
- copy document content to your interaction
- see how many times the document has been viewed
- see the date of the last modification to the document

# Adding and removing Favorites

4 🐋 😬 鞜 🌘	2 🔀	8	2-		
-	0	Ask	Browse	History	y
	KNO		reading each art	tiele	
	NLED	Spend		nowledg	a Center know how much time a percen epende reading each artic
a.int.genesyslab.com Add Cc 👻	Ê	₩ 201	8-10-04 <b>@</b> 0	間 85+ \	words
No. Genesys Knowledge Center focuses on feedback that users provide about each document and on this information is much more valuable than measuring their reading speed. However, if you are intere dislikes a document if they have spent less then 5 seconds on its page) you can refer to the Knowledg integrate Genesys Knowledge Center and Genesys Web Engagement.					er focuses on feedback that users provide about each document and on e valuable than measuring their reading speed. However, if you are intere ave spent less then 5 seconds on its page) you can refer to the Knowledg e Center and Genesys Web Engagement.
					o favorites
				• ④	Ask Browse History
		I-		KNOW	spend reading each article
		enes	yslab.com Add Cc	/LEDGE	← Does Genesys Knowledge Center know how much time a person spends reading each article     2018-10-04    ● 0
			B i <sub>↓</sub> <sub>↓</sub>		No. Genesys Knowledge Center focuses on feedback that users provide about each document and on this information is much more valuable than measuring their reading speed. However, if you are intere dislikes a document if they have spent less then 5 seconds on its page) you can refer to the Knowledg integrate Genesys Knowledge Center and Genesys Web Engagement.
		1		0	Copy content
				ONTACT	Was this helpful? – Yes / No

Adding and removing favorites is easy! With the click of a button, you have complete control over what documents are important to you.

To add content to your favorites, click **Add to favorites** within any document and it is automatically added to your **Favorites** found under the **Browse** tab for you to access at any time.

To remove a document from your favorites, click the **Browse** tab to navigate to your **Favorites** then click the question heading to expand the answer. From there you simply click **Remove from favorites** and the document is removed from your **Favorites**.

# Browsing Favorites by category

	Ask Browse History	
	Favorites V All knowledge bases V	
	Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as Genesys Knowledge Center will be semantial of Knowledge FAQ / General What components are included in Genesy Knowledge Center is made up of several element Knowledge FAQ / General	a virtual assistant? purce for virtual assistants. But it is not a virtual assistant itself. It can help an existing or 3rd Party virtual assistant find the vs Knowledge Center? s all of which work together to convert knowledge into answers. It includes the following components: - Knowledge Center ( Ask Browse History
CO-BROWSE	How can I assign Genesis Knowledg To provide access to Genesys Knowledge Knowledge FAQ / Roles	Favorites V All knowledge bases V General X
		Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant? Genesys Knowledge Center will be information source for virtual assistants. But it is not a virtual assistant itself. It can he Knowledge FAQ / General
	60 <sup>-</sup>	What components are included in Genesys Knowledge Center? Knowledge Center is made up of several elements, all of which work together to convert knowledge into answers. It incluc Knowledge FAQ / General
	ROW	

If your administrator has defined categories, you can use these to quickly jump to the right answer at the right time. Clicking on any of the categories helps narrow your search by only showing those documents that apply.

# Browsing My Documents

	0	
- 1	ľ I	As Browse Hetory
	PONIT	My documents V Knowledge FAQ V
2	-	All documents Favorites My documents
		how many shards do I need to have per knowledge base?
		It depends on the size of the data planned to be stored in knowledge base. The general recommendation is to divide planned size of your data in one language version (in
		Sizing
		how many replicas to I need per knowledge base?
	1	Replica is the way for us to have extra copies of the knowledge within the cluster. By default we are creating one replica for every knowledge base. Extra replicas can hele
		Sizing , Genesys Knowledge Center Server
<u> </u>	Ś	
	Ď	
No.	We	
-		

The **My documents** option under the **Browse** tab gives you the ability to browse all the documents you authored in the Knowledge Base and verify their current status. From **My Documents** you can view all of the documents you wrote and for which you submitted a draft. The list will be sorted by creation date and will include drafts that are:

- Pending
- Accepted
- Rejected

The default view in **My Documents** is **Pending** however clicking on the status menu allows you to choose from the list of statuses.

#### Important

Only an agent that is granted authoring rights (with **Knowledge.AUTHOR** privilege) will have access to this functionality

# Pending status

	Ask Browse History
	My documents 🗸 Knowledge FAQ 🗸
9	Pending V
1	Accepted Knowledge Center Server can I allocate per one physical server?
	Rejected lended to have one Knowledge Center Server per physical server. That will ensure that in case of hardware
	Sizing, Genesys Knowledge Center Server
	Can I change the number of shards in knowledge base?
J.	the number of shards can be defined before indexing any data into knowledge base. If you would like to change numbe
6	Sizing, Genesys Knowledge Center Server
O-BR	What is the shard and replica within knowledge base?
Ŵ	Shard is the bucket of data. When you specify the number of shards for the knowledge base – it means that you instru
SE	Sizing, Genesys Knowledge Center Server

When you click **My Documents**, you're immediate view is of all your documents that are waiting for approval from your Knowledge Base Administrator. This is the default view.

From this view you can:

- browse documents by category (if your Administrator has defined Categories)
- copy document content for use in your interaction

### Accepted status



From the status menu, choose **Accepted** to see all the documents you've authored in the Knowledge Base that are approved by your Knowledge Base Administrator.

When viewing the Accepted status, you can also:

- · browse documents by category (if your Administrator has defined Categories)
- add documents to your Favorites tab
- remove documents from your Favorites tab
- copy document content for use in your interaction
- · view and hide your original document submission

# Rejected status

P	Ask Browse History
	My documents 🗸 Knowledge FAQ 🗸
CI	Rejected
(	Accepted shards defineed to have per knowledge base?
	Reperted where size of the data planned to be stored in knowledge base. The general recommendation is to divide planned size of your data in one langua
	Sizing
	how many replicas to I need per knowledge base?
	Replica is the way for us to have extra copies of the knowledge within the cluster. By default we are creating one replica for every knowledge base. Extra rep
	Sizing, Genesys Knowledge Center Server
CO-BROW	
SE	

From the status menu, choose **Rejected** to see all the documents you've authored in the Knowledge Base that are not approved by your Knowledge Base Administrator.

When viewing the Rejected status, you can also:

• browse documents by category (if your Administrator has defined Categories)

# Proactive Knowledge in Chat

Workspace				⊙ gks_super → 💇 → 🛛 → 📃 🗖	
) 🛛 Han Solo 🖵 00:39:50 🕵 🛼 - 🏹 -	ت 🖉			:	
se Information	<u>^</u> ()	Ask	Browse	English	
rigin: Inbound chat	<u>S</u>				
✓ Han Solo ○ Connected	OWLED	Ask a	question	×	
Center Genesys	OGE	← Ca	8-04-25 <b>©</b>	access to the knowledge base to my agents only? 2 IIII 47+ words ● less than a minute Channels: any	
Han Solo 18:01: What is Knowledge Center?	:50	Yes, a knowledge base can be declared as private, in which case it will be accessible to agents only. Information on how to declare a knowledge base as private can be found			
Han Solo 18:04 I need to restrict access to my knowledge base	21 ≡	in the Knowledge Center Plugin for Administrator section of the Genesys Knowledge Center User's Guide.			
Han Solo 18:06 To make only agents with predefined skills use knowledge bases		偮 Co	opy content	☆ Add to favorites	
	TACT	Was th	his helpful? –	- Yes / No	
	Send				
😂 (13) 🙂 🖉 🕼	34				
Knowledge found	d for I need to restric	ct access to	my knowledge	e base query	
Dispositions Note Can I restrict	access to the knowle	edge base t	o my agents or	nly?	
Knowledge found for What is Knowledge Center? query					
What Is Gene	sys Knowledge Cente	er?			
Do the Knowl	edge Center CMS and	d the Knowl	ledge Center S	erver use the same data?	
Can I prevent	Knowledge Center fr	om answer	ing certain que	estions?	
Knowledge found	d for <i>Genesys</i> query				
What Is Gene	sys Knowledge Centr	er?			
Can I use Ger	iesys Knowledge Cer	nter as a vir	tual assistant?	2	
How does my	feedback heln Gene	eve Knowle	dae Center?		

While working with a chat interaction, Knowledge Center proactively looks up relevant knowledge for the customer queries asked. When there are relevant knowledge documents found, you will see the

knowledge icon in the chat message area ( $^{\textcircled{(13)}}$ ). When you click on the Icon you will see a drop-down list with:

- The last 3 customer queries
- Under each query, you will see (up to) the top 3 relevant knowledge documents
- The number next to the knowledge icon indicates the total number of relevant documents for all customer queries shown

If you click on:

• A customer query from the list — the Knowledge tab is displayed with the pre-searched results for this query. You can use one of the suggested document or refine the query to find a more precise result.

• A suggested document under the customer's query — the Knowledge tab is displayed with the selected document opened. You can use the content of this document to serve the customer interaction.

For more information on using Proactive Knowledge, please see the following video:

# [+] Genesys Knowledge Center: Using Proactive Knowledge Suggestions

Link to video

# Using the options menu (Interaction-less Knowledge)

### Important

To work with Knowledge Center plugin you must have **Knowledge.Worker** privileges.

# Knowledge window differences in the case of no interaction

Knowledge			
Ask Browse			
$\mathbf{x}$	1		
Ask a question	$\mathbf{C}$		
All knowledge bases 🗸			
Trending documer	its		
Can I restrict access to the knowled	ge base to my agents only?		
What components are included in G	enesys Knowledge Center?		
What is Genesys Knowledge Center	?	1	
How do I configure two Knowledge	Servers into a cluster?		
What is the difference between the	Knowledge		
Can I use my own CMS system ins	Ask Browse		
Why do I need to configure two co		6	
How do I import data into my know		(2)	
How do I create a new knowledge	← Can I restrict access to the knowledg	dge base to my agents only?	
What are alternative questions?	© 2018-01-12 © 8 Channels: any		
	for Administrator section of the Genesys Kn	private, in which case it will be accessible to agents only. Information on now to declare a knowledge base as priva Knowledge Center User's Guide.	
	☆ Add to favorites	Knowledge	
	Was this helpful? – Yes / No	Knowledge	
		Ast Browse	
		Ail documents V Ail knowledge bases V Ail channels V	
		Image: Market Mark	
		Administrator for Genesys Knowledge Center (4)	
		Configuration (5)	
		Feedback (6)	
		General (8)	
		Genesys Knowledge Center CMS (15)	- L
		Genesys Knowledge Center Pulse Plugin (1)	- 1
		Genesys Knowledge Center Workspace Plugin (2)	
		Genesys Web Engagement (2)	
		History (3)	
		Integration (3)	
		Earguages (2)	
		Sizing (2)	

It should be noted that the Knowledge window differs slightly when there is no interaction:

#### 1. Ask tab

On the **Ask** tab, a list of top 10 **Trending documents** is displayed instead of the customer's recent questions.

#### 2. Viewing the document

The **Copy content** and **Send document** buttons are unavailable as there is no active interaction.

#### 3. Browse tab

The **Channels** selector is set to **All Channels** by default.

#### - History tab

The **History** tab is unavailable in interaction-less Knowledge.

# Interaction-less Knowledge

ල් Workspace		📀 John Smiith 👻 ድ 🖌 😧 👻 🗕 🗖 🗙
Type name or number <b>Q</b>		
My Workspace		My Channels My History
My Channels My Histo	ry	Contact Directory
Arch. All 1M 1W 1D Filter	Quick search	A My Workbins     My Team Workbins     My Interaction Queues
Status Subject	Start Date 👻 End Date	My Messages
🔨 In Progress	18.01.2018 13:17:29	Knowledge
K Market In Progress	18.01.2018 12:30:31	
🔻 🌄 🛛 In Progress	10.01.2010 12.22.41	
K Min Progress	18.01.2018 12:18:40	
K Market In Progress	18.01.2018 12:01:24	
K Min Progress	18.01.2018 11:47:30	
◀ ◀ Page 1 of 1+ ►		1 - 10 of 10+ 10 🔻 per page
Details Note Ca	ise Data	
	Select an interaction to view details.	

Interaction-less Knowledge allows agents to access the Knowledge Center plugin functionality without an active interaction in Workspace Desktop. To get started, simply click **Knowledge** from the options menu ( $\equiv$ ).

# Using the CMS

### Overview

Genesys Knowledge Center CMS is an easy and intuitive application that allows your knowledge authors to collaborate to create valuable digital assets used within your company. The CMS provides a user interface that your editorial team and managers use to create, manage, and deliver content to your employees, customers, and IT systems.

The user interface is secure, role-based and customizable, allowing your development team to cater the editorial experience to the exact needs of end users. The CMS also provides you access to the various types the information collected while knowledge being used, such as:

- Likes and dislikes for the results searched
- Document content quality ratings
- Questions there is no relevant knowledge for
- Most used, recent questions, and so on

All of this feedback is valuable to the author for content quality improvement.

#### Basics

Before we start to deep-dive into the CMS functionality, let's go through the key principles of content organization within the CMS.

#### Knowledge base

A knowledge base is the organized collections of your digital assets. It is the top level of the organization within the CMS that allows you to keep documents related to different areas aside from each other. Also, it allows you to define the key principles of the organization within its boundaries. For example:

- Languages supported by the knowledge base
- Types of the documents
- Access rights
- Publication schedules
- Category taxonomy

#### Category

Taxonomy element helping you to define the topics hierarchy within your knowledge base and group documents to those topics.

#### Document

An atomic element of the knowledge. The document captures a bit of corporate information as well as the history of its evolution. The document might have multiple language versions within languages allowed in the knowledge base.

#### Language

The CMS allows you to keep different translations of the same document together by creating language versions of the document. On top of support of distinct different languages (for example, English, French, German), the CMS also allows regional languages that help you to adopt documents to particular regions using the same language, but different dialects (for example, French - Canadian and French - France),

# Who is the CMS intended for?

There are several types of roles the CMS is intended for:

- Knowledge Administrator technical personnel responsible for maintaining your knowledge solution
- Knowledge Author your editorial team that creates and maintains valuable knowledge within your organization
- Knowledge Managers supervisors of the editorial team who validates the authored knowledge and approves it for company-wide usage

### How to create and use your first document?

To start with your knowledge you need:

- As the Knowledge Administrator:
- 1. Create a new knowledge base,
- 2. Make it active and public
- 3. Define the synchronization schedule that allows automatic knowledge publication
- As the Knowledge Author:
- 1. Create a new category/topic
- 2. Create a new document

- 3. Submit both newly created category and document for review
- As the Knowledge Manager:
- 1. Approve submitted category
- 2. Approve submitted document

Having this step completed, newly created document will be published automatically (according to the defined schedule) and be available for your customers, agents, and automated systems:

- Agents can use Knowledge Center Plugin for Workspace Desktop Edition Help to browse or search through the knowledge and apply it to customer's interactions.
- Customer can interact with the knowledge in Genesys Widgets and Sample UI.
- Automated systems, such as routers, conversation bots, can use knowledge to serve the customer without the involvement of the agent (for example, Chat Deflection within Genesys Widgets).
# Overview of the CMS User Interface

This chapter describes general principles of the CMS UI organization as well as such general functions as login/logout, getting help, navigating between different views, and so on.

## Login into the CMS

When you enter the CMS URL in your browser, the first page you will see is the login screen:



Enter your login and password in the dedicated boxes and hit the **Log In** button.

**Note:** To login to the CMS you need to have at least one of the knowledge privileges assigned (author, approver and/or administrator).

### Inside the CMS

#### Dashboard

Once you've logged in to the CMS the Knowledge Dashboard displays the summary of the knowledge authored in the CMS.

ly knowledge base	<ul> <li>         —          —          —</li></ul>	Derro Glavi, Digitali, 1 front ago
	that happens it my notice device become out of a training Can i link my liftenik and Mintill Lynch online accounts?	Denne Othank, Angelach, 1 hour ago Denne Othank, Angelach, 1 hour ago
	Move an employees worked is a x00.00 ptac? How do I access my account?	theme offstell, chighter, it must app theme offstell, chighter, it must app

#### Page Elements

ල් Genesys Knowledge Center CMS Knowledge

Let's review some of the major navigation elements available on the page.

Tip Click any of the images below to enlarge them

The top-most line is the main menu line providing you access to the functional areas of the product:

This main menu includes the following elements:



**Product name:** clicking this area will always bring you back to the Knowledge Dashboard.





Clicking on the elements of the Knowledge base menu or Administration menu will lead you to the working area of the product (for example, document authoring):

	-	🖌 🗄 🛔 Anton Append -					Publish
•	0	Gasties	 Type	Al Datases 🔍 🗸	ø	0	multipl
		Carl Luse Denetys Rhowledge Denter as a virtual assistant?	FNQ		v	~	3 hours age
		How can I set access central far my administrators and managers?	FAD		~	~	1 hours age
0		How can Landhine older knowledge base articles?	FNQ	-0	~	×	3 hours age
0		How can I add exerch capability to a contorn agent dealktop?	FAID		~	~	3 hours age
		Can Lide Search Engine Optimization for articles smatted in the Generge Knowledge Center CME?	FNQ	-0	v	~	3 hours age
		Can I have my CMS store-content in a database or other data atom?	FND		*	~	3 hours age
		Is apen feedback treated differently from customer feedback?	ring	-0	~	×	3 hours age
		Can I prevent Knowledge Center from answering certain questions?	FAID		~	~	3 hours age
		Why do I need the Workspace plugist	ring	-0	~	×	3 hours age
		Why aren't any neurita returned from my quary?	FAID		~	~	3 hours age
		How does my feedback help Senesys Khowialige Center?	ring	-0	~	×	3 hours age
		Do the Knowledge Center DMS and the Knowledge Center Server use the same data?	FAID		~	~	3 hours age
		How long is information stored in the historical database?	ring	-0	~	×	3 hours age
		What reporting data is available in the Pulse plagin?	FAID		~	~	3 hours age
		Why do I need the Cenergy Kitchelege Center CMI2	FNQ	•	~	0	3 hours age

On the left side, there is a sidebar menu that helps you navigate within the authoring area. While an in-depth review of each element is covered in the authoring manual, let's go though the general principles:

The top line of the sidebar is dedicated to the visual indication of the area that you are in:

- If you see a graduation hat icon and the knowledge base name, you are in the authoring area
- If you see the gears icon, you are in the administration area

At the very bottom of the sidebar, there is an element that allows you to expand or collapse the sidebar. Collapsing the sidebar leaves more space for the main area:

Create		🔹 🗡 🗄 📋 Review Approve +					Publish
	0	Question 0	Туре	All Statuses 🗸 🗸	0	0	Modified
	*	How to create new knowledge base?	FAQ	•	~	0	6 hours ago
		What is a knowledge base?	FAQ	•	~	~	6 hours ago
		Why do I need the Generays Knowledge Denter CMS?	FAQ	•	~	~	6 hours ago
		Does Genesys Knowledge Center know how much time a person spends reading each article?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		Can I configure my knowledge article approval workflow and lifecycle?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		How can I archive older knowledge base articles?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		How can I set access control for my administrators and managers?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		How can I assign Genesys Knowledge Center Plugins to my agents?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		Should I let Genesys Knowledge Center Server know how many answers a user viewed?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		Can I have my CMS store content in a database or other data store?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		Can I do Search Engine Optimization for articles created in the Genesys Knowledge Center CMS?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago
		How can I add search capability to a custom agent desktop?	FAQ	-0	~	~	14 hours ago

The main area is the one where all the work happens. There are two main types of the main area views:

- Table view (as shown above) displays multiple elements (documents, categories, knowledge bases, and so on) with some summary information.
- Element view displays a particular element.

Within table view you have:

- The knowledge base name (if the sidebar is collapsed)
- Sub-area name (for example, Documents, Categories, Knowledge Bases)
- Toolbar with action buttons
- Table view itself
- Table view navigation:
  - Number of elements per table page:

	100		Sea
	50		l ac
	15		
1 <u>-</u> 15 of 52	15	~	р

• Navigation between pages:

~~	¢	Page	1	of 4	>	>>	
----	---	------	---	------	---	----	--

# Knowledge Dashboard

### Overview

Knowledge Dashboard provides you with valuable information on your content. It allows you to see the total number of documents, their distribution within the knowledge bases, and languages. It also shows the most recent changes in the documents.

#### Tip

Click any of the images on this page to enlarge



## Knowledge Analytics

The left column of the dashboard contains analytical diagrams showing the distribution of the knowledge content by knowledge bases and languages.

#### By knowledge base

This interactive sunburst diagram allows you to see:

• A total number of unique documents in knowledge bases



 The inner cycle of the diagram shows distribution of those documents between the different knowledge bases. A sector is assigned to every knowledge base, representing a percentage of the documents that belong to each knowledge base. If you hover your cursor over a sector, you see the name of the knowledge base and the number of documents in it:



• The outer cycle of the diagram shows the average percentage of the translated documents within the knowledge base. A percentage is shown relative to the number of documents within a particular

knowledge base (not in the relation of the total number of the documents within all knowledge bases). For example, say you have 100 unique documents in English and the knowledge base also has French and German languages available, with 50 and 70 documents translated. The Inner cycle will show 100 as the number of documents in the knowledge base. Outer cycle will show 60% as the average translation percentage (50 + 70 / 2).



#### By language

Below **By knowledge base** you will find **By language** distribution. This diagram shows the number of documents you have in every language and its regional sub-languages (if they are defined for a language). **Note:** Total number of documents is higher compared to "By knowledge base" as every language version of the same document is counted toward its language.

For example, in the example above you, have 100 English, 50 French, and 70 German documents. Whereas on "By knowledge base" the total number of documents will be 100 as it shows only unique documents.



# Recent changes

The right column of the dashboard contains the recent changes in the knowledge content:

• recently modified - last 10 edited documents

Recently modified	
Has my order been shipped?	WebShop Online Heip, English, 28 seconds ago by gitz, one
Can I cancel my order?	WebShop Gnline Heip, English, 54 seconds ago by plic, one
How can I set access control for my administrators and managers?	Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 1 minute ago by plic, one
Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?	Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 7 minute ago by plic, one
Can I configure my knowledge article approval workflow and lifecycle?	Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 1 minute ago by plic_oms
How can I archive older knowledge base articles?	Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 1 minute ago by plic, cms
Does Generys Knowledge Center know how much time a person spends reading each article?	Knowledge Genter FAQ, English, 2 minutes ago by plic, one
What is a banking center?	Demo: GBank, English, 2 minutes ago by pluc, one
Where do I find information about community reinvestment activities?	Deme: Obanik, English, 2 minutes ago by pluc, one
Where do I find a list of media contacts?	Demo: OBanit, English, 2 minutes ago by pluc, one

• recently rejected - last 5 rejected documents

Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 1 minute ago by pkc, one
Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 1 minute ago by glic_cma
Deme: OBank, English, 2 minutes ago by glic_ome
Demo: Othank, English, 2 minutes ago by glic_ome

• recently approved - last 5 approved documents

Recently approved	-•
How can I set access control for my administrators and managers?	Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 1 minute ago by glo_oma
Can I use Generys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?	Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 1 minute ago by gisc_oma
What is a banking center?	Demo: Otlank, English, 2 minutes ago by pic_ome
How can I assign Generate Knowledge Center Plugins to my agents?	Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 1 day ago by default
Should I let Genesys Knowledge Center Server know how many answers a user viewed?	Knowledge Center FAQ English, I day ago by default

• recently submitted for review - last 5 documents submitted for manager's review

Recently submitted for review	-0
Can I cancel my order?	WebShop Cisline Heip, English, 30 seconds ago by pic_cms
Has my order been shipped?	WebShop Online Help, English, 2 minutes ago by pic, one
Does Genesys Knowledge Center know how much time a person spends reading each article?	Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 4 minutes ago by gkc, one
What type of information do you collect from me?	Demo: Obank, English, 4 minutes ago by pkc.cms
Co you sell spare parts?	WebShop Online Help, English, 22 hours ago by gluc, one

Every document shown in recent changes has:

- 1. Document title that you can click to open the document
- 2. Knowledge base that it belongs to
- 3. Language of the document
- 4. When it was changed
- 5. Login of the agent that changed the document

Does Genesys Knowledge Center know how much time a person spends reading each article?

Knowledge Center FAQ, English, 4 minutes ago by gkc\_cms 2 3 4 5

# Managing Knowledge Bases

### Overview

The administration area allows you to set up knowledge bases according to your company needs. To open the administrator area click the gear icon in the main menu and then select **Knowledge Bases** from the drop down menu.

* -	e
Administration	
Knowledge bases	
Templates	
Kestore Purge	all

#### Important

To access the functionality you need to be assigned CMS Administrator privilege -Knowledge.CMS.Administrator (for more details, please see Access Permissions).

## Creating a New Knowledge Base

To create a knowledge base in the administration area:

1. press the **Create** button:

ල් Genesys Knowledge Cente	r CMS Know	edge ba	el •			۵	<b>- 0 -</b> gka	a_ams gka
Administration	Knov	vled	je bases					
Knowledge bases	Crea	te	/ 8		Backup	Restore	Purge all 👻	0
Templates		0	Display Name Ø	Active	Public	External	Modified	0
			WebShop Online Help	0			2 seconds age	0
			Demo: GBank	0	~		3 hours ago	
			Knowledge Center FAQ	۲	~		3 hours ago	

- 2. A new knowledge base form is opened. Fill in the mandatory fields:
  - enter Name
  - enter **Display Name**
  - select at least one document type in **Document types**
  - select at least one language in Languages
  - select the **Default language**
  - Select the **Approval Flow Type** (from version 9.0.003).

ල් Genesys Knowledge C	Center CMS Knowledge bases - Tools -	🌣 👻 default default 👻 🥹 👻
Administration	New Knowledge base	
Knowledge bases           Templates	← • Display Name	Save & Close 🗸
	Description	
	Document types     Choose among the following	
	Languages Choose among the following	/
	Default language     Choose among the following	×
	Inactive     Content source: CMS     Default document channels: any	
	* Approval Flow Type Simple	•
	* Reading access	
	* Authoring access	
	<ul> <li>Voting allowed</li> <li>5-star rating allowed</li> </ul>	
«	Properties	*

#### 3. Click Save & Close.

#### Important

There are several properties that cannot be changed after you have created a knowledge base. Please pay special attention when you select your values for them:

- · Name defines unique name of the knowledge base
- Document types type of the documents that can be created in the knowledge base
- · Default language language that documents need to be created first in
- Content source defines whether the content of the CMS will be created in Genesys Knowledge Center CMS (value: CMS) or in third-party CMS system (value: Third-party)
- Approval Flow Type defines approval flow type in the knowledge base

### Using External Content

Knowledge Center allows you to source content from an external system and still be exposed in the same way to the company's agents and customers.

Content source: CMS	<b>Content source: CMS</b> (default) - Content will be authored in Knowledge Center CMS
Content source: Third-party	<b>Content source: Third-party</b> - Content will be sourced from external CMS system

#### Important

Content source can only be defined when the knowledge base is being created. You cannot change the source for the existing knowledge base.

### Defining Access Permissions

The following properties allow you to define the proper access to your knowledge base:

#### Active/Inactive

<b>Inactive</b>	<b>Inactive</b> (default) - If you select the inactive status for your Knowledge Base neither your customers nor your agents will be able to search for information in that knowledge base. Knowledge authors and knowledge administrators can still use the base to prepare content stored in it. Inactive status is recommended when your knowledge base is not ready for prime time
C Active	Active - allows knowledge base to be available for search by agent and customer (according to set permissions)

# Access For Reading

Reading access allows to define knowledge base visibility for customer and agents:

<ul> <li>Reading access</li> <li>Public</li> <li>Public</li> <li>Agents only</li> <li>Skilled agent</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Reading access - defines the Knowledge base visibility for reading (default reading access is "Public").</li> <li>You can specify whether the Knowledge base should be available to:</li> <li>Public (default value) - all users (consumers and all agents)</li> <li>Agents only - to all of your agents, but not exposed to customers</li> <li>Skilled agent - only to the agents that have at</li> </ul>
	least one of the specified skills.
Reading access     Skilled agent     Add Skill  Customer Care Add Skill	When <b>Skilled agent</b> is selected as the <b>Reading</b> <b>access</b> value, the skill selection is shown. It allows you to define the list of skills for restriction. In a case where you have specified several skills for the reading access, the agent needs to have at least one of them to access the knowledge base. Skill level does not influence the ability to access the knowledge base.
Technical Support Supervisors Finance Legal	<ol> <li>To add a skill:</li> <li>Select a <b>Skilled agent</b> access type.</li> <li>Click <b>Add Skill</b> in the form field located to the right.</li> <li>Type a skill name you would like to add and click enter.</li> </ol>

Customer Care × Add Skill	<ul> <li>Hint: you can select it from the drop-down list provided.</li> <li>Hint: as you begin typing the skill name, a list of proposed skills is refined to match the information being typed. This helps to easily find the required skills in large lists.</li> <li>To remove a skill:</li> <li>1. Move your mouse over the selected skill.</li> <li>2. Click the X icon next to the skill name.</li> </ul>
---------------------------	---

# Access For Authoring

<ul> <li>Authoring access</li> <li>Any author</li> <li>Any author</li> <li>Skilled author</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Authoring access - defines the Knowledge base visibility for authoring (default reading access is "Agents only"). You can specify whether the Knowledge base should be available for authoring to:</li> <li>Any author - any authors that have authoring privilege</li> <li>Skilled author - only to the authors that have at least one of the specified skills.</li> </ul>
* Authoring access  f Skilled author  Add Skill  Customer Care Add Skill	When <b>Skilled author</b> is selected as the <b>Authoring access</b> value, the skill selection is shown. It allows you to define the list of skills for restriction. In the case where you have specified several skills for the authoring access, the agent needs to have at least one of them to access the knowledge base. Skill level does not influence the ability to access the knowledge base.
Technical Support Supervisors Finance Legal	<ol> <li>To add a skill:</li> <li>Select a Skilled author access type.</li> <li>Click Add Skill in the form field located to the right</li> <li>Type a skill name you would like to add and click enter</li> <li>Hint: you can select it from the drop-down list provided Hint: as you begin typing the skill name, a list of proposed skills is refined to match the information being typed. This helps to easily find the required skills in large lists.</li> </ol>
Customer Care × Add Skill	<ol> <li>To remove a skill:</li> <li>Move your mouse over the selected skill.</li> <li>Click the X icon after the skill name.</li> </ol>

# Behavior Options

To edit the behavior options you need to expand **Properties** at the bottom of the knowledge base form:

Behavior					
Name	Value				
✓					
Number of shards	1 🖌				
Number of replicas	1 /				
✓ ➡ faq					
Out of domain	0.5 🖋				
Number of answers	3 🖋				
Number of answers in preconfidence selection	10 🖋				
Trending period in days	30 🖋				
Marked as created during period	1 /				
Marked as recently modified during period	1 /				

An option can be edited by clicking on the value. While editing, a hint is shown describing the option and valid values:

Description: Number of shards	×	Value
Minimum value: 1 Maximum value: 10	~	
Default value: 1		1
		1 /

# Importing Knowledge Base Configuration

#### Cloning the Knowledge Base Configuration

To re-use the configuration of an existing knowledge base to create a new one you must:

- 1. Open the list of knowledge bases.
- 2. Open the knowledge base you wish to clone.
- 3. Click the drop-down menu next to the **Save & Close** button.
- 4. Select the **Backup configuration** menu:



5. The browser downloads a text file with the knowledge base configuration (name: knowledgenbaseld + ".scheme").

knowledgefaq.scheme	•

- 6. Go back to the **Knowledge Bases** page.
- 7. In the **Create** drop-down menu select the **Import** ... option:



8. Select **Browse**, choose the recently downloaded file in the opened dialog window and then, click **Import**:

Beyo	nd Knowledge +	
	Import knowledge base configuration	×
IS		
	Browse knowledgefaq.scheme	
	Cancel	Import
GE		

9. For CMS 8.5.304 and later: The new Knowledge Base form is opened and pre-filled with the values from the loaded knowledge base configuration.

Important You must change the knowledge base ID. You cannot have more than one knowledge base with the same ID.

**Note:** In CMS versions earlier than 8.5.304 , you were required to modify the knowledge base ID and properties in the exported file before importing it to the system.

# Importing Knowledge Base Content

You can import your own data (documents+categories) to the knowledge base.

- 1. Click **Knowledge bases** from the toolbar at the top
- 2. Choose your knowledge base from list
- 3. Click the **Documents** tab
- 4. Click the arrow next to the Create button
- 5. Click Import...
- 6. Choose the XML-based file with your data
- 7. Choose the language
- 8. Click Import

ල්	Genesys Knowledge C	enter CMS Knowledge bases 👻 Tools 👻	
1	ucs	Documents	
¢	Dashboard	Create / E â Approve	
	Categories	Create	
ş	No answer		
<b>19</b>	Votes		
4	Drafts		
€	Modifications	Import data English	×
		Browse storage850_my.xml	
		Cancel	Import

#### Supported data format

The Import tool supports xml-files with the following structure:

```
<?xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8" standalone="yes"?>
<knowledge lang="en" kbId="knowledgefaq" version="9.0.000">
   <categories>
        <category>
           <id>cat1</id>
            <categoryParentId></categoryParentId>
            <name>Root</name>
           <description></description>
           <status>APPROVED</status>
        </category>
        <category>
            <id>cat2</id>
            <categoryParentId>cat1</categoryParentId>
            <name>Cat ER 89313</name>
           <description></description>
            <status>APPROVED</status>
       </category>
   </categories>
   <documents>
        <document>
            <id>doc1</id>
           <templateId>basearticle</templateId>
            <status>APPROVED</status>
            <media/>
            <tags/>
```

```
<alternatives/>
            <categories>
                <category>
                    <id>cat</id>
                </category>
            </categories>
            <customFields/>
            <title>
                <id>title</id>
                <value>Sample Article</value>
            </title>
            <content>
               <docField>
                   <id>description</id>
                    <value>Sample body.</value>
                </docField>
            </content>
            <additional>
                <docField>
                    <id>summary</id>
                    <value></value>
                </docField>
            </additional>
        </document>
    </documents>
</knowledge>
```

#### Fields descriptions

- templateId id of basic or custom template. Predefined templates are:
  - basefaq
  - baseartcile
- title named field(s) for document title part:
  - For FAQ it is 'question'
  - For 'Article' it is 'title'
- content named field(s) for document content part:
  - For FAQ it is 'answer'
  - For 'Article' it is 'description'
- additional named additional field(s):
  - No additional fields for 'FAQ'
  - For 'Article' it is 'summary'

## Purge Knowledge Bases

Using a **Purge operation** Genesys Knowledge Center enables you to remove broken or outdated content stored in Elasticsearch. Removing broken or outdated content from Elasticsearch will not

delete data or the knowledge base.

The Purge operation only deletes an Elasticsearch index associated with a deleted Knowledge Base (that is, if they were no deleted automatically) and removes categories that are not related to existing documents.

ଟ୍ଟି Genesys Knowledge C	Center CMS Kno	wledge bi	ases + Dictionaries + Tools +					¢ -	default default	t - 🛛 -
Administration	Kno	wled	ge bases							
😂 Knowledge bases	Cre	ate	· / B			Backup	Restore	0	Purge all	-
Templates		0	Display Name	Active		Public	External	Put	ge selected	
			Demo GBank		0	~		1 5800	ge an nus ago	
			Knowledge Center FAQ		0	~		11 sec	onds ago	

#### To purge a Knowledge Base

- 1. Open the Knowledge Base list.
- 2. Select the Knowledge Base you want to purge.
- 3. In the top-right corner of the screen open the **Purge all** list.
- 4. Select **Purge selected**.

#### Important

Select **Purge All** when you want to remove broken data in all the Knowledge Bases at once.

# Templates

# Overview

Templates can be accessed by selecting the **Templates** menu from the **Administration** menu:



Document templates allow you to define:

- The desired breakdown (into section) of document content
- Any instructions to authors on the intended use of any of the sections
- Visibility for every section by limiting access to its content to the desired group of users (customer, agent or sub-groups of agents)

To be able to view and manage templates you need to have Knowledge.CMS.Administrator privilege (for more details, see Access Permissions).

### Viewing existing templates

When you navigate to templates by selecting **Templates** from the **Administration** menu, CMS will show you the list of templates that are currently available in your system:

Administration	Ten	plates	
Knowledge bases		an - Z E	
Tempiates		New	AB
(		Standard Article	ARTICLE
$\subseteq$	7	Standard FAQ	FAQ

From this view you can:

- create new template:
  - from empty template
  - using previously exported template
- modify existing template
- delete existing template
- disable template (to prevent new documents from being created, using this templates)
- see info about how much knowledge bases uses this template in documents (from 9.004.xx version)
- filter out the list of the templates by:
  - template name
  - document type
  - enable/disable status
- sort the template list by:
  - template name
  - modification date
  - number of knowledge bases in use (from 9.004.xx version)

# Creating a new template

#### 1. Click Create

2. Enter values for the mandatory fields (marked by a red star), as well as any other pertinent fields.

Article v	with Agent Intraction	
+		om -
- 10		
iteration.	unia	
• Name		
Article with	eth Agent Hitsgeban	
Description	-	
Common	e Artise desument providing public sontene santise publicave santise. For the agents	
Desmant	t type	
4.509		-
C) Ind		
Sections		
	German 💽 Wandersay	
10	Provide publicity coldies content in this section	
	4 Page -	
	tota Detect	
	People segural execution for the appet on the internal systems used	
10		
	& Aperacity -	
Add section	٠	

3. Click **Save & Close** or select one of the other options from the **Save & Close** drop-down menu.

Save & Close	•
Save & Close	
Save	
Discard & Close	
Discard	

### Standards templates

When you start CMS for the first time you will see two templates already created for you:

- Standard Article
- Standard FAQ

Both these templates are created by default and configured to have one public section. You can redefine these templates according to your needs.

#### Important

The template can be changed or deleted if there are no documents in your knowledge bases that are using it.

#### Тір

You can disable the template to prevent it from being used by authors to create new documents.

# Templates explained

Field	Description
	Allows you to define a unique technical name for templates. This name is used when you export or import any templates or documents using it.
	Id restrictions:
Id	<ul> <li>It is not allowed to have two templates with same id.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Only [a-z][A-Z][0-9] characters allowed to be used in the id.</li> </ul>
	• Id cannot be modified one document is created.
Name	Defines the name that authors can chose from when they are creating new documents.
Description	Provides a short explanation on how the template is used. It is shown to the authors when they create a new document.
	Allows you to select one of the basic document types that are extended with the templates. Supported types are:
Document type	• Article
	• FAQ
Enable	Allows you to enable or disable templates used by the authors. If templates are disabled all existing documents that are using templates will continue
	to function as is however authors will not be able to create any new documents using this template.
	Define the content parts of which the final document content is compiled. The order of these
Sections	defined order to combine content together before showing it to an agent or a customer.
	Important
	Every template must have at least one section.

Field	Description
	For every section you are able to provide:
	<ul> <li>name - visible for authors only when editing the document in CMS</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>instruction - visible for authors only when editing the document in CMS</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>mandatory flag that will instruct CMS that document cannot be sent for approval until content for this section is provided.</li> </ul>
	visibility rule
	Important At least one section in document must be mandatory.
	A section can be:
	• Public - visible to any user
	<ul> <li>Agents only - visible to any agent, but hidden when customer views the document</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Skilled agent - visible to certain set of the agent that has one of the defined skills</li> </ul>
	Important When a template is used within a knowledge base, the Reading access defined for the knowledge base is what's used to set the priority for the section visibility. For example, if you have a template with "Public" sections within a knowledge base that are set to "Agent only" for Reading access, it results in all those sections within the document being visible to agents only. In this instance however, because of the priority set, this also means that none of the documents within this knowledge base are accessible by the customers.

While editing templates, you can:

• Add a section by clicking the **Add section** link:

Document section 1	Mandatory	
Instruction		
AP Public		
ion		

• Delete a section by clicking: 💿.

	Document section 1	Optional	
0	Instruction		
	🔮 Public 🗸 🗸		
	Document section 2	Optional	
3	Instruction		
	₤ Skilled agent ~ Add Skill		
	Document Section 3	Optional	
3	Instruction		
	🖌 Public 🗸		
	Document Section 4	Optional	
	Instruction		
8			

 change the order of the section by dragging and dropping them into the desired order. Hover your cursor over the

icon in front of any section then click, hold, and drag to the proper location, and then release your cursor.

Sections		
	Document section 1	Optional
∎ O	Instruction	
	🔮 Public 🗸 🗸	
	Document section 2	Optional
II 😒	Instruction	
	Document Section 3	Optional
#⊗	Instruction	
	🔮 Public 👻	
	Document Section 4	Optional
# <b>O</b>	Instruction	
	📽 Public 🗸	
Add se	tion	

### Deleting templates

You can delete templates by selecting the template from the list and then clicking on delete button:



**Note:** You cannot delete a template that is used in a document within your knowledge bases. Until version 9.003.xx, when trying to delete such a template, the CMS displays the following error message:



As of version 9.004.xx, the CMS displays the following message containing information about which

knowledge bases this template was used in, as well as the number of related documents the template affects:

			×
0	Cannot delete template beca knowledge bases:	use it is being used in the following	
	Demo GBank	220 Documents	
	Knowledge Center FAQ	52 Documents	
	Cancel		

Clicking on the number of documents switches you to the appropriate knowledge base where you can manage your documents before deleting the templates. When attempting to delete several templates with related documents, the CMS displays the following message:

		×
1 Se so individu	elected templates are being used in one or more Knowledge Bases by ome documents and cannot delete them directly. Please select an al template to check where its being used.	
Cano	cel	

Rather than deleting such templates, you can disable them. This prevents the template from being used when creating new documents.

#### Tip

Disabling a template does not disable, hide, or remove any content from the Knowledge Base and the content can still be updated. Disabling a template only prevents the creation of new content with that template.

#### Important

Ensure that at least one template is created and enabled for every document type. Disabling all templates for certain document types disables the ability to add these documents to your knowledge bases.

# Modifying templates

To modify a template, select the template and then click the **edit** button:

	Temp	lates			
	Creat	. / 8			
	Θ	-1		Al	1
		Sandard FAQ		FAQ	l
		Standard Article		ARTICLE	
(		New Template		ARTICLE	
	-				ł.

Alternatively, you can double-click on the template to enter edit view.

There are certain restrictions on the editing templates:

- The template **Id** and **Document type** can be defined before the template is created but cannot be changed afterward.
- **Sections** can be added and removed while there is no documents using this template. As soon as you have created at least one document using the template, you cannot add or delete sections within the document. You can however still change the order of the existing sections and change their attributes (such as **Name**, **Instruction**, **Mandatory** flag and visibility).

Templates that have restrictions on the modification will have special notice (1) shown when entering the edit mode:

A F	for this template, sections can no longer be added or removed as the template is already in use
ы	
article	leeditable
Name	
Stand	dard Article
Jescript	tion
Stand	dard Article
Docum	ment type
Articl	k
	Enabled
lection	•
	Article content
	Compile/author the most relevant information to match the topic or question and to guide the reader to the desired resolution or outcome

# Using templates

When you add a document to the knowledge base you are able to select a template to use for that document.

1. From the *Documents* view click the **Create** button:



 From the Create document window, choose the Document type and Document template. Once these fields are chosen, the template information is shown on the right of the window (Template name and description, list of the sections with their names, instructions, visibilities):

Type of the new document	Selected template details
Article	Standard Article Standard Article Sections M Article content (mandatory) Compile/author the most relevant information to match the topic or question and to guide the reader to the desired resolution or outcome.
Cancel	Ok

3. Click **Ok** to create the document.

# Importing templates

#### **Cloning Template**

To re-use an existing template to create a new one you must:

- 1. Open the list of templates.
- 2. Open the template you wish to clone.
- 3. Click the drop-down menu next to the **Save & Close** button.
- 4. Select **Backup configuration**:



5. The browser downloads a text file with the template configuration (name: templateId + ".template").



6. Go back to the **Templates** page.

Knowledge bases      Create      Create      Import      All      All      Anticle      End      Create      Create	Administration	Templates	
Creste	8 Knowledge bases	Coude -	
ImportARTICLE	Templates	Create	All All
51 Stradard 510 510		import	ARTICLE
		Standard FAQ	FAQ

8. Select **Browse**, choose the recently downloaded file in the open dialog window and then, click **Import**:

Import document template	×
Browse sample.template	
Cancel	

9. The new template form is opened and pre-filled with the values from the loaded knowledge base configuration.



# Entities

### Overview

Entities are gathered within Dictionaries. Dictionaries are basically containers for entities. There is a Global Dictionary whose Entities will affect all Documents in every Knowledge Base and a Dictionary for every other Knowledge Base created. Dictionaries cannot be created or deleted. To access Dictionaries, select **Dictionaries** from the top menu:



Dictionaries and Entities are a new way to define Knowledge in GKC. This knowledge is arranged as follows:

- A Dictionary can contain many Entities
- An Entity can contain many Values
- A Value can contain many Synonyms

Entities allow the defining of top level concepts that Knowledge Managers know their customers are interested in (for example, furniture or cars). Values, on the other hand can be used to define more specific concepts within the top level one (in other words, sofas or 4x4 cars). For every Value, Knowledge Managers can define as many Synonyms for that word (the value) as they want. For instance, assume we have an Entity called "Table". We also have a Value called "Dining table", and we have two Synonyms for that value, "dining\_table\_one", "dining\_table\_2". By defining this very simple Dictionary, if a customer searches for "table", "dining table" or any combination, not only are Documents containing the words "dining", "table" and "dining table" shown, but also Documents that contain the Synonyms.

This is a very simplistic example but shows you how Knowledge Managers can influence search results by defining Entities, Values, and Synonyms taking into account they know what query terms they want to relate with what Values and Synonyms.

#### Important

Notice that, in terms of priority, a specific Knowledge Base Dictionary has more weight than the Global Dictionary. Meaning that whatever Entities are defined in the
Knowledge Base Dictionaries have more priority when returning results of those defined in the Global Dictionary.

## Viewing Entities

Upon selecting one of the available Dictionaries in the top menu, CMS shows the list of available Entities for that particular Dictionary:

ල් Genesys Knowledge Ce	enter CMS	Knowl	lge bases 👻 Dictionaries 👻 Tools 👻		🗢 👻 default de	efault 👻 🔞 🗸	
Dictionaries	E	Entiti	S				
Global		Creat				0	
Demo GBank			Name	*	Modified	0	•
Knowledge Center FAQ			Table		1 seconds ago		$\mathcal{N}$
							ε.
-							2

From this view you can:

- Create a new Entity
- View an existing Entity
- Modify an existing Entity
- Delete an existing Entity
- Sort the Entity list by:
  - Entity name
  - Modification date

### Creating a new Entity

- 1. Click Create.
- 2. Enter values for the mandatory fields (marked by a red star), in this case, Entity Name.
- 3. An Entity without values makes no sense, thus you will need to add at least one Value by clicking on the '+' button.
- 4. Specify Value Name and which Languages this Value should effect.
- 5. Click **Save**.

Nome	
name	
Choose among the following	
Choose among the following	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
5 5	

- 6. While not mandatory, it is recommended you create at least one synonym for this particular Value. To do this, click in **Add Synonym**.
  - Simply type in a related word to create the new Synonym and press your Return/Enter key to save it.
- 7. Once you have a Value for the new Entity you can click **Save & Close**.

### Viewing an existing Entity

- 1. Select an existing Entity by checking the checkbox beside its name.
- 2. Click the **View** button (
- 3. You are now able to view the Entity, its Values, and Synonyms in the following window:

Vehicles	â		$\rightarrow$
<ul><li>✓ Vehicles</li><li>✓ Bus</li></ul>			
∽ Car	English	caravan, school bus, van	
_	All	coupe, sedan, SUV	5

- 4. From here you can either:
  - Go to Edit mode by clicking on the Edit button ( 🖊 )
  - Delete existing Entity by clicking Delete button (
     )

### Modifying an existing Entity

- 1. Select an existing Entity by clicking the checkbox beside its name.
- 2. Click the **Edit** button ( / ).
- 3. You are now able to edit the Entity, its Values, and Synonyms in the following view:

* Name	26			
· chiefe				
Values				
+	·			
	Value	Language	Synonyms	
	Bus	English	caravan school bus van Add synonym	
	Car	All	coupe sedan SUV Add synonym	

4. From here you can:

- Go to View mode by clicking on the **View** button (
- Delete an existing Entity by clicking the **Delete** button (
- Change the name of the Entity in the **Name** field.
- Add a new Value.
- Edit existing Value.
- Delete existing Value.
- Add new Synonyms.
- Delete a Synonym.
- You can either **Save**, **Save & Close**, **Discard** and/or **Discard & Close** by selecting the desired option in the uppermost blue button.

### Important

While in edit mode for an Entity, all changes made in either Entity, its Values, and Synonyms must be saved in this Window, otherwise any changes made to any of those fields might be lost.

#### Adding a new Value

- 1. To add a new value while editing an existing Entity, simply click the plus button (  $^{+-}$  ).
- 2. Add a **Name** and select the **Languages** to be used for the new Value.
- 3. Click Save

#### Editing an existing Value

- 1. To edit an existing value, select it from the list by checking the check box next to its name.
- 2. Click the **Edit** button.
- 3. Change the name and/or language as needed.
- 4. Click **Save**.

Deleting an existing Value

- 1. To delete an existing value, select it from the list by checking the check box next to its name.
- 2. Click **Delete**
- 3. Confirm or Cancel the deletion in following modal dialog:

Are you sure you want to delete selected entity value(s)?	

**Note:** You can delete several values at once, by selecting more than one.

#### Adding a new Synonym

Adding a new Synonym is quite simple; click **Add Synonym** next to an existing Value and type a name for the Synonym then press your Return/Enter key:

Vehic	cles				
<del>~</del>				Save & Close	-
* Name					
Vehicle	s				
Values +	/ 1				
	Value 🔺	Language	Synonyms		
	Bus	English	caravan school bus van Add synonym		
	Car	All	coupe sedan SUV Add synonym		

### Deleting an existing Synonym

To delete an existing Synonym simply hover your cursor over the synonym to be deleted, and click the 'X' that appears next to its name:

Vehic	les							
<b>←</b>							Save & Close	-
* Name								
Vehicles	3							
Values +	/ 1			Ν				
	Value 🔺	Language	Synonyms	43				
	Bus	English	caravan moto	rbus schoo	l bus van	Add synonym		
	Car	All	coupe sedan	SUV	dd synonym			

### Deleting an existing Entity

- 1. Select an existing Entity by clicking on the checkbox next to its name.
- 2. Click on the **Delete** button (
- 3. A modal confirmation dialog is shown to confirm or cancel the deletion:

			×
Are you su	re you want to delete Entity?		
No		Yes	

# Working with Content

### Overview

You can use the authoring area to perform the following functions on the content stored in the CMS:

- Create or edit documents
- Create or edit categories
- Check synchronization status

### Important

To access this functionality you must have one of these CMS Authoring privileges:

- Knowledge.CMS.Category.Author
- Knowledge.CMS.Document.Author

For more information, see Access Permissions.

### The authoring area



# Selecting a language



# Approval workflow

Documents and categories share the same approval workflow. Two approval flow types are supported and can be configured per Knowledge Base:

- Standard
- Simple (from version 9.0.003)

### Standard Approval flow

This approval flow consists of 4 states:

•	<b>Draft</b> —authoring is in progress.
-0	In <b>Review</b> —the category or document is ready for approval review.

	<b>Approved</b> —the category or document is ready to be published to the server so it can be used by Knowledge Center.
⊗	<b>Rejected</b> —the category or document has been reviewed and rejected—it requires further editing before it can be resubmitted for review.
0	<b>Published</b> —the document has been published. Not related to approval flow.

Let's look at an example of this workflow:

Draft	When you create a new category or document, it has a status of <b>Draft</b> . You can edit and save it multiple times while it is still in <b>Draft</b> status.
Would you like to initiate review?         Write a comment	Once you have reached the final version and are ready to send your document or category for review, click the Review button. The category or document is now in <b>In Review</b> status. You can also submit comments to the reviewer to explain the changes that you made and why they should be approved. When reviewing the document you can "suppress changes notification" in the Workspace by selecting its checkbox. By default notifications are not suppressed. When reviewing in bulk, the checkbox is unavailable. <b>Note:</b> The comments you enter here are only visible in the document history. They are not exported into the Genesys Knowledge Center Server and are not visible to agents and customers using the knowledge.
-O- In review	Once the category or document has been approved it has a status of <b>In Review</b> .
X Are you sure you want to approve changes?  Virite a comment  Suppress changes notification  No Yes	<ul> <li>When a category or document has a status of In Review, you can approve the changes by clicking Approve, or reject the changes by clicking Reject. You can also provide your comments, which can be seen in the History view for the category or document.</li> <li>When approving the document you can change the "suppress changes notification" status or keep the same one that was exposed during the review. When approving in bulk the checkbox is unavailable.</li> <li>Note: If you change the contents of the category or document and then save it, it will change to a status of Draft, which means the approval workflow must be restarted.</li> </ul>
Approved	Once the category or document has been approved by the reviewers, it has a status of <b>Approved</b> . It can now be published to the Knowledge Center Server for use by agents and customers.

	<b>Note:</b> If you change the contents of the category or document and then save it, it will receive a status of <b>Draft</b> , which means the approval workflow will be restarted. Agents and customers can still use the latest approved version of the category or document while the newer version is being evaluated.
8 Rejected	Rejected categories or documents have a status of <b>Rejected</b> . They must to be corrected and then resent for review and approval.
O Published	Not related to approval flow. Indicates that document is published. This status is absent for categories.

This state diagram gives an overview of the entire process:



You can change the status of individual documents or categories, as described above, or as a bulk operation:

- Select the desired categories or documents from the list.
- Click the desired status (**Review**, **Approve**, or **Reject**) in the toolbar.
- The operation you have chosen will only be applied to any of the selected documents that are in the appropriate state. For example, if you select **Review**, it will only be applied to the documents that are have a status of **Draft** or **Rejected**.

• Publishing applied to all Approved documents in knowledge base

### Simple Approval flow

This is a simplified standard approval flow which consists only of 2 states: Draft and Approved. After approving documents, these also become Published as in the Standard workflow.

The following state diagram gives an overview of the entire process for Simple workflow:



# Working with Documents

# Displaying documents

Select a knowledge base to display a list of its contents. If you select the default language, you can create documents and categories:

00°	Genesys Knowledg	e Center CM	S Knov	vledge ba	ases 🗸 Di	ctionaries 🖥											🌣 👻 John Doe	- 0 -
12	Knowledge Center FAQ		Doci	umer	nts													
¢	Dashboard		Crea	ate	-	🖋 🗏 📋 Review Approve 👻								Publish	Ð			
	Documents			0	Question					•	Ą		All Statuses	~	0	Ð	Modified	•
•	Categories				Can I store	knowledge	articles	in different langua	ages?			FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 seconds ago	
R	No answer				How do I in	How do I import data into my knowledge base?			FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 seconds ago				
-	Votes				ls agent fe	edback trea	r Ited diffe	rently from custor	mer feedback?			FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 seconds ago	
<b>峄</b>	Drafts				Should I le	t Genesys F	nowleda	e Center Server ki	now how many an	swers a user viewed	?	FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 seconds ago	
Э	Modifications	Should I let Genesys Knowledge Center Server know how many answers a user viewed?				FAO	-0	_	~	~	1 seconds ano							
		Why is the correct answer shown as the second item in the list of answers?				EAO			~	~	1 seconds age							
					What is a l	e unierence	Detween	the knowledge o	auster and the Kind	wieuge Server:		FAQ					r seconds ago	
					what is a P	cnowledge i	ase?					FAQ		_	~	~	i seconds ago	
					Can I use (	Genesys Kn	owledge	Center as a virtua	l assistant?			FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 seconds ago	
					How are at	tachments	used in f	inding the right ar	nswer to a question	n?		FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 seconds ago	
					How can I	add search	capabilit	y to a custom age	ent desktop?			FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 seconds ago	
					What Is Ge	enesys Knov	vledge Ce	enter?				FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 minute ago	
					How does	Genesys Kr	owledge	Center find the ri	ght answers to my	questions?		FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 minute ago	
					What is th	e Sample U	?					FAQ	0	_	~	~	1 minute ago	
					Why do I n	eed the Ger	iesys Kno	wledge Center Cl	MS?			FAQ	0	_	~	~	2 minutes ago	
Eng	lish >				Can I do S	earch Engin	e Optimiz	ation for articles	created in the Gen	esys Knowledge Ce	nte	FAQ	0	_	~	~	2 hours ago	
Bas	e >		1 _ 15	6 of 52	15 🛩	per page							< <	< F	Page	1	of 4 > > >	
		«																

If you select any other language, you can translate an existing document or category into the selected language:

ල් Genesys Knowledge Center Cl	CMS Knowledge base	6 -				¢	<b>- Θ</b> - gkc	_cms gkc_cms
Center FAQ	Documen	ts						
Documents	Translate	🖌 🖻 💼 Review Approve 🗸					Publish	0
Categories	• •	Question	•	Туре	All Statuses V	0 €	Modified	٠
P. Drafts		Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?		FAQ	-0	6	3 hours ago	
No answer		How can I set access control for my administrators and managers?		FAQ	-0	6	3 hours ago	
Modifications		How can I archive older knowledge base articles?		FAQ	-0		3 hours ago	
		u Heldini?						
German								
Base	1 - 15 of 52	15 v per page			< < F	Page 1	of 4 >	••

# Filtering list of documents

From the list of documents you can:

• filter out the list of documents by content: Knowledge bases - Dictionaries -

Docu	imer	nts						
Creat	te	- Review Approve -					Publish	0
	0(	Card × ♦ ♦	All types 🛛 👻	All Statuses 🗸 🗸	0	Ð	Modified	•
		How do I access my account?	FAQ	Ø	~	0	22 hours ago	^
		What do I do if my credit card or debit card is lost or stolen?	FAQ	Ø	~	0	22 hours ago	
		Does the business debit $\frac{1}{2}$ offer any rewards such as frequent flyer	FAQ	Ø	~	0	22 hours ago	
		How do I activate my debit card?	FAQ	Ø	~	0	22 hours ago	
		Where can I use my debit $\ensuremath{\underline{card}}$ to inquire about account balances trans	FAQ	Ø	~	0	22 hours ago	
		an ATM?	FAQ		~	0	22 hours ago	

• filter out the list of documents by category:

Knowledge bases + Dictionaries + Documents		🗢 🕈 👻 John Doe 👻 🕑 👻
Create 🗸 🖉 📋 Review Approve	•	Publish O
Question	All Statuses V	O ⇒ Modified ▼
Using Online Banking outside the United States	Article	✓ <b>1</b> 22 hours ago
Computer equipment and software required for Online Banking	Select categories	x
Free and secure SiteKey service		
Reset your passcode	C Search categories	<b>^</b>
	<ul> <li>☐ Facts about the corporation</li> <li>☐ Newsrooms</li> <li>☐ Private and security</li> <li>☐ Account</li> <li>☐ Business</li> <li>☐ Online and Mobile</li> <li>☐ Other</li> <li>☐ Service</li> </ul>	1 selected Clear selection 0k

• filter out the list of documents by type and used template (from 9.004.xx version): mter CMS Knowledge bases - Dictionaries - Tools -

Create	🔹 🖉 📋 Review Approve 👻					Publish 🕄
	Question	All types ^	All Statuses 🗸 🗸	0	Э	Modified <b>•</b>
	Are there any vehicles that GBank does not finance?	All types	0-	~	~	1 hour ago
	What happens if my mobile device becomes lost or is stolen?	Article >	Custom Article	~	~	1 hour ago
	Can I link my GBank and Merrill Lynch online accounts?	FAQ		~	~	1 hour ago
	When are employees vested in a 401(k) plan?	FAQ	0-	~	~	1 hour ago
	How do Laccess my account?	FAO	0-	~	~	1 hour ago

• filter out the list of documents by current status:

MS Knowledg	e bases 👻 Dictionaries 👻						🌣 🚽 🛛 John I	Doe 🚽 🔞
Docum	ents							
Create	- I E 📋 Review /	approve 👻					Publish	0
	Question		All types	~ Draft	0	Э	Modified	•
	Are there any vehicles that GBank does not finance?		FAQ	•	~	0	1 seconds ago	

- sort the template list by:
  - document name
  - modification date

The final 2 columns display:

- A notification about whether or not the document includes translation on current language
- A notification about errors in the document (for example, the document has not attached a category)

# Creating a document

Create -	Click <b>Create</b> . <b>Note:</b> You can only create documents in the default language. Use other languages to translate existing documents.
× Select type of the new document Article Cancel	If your knowledge base allows documents of different types, you will be asked to select the document type. You can bypass this step by selecting the desired document type from the Create button's drop-down menu: Create Create Create Create Article Create FAQ

How to create new document?	Enter values for the mandatory fields (marked by the red star), as well as any other fields you have data for.
Alternative Questions Add alternative question Tags Genesys Knowledge Center CMS Add Tag	<b>*Optional</b> Enter values in <b>Alternative Question</b> and <b>Tags</b> fields by typing in a value and then pressing "Enter" to create the new entity.
	*Optional
Attachments  Add attachment	Add an <b>Attachment</b> . The following is a full list of the types of attachments that can be addedtxt, .doc, .docx, .pdf, .rtf, .asc, .csv, .xhtml, .html, .xml, .readme, .ppt, .pptx, .jpg, .png, .jpeg, .pjpeg, .bmp, .gif, .svg, .tiff, .vnd, .ico, .wbmp, .webp, .mpeg, .webm, .ogg, .wmv, .flv, .3gp, .3gp2, .mp4, .aac, .mov, .avi, .raw, .xls, .xlsx.
	*Optional
Start date (expected to be public in 14 day(s)) 2019-03-20 Expiration date (will expire in 22 day(s)) 2019-03-28	<ul> <li>Set Start and Expiration dates.</li> <li>Start date indicates that the document will be not published to Knowledge Server before this date, even if it has been approved</li> <li>Expiration date indicates that the document will be not available in Knowledge Server after this date, even if it has been published. The expired document will also not be published to Knowledge Server, even if it has been approved.</li> <li>Servers use these dates assuming that they are in Greenwich Mean Time (GMT). For example, if your local timezone is GMT+8, these dates will take effect eight hours later.</li> </ul>
Chansels	*Optional
cobrowsing far Add Channel	Add a list of media channels if this document provides data to a conversation via specific media (like chat, for example).



ow do I create a TOC?				
- Spantian				
Non-delicitude a 7027				
- Arrange				
State the single last assess to the Question into this concepts of maring / Events				
10000-107	6   X   4   5   2   1   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0			
man manage	1 Fait +   Sait	- A- 0-		
	Transaction of the			
(	Fragmi Frome			
Format the Heading o	ing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		
Format the Heading of	ing the Paragraph Format i	ist.		
Format the Heading of	Sing the Paragraph Format i	ist.		
Format the Heading of	ing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		
Format the Heading of	Sing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		_
Format the Heading of	Sing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		_
Format the Heading to	ing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		_
Format the Heading of	ing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		_
Format the Heading is	Sing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		_
Format the Heading of Barrier The bit results 100 <sup>-</sup> <b>None</b> 20 Det hex replaced upwards of the barrier to be a result of reading 10 and	Singuton)	ist.		-
Format the Heading s	Signature	ist.	- X = + 0 0 0	120
Format the Heading s Format the Heading s Red seems 100 more d the foregoing core is for better Red States and reading of each Red States and Red States and Red States Red States Re	Superiori Sing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		20
Format the Heading of series The formation (10) the d for the respected events (10) the the respected events (10) and (10) and (10) the the the respected events (10) and (10) and (10) the the the the the the the the the the the	Southerney States and	a <i>x</i> =  = <i>x</i> − <i>x</i>		120
Format the Heading s	Superiori Sing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		20
Format the Heading of Format the Heading of the sense is too the sense is too the sense is too the sense is too be been Keel of Common Formation of the sense is too Formation	Support sing the Paragraph Format I	) a a a = > ¬ > > > = > = = = = = = = = = = = =		20
Format the Heading upper levels to the second seco	Singurities           sing the Paragraph Format I           s         5         5         9         10	ist. 		120
Format the Heading s	Singutes Sing the Paragraph Format I Sing the Paragraph Format I Sing the Paragraph Format I Sing the Paragraph Format I Sing the Paragraph Format I	ist.		120
Format the Heading of Termine the Heading of Termine to the termine to be the termine the termine the termine to be the termine the termine the termine to be the termine Termine the termine the termine to be the termine Termine the termine the termine to the termine Termine the termine the termine to the termine Termine the termine	Superior	ist. ) a ∡ a  = → → → → = = -   A - O -		20
Format the Heading of The second se	South the Paragraph Format I  South the Paragraph Format I  South the Paragraph Format  South the Construction of the south of the sou	ist. a <i>s</i> =  = <i>x</i> − <i>x</i> +   −  ∆• <b>G</b> - m. list.		1 20

the local diff.	Praxiliar conceptit pel ven arcuitemper biberdum
1000	
	Tanks sugget as a state to the state
	-
-	d Antonio and A
1000	医马克克克 人名英英克马克 法法 医白色 医白色的 人名法格尔 化乙基苯基苯基 经收益 法法
	and there the the table and
	Nultam of Regist Int. Id ultrices ex.
	In and the features features for the set of the set of the set of the set of the feature of the set of the
	Answerden werden og som en set anvændene forger er en og som ogen i med answerdenen. Bedringen at som er af so Er af som er af
	Exception Application of contraction applications and interaction of the process spatial disks out and which an observation and the state of the first spatial disks of the state of the st
	No and of a state of the space of the second second second as the second of the second s
	Redrictor .

- A document with a broken link cannot be published. You must fix or remove any broken link(s) from the document in order to publish that document.
- A message will appear if you try to review or approve a document that contains a broken link.
- If a document with a link was previously published, it will automatically be unpublished when the linked document is deleted from the Knowledge Center server.

#### \*Optional

Add a table of contents (TOC) to any document in any knowledge base:

- 1. Place the cursor on the line that you want to format as a header.
- 2. From the **Paragraph Format** list select the appropriate header. Repeat this step for every header in the document.
- 3. Scroll to the top of the document and place the cursor at the beginning of the document.
- Click Table of Contents. The TOC appears. Note: Every time you click Table of Contents, the TOC is recreated in the location of the cursor. Before you update the TOC verify that the cursor is located above the existing TOC.

#### \*Optional

Add a link from one section of a document to a different section in the same document. Adding links to different sections in the same document enables agents to effortlessly navigate within the document to find answers to customer questions.

- In the body of the document, select the text that will be the target of the link that you will create in a different section of the same document.
- 2. Click **Anchor** to create an internal link to the selected text.
- 3. In the body of the document, select the text that will act as the link to the text selected as the target of your link.
- 4. Click Link and from the Link Type list select Link to anchor in the text.



5. In the **By Anchor Name** section of the window select the anchor you created in the previous step and click **OK**.

**Note:** Repeat these steps for every link you want to create within the document.



# Characters Allowed in Names

The names of most Knowledge Center CMS objects can consist only of the alphanumeric characters supported in UTF-8, plus the characters listed below in the "Additional Characters Allowed in Object Names" table.

The length of a category name cannot be longer than 64 characters.

The **Display Name** for the **Language** Business Attribute can only consist of Latin characters and numbers (A-7, a-z, 0-9).

Name	Character	Name	Character	Name	Character
Hyphen	-	Exclamation point	!	Backslash	1
Number sign, pound	#	Dollar sign	\$	Parentheses	()
Caret	^	Asterisk	*	Question mark	?
Underscore	_	Curly brackets	{ }	Space	
Angle brackets	< >	Period, full stop		At sign	@

#### Additional Characters Allowed in Object Names

### Important

Applicable only for CMS from version 9.0.000.15 to 9.0.005.04.

# Document categories

cument editor view	
Can I do Search Engine Optimization for articles created in the	Categories attached to the document (selected categories) are rendered by default in the <b>Categories</b> tree.
Can I do Search Engine Optimization for articles created in the	<ul> <li>To view Recent categories:</li> <li>Click in the Categories tree toolbar.</li> <li>Recent categories are marked with a bold, gray background, their relevant icon, and have an Add to category link near the category name.</li> <li>To attach Recent category(s) to the document, 2 options are available:</li> <li>Click the Add to category link near the category name to attach the category to the document.</li> <li>Click the Accept all suggested link to attach all recent categories to the document.</li> </ul>

	To view Suggested categories:
	• Click 它 in the <b>Categories</b> tree toolbar.
Can I do Search Engine Optimization for articles created in the Gene Compare Properties	<ul> <li>Suggested categories are marked with a bold, gray background, thier relevant icon, and have an Add to category link near the category name.</li> </ul>
Categories Active category	To attach Suggested category(s) to the document, 2 options are available:
Benerer Add to category     Soner     Soner     Genereys Koonledge Center CMS      @ Pencor from salegory     Genereys Koonledge Center Server      Add to category	<ul> <li>Click the Add to category link near the category name to attach the category to the document.</li> </ul>
Add attachment Agent, string	<ul> <li>Click the Accept all suggested link to attach all Suggested categories to the document.</li> </ul>
	To refresh the list of Suggested categories:
	<ul> <li>Click C (enabled only when suggested categories are displayed).</li> </ul>
Can I do Search Engine Optimization for articles created	To view Selected categories:
Compare Properties	Click in the Categories tree toolbar.
Categories  Categories Solutions Server Canesys Knowledge Center CMS C Remove from category	<ul> <li>Selected categories are marked with a bold, gray background, their relevant icon, and have a <b>Remove from category</b> link near the category name.</li> </ul>
Attachments	To remove document from Selected category(s):
Add attachment	<ul> <li>Click the <b>Remove from category</b> link near the category name to deattach the category from the document.</li> </ul>
ategory selection	



Select document categories          Image: select document categories         Image: select document categories         Image: select document categories         Image: select document categories         Image: select document categories         Image: select document categories	<ul> <li>To view Suggested categories:</li> <li>Click in the Categories tree toolbar.</li> <li>Suggested categories are marked with a gray background and have the hat icon near the category name.</li> </ul>
Select document categories          Image: Select document categories         Image: Select document categories         Image: Select document categories	To view <b>Selected</b> categories: • Click toolbar. • Selected categories are marked with a checkbox.

Select document categories	<ul> <li>To view All categories in the current Knowledge base:</li> <li>All <ul> <li>Click ni the Categories tree toolbar.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Category sub-trees are expanded to the terminal highlighted category or selected category, by default.</li> </ul>
Select document categories	<ul> <li>To attach Suggested or Recent category(s) to the document 2 options are available:</li> <li>Check the checkbox in front of the highlighted category name to attach the category to the document.</li> <li>Accept all highlighted         <ul> <li>to check all the checkboxes for all Suggested and Recent categories for the document.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

# Translating a document

For a quick reference on how to:

- Translate (no source)
- Translate (with source)
- Machine translate
- Translating a document in compare mode

### please see the following video-



## Translate (no source)



How to translate the document?	Enter values for the mandatory fields (marked by the red star), as well as any other fields you have data for.
Save & Close       Save       Save       Discard & Close       Discard	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the other options in the <b>Save &amp; Close</b> menu.

# Translate (with source)

Documents			
Translate       Translate (no source)       Translate (with source)       Machine translate	Click the arrow next to the <b>Translate</b> button in the toolbar and choose <b>Translate (with source)</b> from the menu.		
Image: Control of the contro	Translate the document fields using the source document content.		

•			
	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the other	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the other
	options in the <b>Save &amp; Close</b> menu.	options in the <b>Save &amp; Close</b> menu.	options in the <b>Save &amp; Close</b> menu.

## Machine translate

### Important

this mode of translation is only available when your administrator has configured an external translation service to translate content.



Save & Close 👻	
Save & Close	
Save	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the options in the <b>Save &amp; Close</b> menu.
rd & Close	
iscard	

# Translating a document in compare mode



Translate Standard Article	Click the <b>Compare</b> button from the Document translation view.
Translate Standard Article Compare English      Profile      Tele     Take     Mat La Canesys Knowledge Center?     Summary     Genesys Knowledge Center allows you to make the best use of your enterprises knowledge by capturing, and distributing it wherever it is needed.	Click <b>Machine translate</b> or <b>Translate (with source)</b> from the menu.
Was ist das Genetys Knowledge Certer?	Make edits to the translated fields, if necessary. If you clicked <b>Translate (with source)</b> , you must translate the content in the fields manually.
Save & Close       Save       Save       Discard & Close       Discard	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the other options in the <b>Save &amp; Close</b> menu.

### Document errors

When you save a document, the Knowledge Center CMS validates the values you have entered into its fields. It highlights any fields that contain errors by:

- Marking their borders in red
- Adding an error message below them



### Document types

The Knowledge Center CMS supports two types of document:

- **Frequently asked questions (FAQ)**—A list of questions and answers, all of which can be commonly asked in a specific context and which pertain to a particular topic. This format is often used on mailing lists and in other online forums, where common questions tend to be asked repeatedly.
- **Article**—An independent piece of writing that provides information or evidence, or that serves as an official record.

Both types of document share the same structure, except for these fields:

	FAQ	Article
Document name	Question	Title
Short Summary (plain text)		Summary
Document content (formatted text)	Answer	Description
Alternative names	Alternative Questions	Alternative Titles

### Viewing a document

To view the contents of a document, double-click the document in the list view or select the document and click **View**:

Documents

Trans	slate	Review Approve -					Publish	9
Ξ	0	Question +	Туре	All Statuses V	0	Ð	Modified	☆
		What is tags for?	FAQ	•	~	0	3 seconds ago	
		How do I configure two Knowledge Servers into a cluster?	FAQ	∞—		0	6 hours ago	
		Can I use my own CMS system instead of the Genesys Knowledge Center CM	FAQ	-0-		0	6 hours ago	

The document will look something like this:

g Genesys Knowledge Co	enter CMS Knowledge bases + Tools +	🗘 🔹 system user 👻 🥹 🗸
test	What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?	Ø Approved
Documents     Categories     Modifications	History What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?	Created 5 hours ago , last modified about 5 hours ago by default
	Less than a minute of reading / 62 words, their than a minute of reading / 31 words Summary The ultimate goal of Genesys Knowledge Center is to convert your knowledge into an which is designed to find the best answer to every question you ask. The ultimate goal of Genesys Knowledge Center is to convert your knowledge into answers which is designed to find the best answer to every question you ask. The ultimate goal of Genesys Knowledge Center is to convert your knowledge into answers which is designed to find the best answer to every question you ask. Categories Knowledge Center	eart of the system is the Genesys Knowledge Center Server, art of the system is the Genesys Knowledge Center Server,
	Additional Channels any	

Information about document word count and estimated reading time are found under the question title. The left side (with the agent icon) displays all information (both public + private) and shows the document word count and estimated reading time. The right side (with the customer icon) shows only the public document word count and estimated reading time.

# Document history

While you are viewing a document content, you can click the **History** button:

Genesys Knowledge Cer	ter CMS Knowledge bases + Tools +
📚 test	What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?
Documents	+ / D History
Categories	
Modifications	What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?         Iess than a minute of reading / 62 words , Iess than a minute of reading / 31 words         Summary       The ultimate goal of Genesys Knowledge Center is to convert your knowledge into answers to the questions you which is designed to find the best answer to every question you ask.         Image: The ultimate goal of Genesys Knowledge Center is to convert your knowledge into answers to the questions you which is designed to find the best answer to every question you ask.
	Knowledge Center       Additional       Channels any

Select a version to see its contents. A history drop-down menu shows which version you are looking at:

ø	Genesys Knowledge Center CM	S Knowledge bases - Dictionaries - Tools -	
12	Knowledge Center FAQ	What is a knowledge base?	
e	Dashboard	← / 📋 Review History⊙- 5 days ago ^ ④	
	Documents	• 5 days ago	
*	Categories	Historical version is shown. Approved, modified by defaul 0 5 days ago	
Ģ	No answer		
${\bf e}_{\rm sp}$	Votes	What is a knowledge base?	
П,	Drafts	less than a minute of reading / 25 words     - 0 5 days ago	
Э	Modifications	A knowledge base is an organized collection of related inform     5 days ago	
		Categories O 21 days ago	
		General	
		Additional	
		Channels any	

Each line in the history drop-down shows the following information about the version:



- (1) Approval status (Draft, In Review, Approved, Published) '
- (2) How many days since the version was created

## Document version rollback

### Important

This functionality is available starting with the 9.0.001.xx release of the product.

Can I store knowledge articles in different languages?	From the document view mode click the <b>History</b> button.
Can I store knowledge articles in different languages?	The <b>Rollback</b> button is now displayed immediately to the right of the history drop-down menu.

Can I store knowledge articles in different languages? Can I store knowledge Center is only and it is a transformed and it is	Select a historical version from the history drop- down menu.
Can I store knowledge articles in different languages?	The <b>Rollback</b> button is enabled after a historical version of the document is selected. Click the <b>Rollback</b> button.
Can I store knowledge articles in different languages?	The new historical version of the document is created, which is a copy of the source version. A notification is displayed which states that the current version of the document is a rollback version and provides a link to the source version of the current document's revision.

# Comparing document versions

While editing a document you can compare the current version with any other version by clicking **Compare**:


Select the desired language and version from the drop-down lists that appear.

This mode is helpful when you want to:

- Compare the current version with a previous version
- Copy content from a previous version
- Localize a document from one language to another

Compare mode displays the older version and the current version side by side:

- 🗏 💼 Compare English Y> 2 minutes ago Y	
estion at Is Genesys Knowledge Center?	>> * Question What is Genesys Knowledge Center?
nswer	
State the single best answer to the Question.	State the single best answer to the Question.
Genesys Knowledge Center allows you to make the best use of your enterprise knowledge by capturing, storing, and wherever it is needed.Built by Genesys, this product seamlessly integrates to various Genesys products to provide c	distributing it $A = \mathbb{C}$ is in the field in the set of the set
Genesys Administrator, reporting and basic analytics via Pulse and agent desktop integration to Workspace Desktop	Edition Styles - Format - Font
	Genesys Knowledge Center allows you to make the best use of your entern distributing it wherever it is needed.Built by Genesys, this product seamless provide configuration via Genesys Administrator, reporting and basic analyt Workspace Desktop Edition

Click the Copy button (1) near a field to copy its value from the older version to the current one.

# Deleting a Document

#### Prerequisites

- The knowledge base has been defined in the CMS.
- The Document has already been created.

- A connection to Genesys Knowledge Center is available.
- Knowledge.CMS.Document.Author privileges have been assigned to the user.

ant nly delete a document from the Knowledge Base if the Genesys H rver contains a Knowledge Base document with the same name.	Knowledge
r mouse over the appropriate knowledge base icon on the main page uments.	
e or more Documents from the list.	
Delete button.	
our action in the pop-up:	
	×
e you sure you want to delete selected Documents?	
rning! I are going to delete core version of selected documents translated and regional versions of selected documents will also be deleted	
No	
	Ant hy delete a document from the Knowledge Base if the Genesys I rver contains a Knowledge Base document with the same name. r mouse over the appropriate knowledge base icon on the main page uments. e or more Documents from the list. Delete button. bur action in the pop-up: e you sure you want to delete selected Documents? ming! are going to delete core version of selected documents translated and regional versions of selected documents will also be deleted No

#### Important

If you delete the core version of a document (in other words a document created in the default language in a Knowledge Base), all translations and regional versions of this document are deleted. If you delete the translated version of a document and it has regional versions, all regional versions of this document are deleted.

#### Tip

If the deleted document was published to Knowledge Center Server it is deleted from the Server on the next manual or scheduled synchronization.

# Working with Categories

# Displaying categories

Click **Categories** in the sidebar to open the category tree for the selected knowledge base:

°°°	ප් Genesys Knowledge Center CMS Knowledge bases -				
2	Knowledge Center FAQ	С	ategor	es	
	Deguments		Create	Review Approve - 🔀 🛄	
Ľ	Categories		0	Name	
4	Drafts			~ General	1
5	No answer			Archiving	l
5	Modifications			~ Configuration	
v	Mounications			Languages	
				Roles	
				Feedback	
			_		

### Creating a category



Categories Mame Categories Description Working with Categoried Parent category / No parent assigned	Enter values for the mandatory fields (marked by the red star), as well as any other fields you have data for.
Save & Close Save Save Discard & Close Discard	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the other options in the Save & Close button's drop-down menu.

# Category Tree

A tree structure represents the hierarchical nature of categories in a graphical form. A Category Tree consists of one or more root categories, each of which can have subcategories under it.

From the category tree you can:

- Create a parent category.
- Move a category.
- Convert a category from child to root.
- Delete a child category.

#### Create a parent category



Move a category



#### Convert a category from child to root

	2         3         100         10         10         10           2         3         100         10         10           2         300         10         10         10           2         300         10         10         10           300         10         10         10         10           300         100         10         10         10         10		Hammed         D           0         0         0         0         0           1         1         0         0         1           2         2         0         0         0         0           2         2         0         0         0         0         0           2         2         0         0         0         0         0         0           2         2         0 <th>Select category and click the <b>Cut</b> button. The selected category will be grayed out.</th>	Select category and click the <b>Cut</b> button. The selected category will be grayed out.
	UT		B         B         Balance         1           4         4         Strategie         1           5         4         Strategie         1           6         4         Strategie         1           7         4         Strategie         1           6         4         Strategie         1           7         4         Strategie         1           6         4         Strategie         1           7         4         Strategie         1           7         4         Strategie         1           8         4         Strategie         1	Select category and click the <b>Cut</b> button. The selected category will be grayed out.
	<ul> <li>ame</li> <li>ame</li></ul>		1         2	Select category and click the <b>Cut</b> button. The selected category will be grayed out.
	• Here Free		·         ·	Select category and click the <b>Cut</b> button. The selected category will be grayed out.
	MM Main Mai	-	·         ·	Select category and click the <b>Cut</b> button. The selected category will be grayed out.
	<ul> <li>Verial</li> <li>Veria</li></ul>		1         2         20000           2         2         20000           2         2         20000           2         2         20000           2         2         20000           3         2         20000           4         2         20000	selected category will be grayed out.
	M Mat Autor L Mat Manda Mang Mag Mata Mata Mata Mata Mata Mata Mata M		i         i         impose	selected category will be grayed out.
	Mar Nor • Mar • Market Market Market • Market Market Market Market Market Mar Market Market			selected category will be grayed out.
	No. - State: - Anne: - Anne		Paras Paras Paras 	
	SAN     S	1	Napaga Napaga Napaga	
	Annual Constanting and Constanting and Annual Constanting and Annual		· · · ·	
	n Bayan Senge Badage sen Kun sya	1	A A REPORT	
	ang kadigi ini tu ng			
			· · ·	
Categorie				
_	X. X. B. 1999 [1999 [1999 [1999]]		O	
	- 1000			
	- 51546			
	ing get			
		•		Click Paste as root
	14			
	a total total total to			
	And the later of t		A	

		Sec.1.0	
100100	* *	1 mar 1 8 8 mm	
	2. · · · · ·		
	1 I Martin		
1.00	1000		
-	1 m	-8 · · Dava	
	1 Mar.		
	1 m	- 8 - 7 - 5 mm	
	E technys	I A A Tender	
	C research control of the control of		
	<ul> <li>at the 1 head to the photo</li> </ul>		
	1		
	in the second seco	- 8 × 1 × 1000	

The selected category will now be at the root level. If the converted category includes child categorie/ subtrees, the categories/subtrees will also be moved.

### Delete a child category

THE A R & THE ADD A R R R R	runte (P	
8 8 340	1 March 1 & 8 March 1	
0		
U + Indynese	- 4 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	
1 Internet 1	-4 - 7 - 1998	
8 m		
U Marine	-4	
	-8 × 1 × 1000	Select the child category and click <b>Delete</b> .
R Lange		
1 A Manager	- A Comment	
C Follows 7	- A Contraction	
1 Internet		
1/ + Makes		
All restors to Security resp. 200	- 4 - 7 - 5 mm	
C - mpile	-4	
U Respire Aprile Techy	-4 / / hea	
я вология волог ват Спорти	10-2000 B	
	to active the	
	1	
	Area         Area <th< td=""><td></td></th<>	
Normal Distribution	NUM         NUM <td></td>	
	A         B	If the deleted esterence contains child esteres
	I         I	If the deleted category contains child categorie
	Image         Image <thimage< th=""> <thi< td=""><td>If the deleted category contains child categorie</td></thi<></thimage<>	If the deleted category contains child categorie
	I         I <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""></thi<></thi<></thi<></thi<>	If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.
	Image         Image <thimage< th=""> <thi< td=""><td>If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.</td></thi<></thimage<>	If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.
Version of a local data data data data data data data da	I         I	If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.
Notice of the second	Image         Image <thimage< th=""> <thi< td=""><td>If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.</td></thi<></thimage<>	If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.
Network     Network	NOME         NOME <th< td=""><td>If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.</td></th<>	If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.
	Image         Image <th< td=""><td>If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.</td></th<>	If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.
Notice:     Note:     Note:       Image:     Image:     Image:     Image:     Image:	Norm         Norm <th< td=""><td>If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.</td></th<>	If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.
Vertical of the second seco	Image         Image <thimage< th="">         Image         <thi< td=""><td>If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.</td></thi<></thimage<>	If the deleted category contains child categorie these child categories will also be deleted.

### Translating categories

For a quick reference on how to:

- Translate (no source)
- Translate (with source)
- Machine translate
- Translating a category in compare mode

You can reference the video below. Although the information in the video pertains to translating **Documents**, much of the process is the same — Link to video

Categories	Select a category to translate to the current language.
Categories	<ul> <li>Click the arrow next to the <b>Translate</b> menu and choose one of the three types of translations from the list:</li> <li><b>Translate (no source)</b> - Creates a blank category in the selected language for manual translation.</li> <li><b>Translate (with source)</b> - Creates a copy of the source category, copying all the content into a newly created language version. Content then needs to be manually translated to the selected language.</li> <li><b>Machine translate</b> - Uses a machine translation service (needs to be configured by your administrator) to create a category in the selected language by translating the content of the original category.</li> </ul>

### Translate (no source)



Translate Category  Compare  Tempered  Percent category  Recent	Enter values for the mandatory fields (marked by the red star), as well as any other fields you have data for.
Save & Close       Save       Save       Discard & Close       Discard	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the other options in the <b>Save &amp; Close</b> menu.

# Translate (with source)

Categories	
Translate (no source) Translate (with source) Machine translate	Click the arrow next to the <b>Translate</b> button in the toolbar and choose <b>Translate (with source)</b> from the menu.
Hatory     Image:	Manually translate the document fields using the source document content.

### Machine translate

### Important

This mode of translation is only available when your administrator has configured an external translation service to translate content.



### Translating a category in compare mode



Translate Category ← Compare	Click the <b>Compare</b> button from the Category translation view.
Translate Category	Click <b>Machine translate</b> or <b>Translate (with source)</b> from the menu.
Hotore and to the	Make edits to the translated fields, if necessary. If you clicked <b>Translate (with source)</b> , you must translate the content in the fields manually.
Save & Close       Save       Save       Discard & Close       Discard	Click <b>Save &amp; Close</b> or select one of the other options in the <b>Save &amp; Close</b> menu.

### Category errors

When you save a category, the Knowledge Center CMS validates the values you have entered into its fields. It highlights any fields that contain errors by:

- Marking their borders in red
- Adding an error message below them



# Viewing a category

To view the properties of a category, double-click the category in a list view or select the category and click **View**:

ဗီ Genesys Knowledge Center CMS	Knowledge b	ases 🗸
Knowledge Center FAQ	Categori	es
Categories	E 0	Name
🖳 Drafts		~ General
<ul> <li>No answer</li> <li>Votes</li> </ul>		Archiving
Modifications		~ Configuration
		Languages
		Roles

The category will look something like this:

	euge center Ser	Vei	
< / i	History		
			າ, last modified about 19 days ago by def
Name			
Genesys Knowledge Cent	er Server		
		· · · · · ·	
Parent category			
Server			
Deguments in this estar	Jory		
Documents in this categ			
Are there limitations on w	hat and how many sources the	CMS can index	
Are there limitations on W Can I offer a chat session	hat and how many sources the when negative feedback is pro	CMS can index	
Are there limitations on w Can I offer a chat session Can I prevent customers f	hat and how many sources the when negative feedback is pro rom seeing certain knowledge	CMS can index wided by the use, base articles?	
Are there limitations on W Can I offer a chat session Can I prevent customers f Can I prevent Knowledge	hat and how many sources the when negative feedback is pro rom seeing certain knowledge Center from answering certain	CMS can index wided by the use, base articles? questions?	
Are there limitations on W Can I offer a chat session Can I prevent customers f Can I prevent Knowledge Can I restrict access to th	hat and how many sources the when negative feedback is pro rom seeing certain knowledge Center from answering certain e knowledge base to my agent	CMS can index wided by the use, base articles? questions? s only?	
Are there limitations on W Can I offer a chat session Can I prevent customers f Can I prevent Knowledge Can I restrict access to th Can I search for knowledge	hat and how many sources the when negative feedback is pro- rom seeing certain knowledge Center from answering certain e knowledge base to my agent je base articles in French or ot	CMS can index wided by the use, base articles? questions? s only? her languages?	

In addition to its properties, you can see a list of the documents that belong to the category. Click a document's name to open it.

# Category history

While you are viewing a category, you can click the **History** button:

Genesys Knowledge Center Server	
← / Ē History	
Name Genesys Knowledge Center Server	
Parent category Server	
Documents in this category	)
Are there limitations on what and how many sources the CMS can index inform	ation fr
Can I offer a chat session when negative feedback is provided by the user?	
Can I prevent customers from seeing certain knowledge base articles?	/
Can I prevent Knowledge Center from answering certain questions?	ſ
Can I restrict access to the knowledge base to my agents only?	l
Can I search for knowledge base articles in Erench or other languages?	\
knowledge articles in	

This displays all of the versions of the category:



Select a version to see its contents. A history drop-down menu shows which version you are looking at:

Genesys Knowledge Center CMS		o Approved
← /  ☐ History	5	.nodified about 19 days ago by default
Historical version is shown. Draft, modified by default about 19 days ago		
Name	2	
Parent category		
Server		

Each line in the history drop-down shows the following information about the version:



- Approval status (1)
- How many days ago the version was created (2)

# Category version rollback

### Important

This functionality is available starting with the 9.0.001.xx release of the product.

Knowledge Center Server	From the category view click the <b>History</b> button.
Knowledge Center Server	The <b>Rollback</b> button is displayed immediately to the right of the history drop-down menu.
Knowledge Center Server	Select a historical version from the history drop- down menu.
Knowledge Center Server	The <b>Rollback</b> button is enabled after a historical version of the category is selected. Click the <b>Rollback</b> button.



# Comparing category versions

While editing a category you can compare the current version with any other version by clicking **Compare**:



Select the desired language and version from the drop-down lists that appear.

This mode is helpful when you want to:

- Compare the current version with a previous version
- · Copy content from a previous version
- Localize a category from one language to another

Compare mode displays the older version and the current version side by side:

Archiving					Approved
← 🗄 📋	Compare	English	<ul> <li>✓ −O− 19 day</li> </ul>	s ago 🛛 🗡	Save & Close 🗸
Name Archiving			1	>> * Name Archiving	
Description				>> Description	
Parent category					
🙁 General					

Click the Copy button (1) near a field to copy its value from the older version to the current one.

# Working with Customer Feedback

# Processing a "No answer" Item

#### Prerequisites

- The knowledge base has been defined in the CMS.
- A connection to Genesys Knowledge Center is available.
- Knowledge.CMS.Document.Author privileges have been assigned to the user.
- Knowledge.Author privileges have been assigned to the user.

#### Start

- 1. Select a knowledge base to display a list of its contents.
- 2. Choose the **No answer** tab.

and and				
	al scalars 🗸		· state	· Passing Salary
- and - a	C gentuppet	different sector data request		2010/08/10 10:20:29
	□ <u>±</u> =0, april	tere agent should answer to outsatter		2010/06/10 10:20 10
		search inside business area	settenite	2010/08/10 10:21:04
diation 1		same various search regard	selfamile	2016/06/19 10:20-01
	C grouped	Adv-doubled moting		2010/08/10 10:00:08
		sauch something new	selfamile	2010/09/19 10:20:12
	<ul> <li>Leaturappion</li> </ul>	wold of knowledge tearth	selector	3016-05-16-16-16-16
	exception	aptiniza-car preleg	settervise	2010/06/10 10:10:12
	C grok.qut	andul incodely: to apert		2010/06/10 10:10:10:00
	□ ± +m,spet	what we should all for transferinge		2010/06/16 16:17:27
	A market and a	14 <sup>11</sup>	selfamice	2010/08/1712/08/06
	1 100 cm	and at a set of the se	attente	2016/06/14 12 27-08
	A monome	and .	sattantis	2010/06/1111 00:00
	□ ± +0, april	www.h		2016/06/10 10:10:10
	C grouped	and constants		2010/08/10 10 10:12:24
	C Tearine Tearine Tearine	ann Antal Annal Annal Annan		attenia enal

3. Search via unanswered queries or filter them via timestamp, sender or media type.

Center ( A)	Queries without an	swer			
@ Lotteat	1 both the	to describe the			0
Documents	D Magette V	head	x ; and	* Familie Talas	
P Categories	C g. etc. april	control membrange for agent	-	2010/06/00 10:17:58	
C to prove	C gatespet	what we should ask for the state	-	2010-08-08-02-07-07	
E 1000					
O testination					

4. Choose one or more items from the list.

toren territory to	sette consponse this	with -		0
Center (AC)	Queries without a	rswer		
D Instituted	8 1ml 0	de Becarent		0
Incurrents	attantes v		( Al modes	* reaction in the second
Categories	C gath.opt	different useful into regard	enal	1011-01-01-021-28
Name of Street, or other	😥 🚊 mit, april	New agent about an over to container	enal	2016/06/10/15/2019
bats	<ul> <li>Locategy or</li> </ul>	ward-indirectories and	setter-ice	2010-08-10-10.21-14
Multiplana		with ratios such spath	settervice	2010/06/10/10/2014
	C ± vit.apre	date-stock read mosting	mail	1015-05-05 10:00.08
		worth workling was	selfanciae	2215-08-18-18.28-12
	C Lamage	world of anominitys search	settencios	2010/06/10 10:10:10
			and the second design of the local division of the local divisiono	

5. Process each item:

•	Search for similar	existing qu	estions	using the S	5earch b	utton.
	d Genesys Knowledge Center CM	S Knowledge bases +				
	Center FAQ	Documents				
	Cashboard	Create -	/ 🗉	B Review	Approve -	

Dashboard     Create     Periex     Approve     Periex     Approve     Periex     Approve     Periex
Documents     Operation
Categories Can I do Search Engine Optimization for articles creater Canesys Knowledge C
No answer     Why do I need the Genesys Knowledge Center CMS?
Drafts What is Genergys Knowledge Center?
Modifications What is the Sample UI?
How does Generate Knowledge Center find the right answers to my questions?
Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?
Uthat is the difference between the Knowledge Cluster and the Knowledge Server?
Why is the correct answer shown as the second item in the ligt of answers?

Click the **Create document** button and create a new document based on the **No answer** item.

Center FAQ	genesys Draft
Cashboard	6 See L Over
Categories	Re-collegaries anxigued
Roanswer Ne Votes R Drafts	*Gention proop/
Modifications	*Answer $ \begin{array}{c} \hline \\ \hline $
_	

• Delete unnecessary items using the **Delete** button.

#### End

### Review No Answers Aggregated by Query

Queries that are marked as "No answer" can be grouped. This enables the Knowledge manager to analyze a possible weak point in the knowledge base.

#### Start

1. Click **No answers aggregated by topic** from the No answer tab:

enter FAQ	Queries	without a	15WQF	
(Bear)		iner a	n deuroat	
america.		fighter of		da transport
agarites.			different confed (das request	
-			hes agent sheadd answer'rs sustainen	
			anarch inside business area	stania
Real and			same varius south report	stania
		1	tele and real metry	
		1	much scrafting on	atlanta
		1	work of involving south	staria
			splinie or drifty	attenia
	0	1	work it is control to a sport	and and

- 2. The following information appears:
  - A list of **No answer** grouped search queries.
  - Queries grouped in a tree format.
  - The number of items in each group and in the **Appearance column** the number of times each item was used by customers.
- 3. Review the list. For example, click to expand each group to view the grouped queries.
  - The **Queries with answer** list can be filtered according to a specific time frame (for example, All time, Today, Yesterday, Last week and Last month).
  - From the expanded list you can search for similar questions and/or click the **Create document** button to create a new document based on the **No answer** list.

the Knowledge			
Center FAQ	Queries without answer		
@ Dorman	Land Contractor		B 0 0
E Boursette	C beg	1 Appendix *	Alter -
P Campriss	a linker	140	
a to other	0	140	
Tests	C . Her See	-	
Metarina			
	and and appendix and appendix		
	a such solution as a such sol		
	C section to be and		
	anti-straning-sect		
	0		
	0 + Nr		
	· · Merimper		

End

# Processing Votes

#### Prerequisites

- The knowledge base has been defined in the CMS.
- A connection to Genesys Knowledge Center is available.
- Knowledge.CMS.Document.Author privileges have been assigned to the user.

#### Start

- 1. Select a knowledge base to display a list of its contents.
- 2. Choose the **Votes** tab.

Knowledge Center FAQ	Vote	S		
Dashboard	E	8		
Documents		Document Question	All senders 🛛 🔿	Query
Categories		test counts	1 anonymous	test count
No answer		test counts	1 anonymous	test count
(VIII)		What are alternative questions?	<u>∉</u> wde_agent	how should i ask questions?
Modifications		How can I add search capability to a custom agent desktop?	₫ wde_agent	search
		test counts	1 anonymous	test count
		test counts	1 anonymous	test count
	0	What types of events does Genesys Knowledge Center on		search

3. Choose one or more items from the list. List of Votes can be:

Item	Description
Constant Constan	Filtered by Document Question/Title and sorted (ascending or descending)

Item	Description
• Construction         • Construction         • Construction           • Construction         • Construction         • Construction         • Construction           • Construction         • Construction         • Construction         • Construction         • Construction           • Construction         • Construction         • Construction         • Construction         • Construction           • Construction         • Construction         • Construction         • Construction         • Construc	Filtered by type of sender (votes from customers or from agent)
Version standing         Version standing           Version standing	Filtered by the search query
Constrained and a second a	Filtered by Vote type (Like, Dislike or Stared Rating)
	Filtered by time period and sorted (ascending or descending) by date

4. Process each item:

rised.	8					iii ()
unants	8	beaust bodies 4	All and en 🗸 🗸		tile v Connect	Providen States
inger Mere		hed much	A manyment	had court		2010-04-15-12-08-17
1114		bed south	1 mayres	hed south		2019-04-15-13-58-42
		Mul an afernative garations?	g water, speci	New should i ask guestions?		2010-04-10 12-10-04
Traffic a	88	Now can have wanth experising to a content agent descept	<u>1</u> #8,391	meth		2010-04-05 12 12 10
		ted south	1 analysis	Red court		2010/04/10 12:00:15
		ted courts	1 anatyreus	Not court		2010-0-1212-0220
		Multippe of events does benegic Knowledge Center rec	g wate, april	sant		2010-04-01 10-24-00
		We work any results returned from my query?	g atus	why aren't any results related from my gamp?		3075-14-00 10 17 08
		Carl search for invasivity taxe articles in french or other.	g otas	seed.	*	2010-14-09 10.23.00
		Now carriant wards equiliby to a content agent desimp?	Langeron	april .		20110-04-00-11-02-40
		You can last worth capability to a current agent desition?	₫ vik.spri	seed.		2010-0-08-1121-07
		Non-carriad and capabily transition agent destrop?	A marginese	samh		2010-04-02-12-12-08
		Now can hadd wards capability to a contorn agent denitop?	g water, spect	search .		2010-03-02-04-42-38
		How should Lask guestions?	1.101.000	and the bins	*	2010-02-05 10-02-16
		Now can last worth equility to a content specification?	A water	meth		300 YE 416 YE 10 10 W
			-			

#### 5. Review vote

Center FAQ	Is agent feedback treated differently from customer feedback?
Dashboard	Create document
Documents	$\frown$
Categories	Rating ****
No answer	customer commerci very good search results
Votes	is agent tecased created differently from customer feedback?
Drafts	Liess than a minute of reading / 60 words
Modifications	Both agent and customer feedback allow Knowledge Center to improve the quality of its responses. However, in most cases, agent feedback is co which agents can help create and improve knowledge via the Workspace plugin and the Knowledge Center CMS. Refer to the Knowledge Center U
	Categories (in English)
	~ Ceneral
	Feedback
	v Solutions
	Genesiys Knowledge Center Server
	Additional
	Channels any

6. Add a search query as an alternative question for the upvoted document using the **Add as alternative** button. Or **Edit** existing document. Or **Create** new document basing on search query.



7. Delete appropriate items using the **Delete** button.

#### End

### Review Votes Aggregated by Documents

Every vote is connected to a document that has been liked, rated, or commented. So, with this in mind, you can view a list of documents where feedback was provided, and under each of those documents you will find all connected Votes.

#### Start

1. Click Vote aggregated by documents from the Vote tab:

1				••• 201001 • •
				$\sim$
All senders 🗸 🤟	Guery	All types 🔍 🗸	Comment	Votes apprepated by documents
anonymous	test count	*		2019-04-15 13:56:17
anonymous .		<b>★</b> ☆☆☆☆	123	2019-04-15 13:56:13
1 secrymous	test count	+		2019-04-15 13:56:11
1 anonymous	test count			2019-04-15 13:55:42
				2019-04-15 12:15:04

2. On the next tab you will see the following information:

Demonst						
boariers	D Insertion	TelaTendania A Alfondes v	Garry Prod	in 1 Maple 1	Stand 1 Canned	
Callegories	O Kensel altered up blig to.	18		1	10000007	
No. of Concession	<ul> <li>Instants</li> </ul>		4		4	
into .	O My and any mails stand to.	,	1	1	4.00000	
and and and	<ul> <li>Invitegit Menaler strellet.</li> </ul>		1	1	+	
	O californicoverparios ind.	1	1		4	
	<ul> <li>Gan bit South Brighter Systemication</li> </ul>		,		16	
	O caria and to involve process.	1	1			
	<ul> <li>Her seriesigninning formula formula.</li> </ul>	1		1	10	
	O A Configability of the advance.	1			48	
	In the set of particular to the set of part	1			4	
	O Mid an alreading perioral	1	1			
	In the deal lab gedies?				+	
	O Matte Servey's Contradge Center?	1				
	<ul> <li>Material participation in a state in t.</li> </ul>	1			1	
	O Heritges d'events then beneget.	1	1			
	I Mathaperceler Estate Mat.	1			4 C	
	I Mail composeds are included in it.	1			*	
	<ul> <li>Gampoort Knotkdge Detter In</li> </ul>	1				

- A list of documents with related Votes.
- The total number of unprocessed Votes for each document which can be sorted (ascending or descending).
- The number of Positive and Negative Votes which can be sorted (ascending or descending).
- The average star-rating for documents (only unprocessed rating records are counted in this case), which can be sorted (ascending or descending).
- 3. You can also expand the list of Votes under each particular document:

-ledge	Line	and the second second								·
142 mail	2008									
NET'S		Annual Sector 1	testimites *	identes - v	terry	Polite 1	toptic (	famil 1	Comment	Transference in Alexandre
riet t		· Non-call fall search capability to	11					1.1018867		
	0	· Instants								
	0	· Hey work any results articles his.	1				1.00	4.1110.005		
afters 1				g onut					100	2010/04/08 12:11:04
				g antast	why aren't any results interval from inc.	~				2019/04/09 10:12:07
				T montane					new herdback	3811543-38 13 11 37
				1 morphism	term teterili	*				2019-02-28 12 11 20
				T modulos	hat	~				2010/02/2010 12:04:08
				1 morphism				4		2019-02-08-02-04-03
				T module	lent .		*			301942-2612-54/03
		<ul> <li>Now long is information at out in t.</li> </ul>	5			3	1			
		<ul> <li>Ganitators involtedge articles in elf.</li> </ul>	1			,		4		
		<ul> <li>Can indeclose children bygine bytimicaria.</li> </ul>	4			1		1.5		
		<ul> <li>Can Frequencies for tensories by taxes at</li> </ul>	1			1				
		<ul> <li>How can I amign General Microsoft.</li> </ul>	1				1	2.5		
		<ul> <li>Can (patient the articles automotio)</li> </ul>	1					43		
		<ul> <li>Now do 1 and figure two localizings .</li> </ul>	1					4		
		<ul> <li>Wat an atmatic parallel?</li> </ul>				1				

This includes:

- Sender (Agent or Customer) list which can be filtered to show only Customer's or Agent's Votes.
- Search query which was done before Vote query.
- Type of particular Vote (Positive/Like, Negative/Dislike).
- Comment added during rating document.
- Vote timestamp (votes can be filtered by time period and the filter is applied to all aggregated records on this view).
- 4. From this view you do the same actions like from simple list of Votes:
  - Review vote.
  - Add a search query as an alternative question for the up-voted document using the **Add as alternative** button; or, you can edit the existing document; or you can create a new document basing on a search query.
  - Delete appropriate items using the Delete button.

# Processing Drafts

#### **Prerequisites**

- The knowledge base has been defined in the CMS.
- A connection to Genesys Knowledge Center is available.
- Knowledge.CMS.Document.Author privileges have been assigned to the user.

#### Start

1. Select a knowledge base to display a list of its contents.

2. Choose the **Drafts** tab.

8	Knowledge Center FAQ	Draft	S		
¢	Dashboard	8	Create document		
	Documents	×	From date To date	Question	Answer
•	Categories	Ø	2019-02-22 15:19:05	How do I understand risks and rewards and investment plan	New DRAFT document for
	No answer Votes				
2	Drafts				
Ð	Modifications				

- 3. If any drafts are awaiting review, they are present under this tab.
- 4. Process each item: Create a new document or Delete a draft.



End

# Publishing

### Overview

The publishing process ensures that data authored and approved in the CMS is available for your agents and customers. During the publishing process, all approved documents and approved categories are transferred from the Knowledge Center CMS to the Knowledge Center Server. As soon as these documents are transferred to Knowledge Center Server they are immediately available for searching by your agents and customers.

There are several ways to publish your documents. You can:

- Publish from the document list
- Publish from the modification menu
- Configure scheduled publishing (synchronization)

### What version of the document is published?

There are several key rules of document versioning for publishing:

- Only the approved version of the document is published
- If the document has several approved versions, the most recent approved version is selected for publishing
- If the latest approved version of the document has the Expiration date defined and that date has passed, the document is not published

### Publishing documents

#### Publishing from document list

- 1. From the left-hand sidebar menu, click **Documents**.
- 2. Click **Publish**.

Read and		2 8 8 mm mm -						rates	
	٠			- ng	-			matter	
-		What is a knowledge base?		-	-	•	 	1	
-		Nor is real- on involving-land		-				1 days repo	
	٠	A single crossel ( into perce		10		•		Transport	
-		This is a way visit first		-			 	Transport	
		free restrict access to the investigation to my applies only?		-		•	 ٠	11.000.000	
		Carr Loan Hy matr CARL system instead of the Carteryn Householge Carter CARD		10	-	•		11000	
		fee too being thousange bets a coltai assignt?		-		•		11.000.000	
		Car tradigate try tradition approval workflow and through I		10	-	•		11.000	
		My do insuit the beauty Noviety down 1987		140		•		11.000.000	
		Han ani anigi benega kenelaji belefejin te ny spelit		140	-	•	 ٠	11.000	
		New card at assess setting for my administration and nanagers?		-	-	•		11.000.000	
		New and active date transmignation of their			-	•		11000	
		tion large involving larter too for multimaxpromants and your attack			-	•		11.000	
		How and and exactly qualify to a culture agent meeting?		10	-	•		11000	
		Sac inclosed display lphristics to advise coaled in the lawspotteenings large 2007		-	-	•		11.000	

 Confirm the operation in the dialog window by clicking **Publish** once more. At the bottom of the screen, you will first see a notification that your document(s) are being published:

1 notifications	Hide All
Publishing data	×

Then you'll see the notification confirming the document(s) are published:



4. The documents get a status of "Published" as indicated by the blue check icon:

Knowledge Center FAQ	Documer	nts					
Dashboard	Create	- Review Approve -				Publish	- 6
Documents	0	Question		All Statuses 🗸 🗸	0	Modified	
ategories		Can I store knowledge articles in different languages?	FAQ	0	~	1 seconds ago	
o answer		How do I import data into my knowledge base?	FAQ	0	~	1 seconds ago	
rafts		Is agent feedback treated differently from customer feedback?	FAQ	Ø	~	1 seconds ago	
odifications		Should I let Genesys Knowledge Center Server know how many answers a user viewed?	FAQ	Ø	~	1 seconds ago	
		Why is the correct answer shown as the second item in the list of answers?	FAQ	0	~	1 seconds ago	
		What is the difference between the Knowledge Cluster and the Knowledge Server?	FAQ	0	~	1 seconds ago	
		What is a knowledge base?	FAQ	0	~	1 seconds ago	
		Can I use Genesys Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?	FAQ	0	~	1 seconds ago	
		How are attachments used in finding the right answer to a question?	FAQ	0	~	1 seconds ago	
		How can I add search capability to a custom agent desktop?	FAQ	0	~	1 seconds ago	
		What Is Genesys Knowledge Center?	FAQ	0	~	1 minute ago	
		How does Genesys Knowledge Center find the right answers to my questions?	FAQ	0	~	1 minute ago	
		What is the Sample UI?	FAQ	0	~	1 minute ago	
		Why do I need the Genesys Knowledge Center CMS?	FAQ	0	~	2 minutes ago	
>		Can I do Search Engine Optimization for articles created in the Genesys Knowledge Cente	FAQ	0	~	2 hours ago	

#### Publishing modifications

Accessible from the left-hand sidebar menu, the **Modifications** view allows you to see the changes (approved and deleted documents) that are awaiting the next cycle of scheduled publishing (synchronization). Here you can enforce synchronization by clicking the **Synchronize** button.

#### Important

When you click the **Synchronize** button you instruct the Knowledge Center CMS to immediately execute the synchronization process of all changes in the **Modifications** view to the Knowledge Center Server. This means that all approved documents are published to the Server and all deleted documents are removed from the Server.

	Denter CMS	E Trowle	dga bases +		0	- 0- pt.	ome gint,
Knowledge Center FAQ		Modif	fications				
Documenta		в				Synchronize	0
Categories		R	The	Language	Type	Mudified	
Drafts		R	Can I use Senergis Knowledge Center as a virtual assistant?	English	APPROVED	40 seconds ago	
No answer		8	Now can I set access control for my administrators and managers?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
TOTAL		R	How can I archive older knowledge base articles?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
Modifications		8	Now can I add search capability to a custom agent desktop?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		R	Can I die Search Engine Optimization for articles created in the Generys Knowledge Center CMID?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		×	Can I have my CMS store content in a database or other data store?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		8	Is agent feedback treated differently from customer feedback?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		B	Can I prevent Knowledge Center from answering certain questions?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		8	Why do I need the Workspace plugin?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		×	Why aren't any results returned from my query?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		8	How does my fwedback help Generys Khowledge Center?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		×	Do the Knowledge Center CMS and the Knowledge Center Server use the same data?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		B	How long is information stored in the Natorical database?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		8	What reporting data is available in the Pulse plugin?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	
		R	Does Generys Knowledge Center know how much time a person spends reading each article?	English	APPROVED	3 hours ago	

To complete the process, you are asked to select which language(s) are to be used for the synchronization.

		×
	Knowledge base synchronization	
	Languages for synchronization	
	All languages	
	German	
V	English	

#### Scheduled publishing (synchronization)

Synchronization is a convenient and reliable way of making documents available for use. It is strongly encouraged to set up a synchronization schedule according to your needs. This will ensure all the approved content is available in a timely manner.

#### Important

Synchronization can be configured for **Content source: CMS** knowledge bases only.

To edit synchronization options you need to expand **Properties** at the bottom of the Knowledge Base form.

Enabling Synchronization

To enable synchronization:

- 1. Expand **Properties** in the bottom of the Knowledge Base page.
- 2. From the **Synchronization** section:

Automatic synchronization disabled	Automatic synchronization disabled (default) - disable synchronization
Automatic synchronization enabled	Automatic synchronization enabled - enable synchronization

Synchronization Schedule

The following synchronization schedules are supported:

Scheduling		
Hourly	Repeat every 1 hour(s) at 0 minute(es)	
Jaily - select time		
Scheduling		
Daily	✓ Start at 9 00 AM	
Veekly - select weekdays and time		
Scheduling	Dava of work	
Weekly	Sunday	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Start at 9 : 00 AM	
fonthly - select day of the month and time		
/lonthly - select day of the month and time scheduling		
Aonthly - select day of the month and time scheduling Monthly	→ Day of month 1	
Nonthly - select day of the month and time Scheduling Monthly	→ Day of month 1 Start at 9 : 00 AM	
Nonthly - select day of the month and time Scheduling Monthly	Day of month 1 Start at 9 00 AM	
Anothly - select day of the month and time  Scheduling  Monthly  Dnce a year - select month, day of the month and time	Day of month 1 Start at 9 00 AM	
Monthly - select day of the month and time scheduling Monthly Drace a year - select month, day of the month and time scheduling	<ul> <li>✓ Day of month</li> <li>Start at</li> <li>9 200 AM</li> </ul>	
Monthly - select day of the month and time scheduling Monthly Drace a year - select month, day of the month and time scheduling Once a year	<ul> <li>✓ Day of month</li> <li>Start at</li> <li>9 ₹ 00 AM</li> <li>✓ Month</li> <li>January</li> </ul>	
Vonthly - select day of the month and time scheduling Monthly Droce a year - select month, day of the month and time scheduling Once a year	<ul> <li>Day of month</li> <li>Start at</li> <li>9 00 AM</li> <li>Month</li> <li>January</li> <li>Day</li> <li>1</li> </ul>	

#### Synchronized Content

#### Attachment synchronization

#### **Synchronization**

....

Attachments synchronization	
Disabled	~
Disabled	
Only URL	
URL and content	

- Disabled attachments are not by synchronized to the Knowledge Center Server
- **Only URL** link to attachment and attachment name is synchronized to Knowledge Center Server. Attachment content remains in Knowledge Center CMS.
- **URL and content** link, name, and attachment content is synchronized to the Knowledge Center Server; content is used by Server for search only. To download file, Knowledge Center CMS is used.



For successful attachment download from Knowledge Document option **externalURL** in section **cms.general** in **Application Cluster** should be correctly configured and point to Knowledge Center CMS URL (such as, http://<cms host>:<CMS default port>/gks-cms)

#### Synchronized Languages

Languages for synchronization: all	(Default) Synchronization enabled for all languages within the knowledge base
Languages for synchronization: selected	Languages that need to be synchronized (needs to be selected from the list of supported languages by knowledge base):

# Screening Rules

Screening rules scan an interaction and try to match either a destination address (who the message is going to, whether that is identified by an email address, a cell phone number, or some other parameter), a regular expression ("regex"), or both. Screening is performed by Classification Server when it is triggered by a Screen Interaction object in a routing strategy.

### Creating a new screening rule

- 1. Click **Tools > Screening rules**.
- 2. Click Create.
- 3. Fill in the mandatory fields (Name, and Order) as well as any other relevant fields for your new variable. See Field descriptions for more information.
- 4. Click **Save & Close** to apply your changes.

CMS	Knowledge bases +	Tools -	default default +	0 -	i.
Ne	w Screening	Screening rules Field codes			
	- Test	Variables	Save & Close 🚽	1	
ī	Name				
-	Order				l
	1				l
	Disabled			(	
R	ule				

# Field descriptions

Field	Description
Name	The name of the screening rule
Order	Technical information for routing which tells the system when to apply this screening rule if several rules exist.
Disabled	Toggle to disable or enable this screening rule.
Add patterns	Routing uses these patterns to find any email interactions with the screening rules that you define here, to provide a standard response. You can search the <b>Subject</b> , <b>Body</b> , <b>Header</b> , or <b>All</b> ,

Field	Description
	and indicate if the text or regex rules should apply to all or just one of these fields by toggling between "Find in every selected field separately" or "Find at least at one of the selected fields". This text or regex can be case sensitive or insensitive and the the patterns can be grouped together for more complex rule creation. Checking the <b>Not</b> button will tell the system to search for but ignore this text or regex. Note: These patterns can either be created using the graphical interface as described above or using the text editor.
Add addresses	<ul> <li>Routing uses these email addresses to find any email interactions with the screening rules that you define here, to provide a standard response. Email addresses are chosen from the list in the Add Email field (pre-defined in Configuration Manager through Configuration &gt; Environment &gt;</li> <li>Business Attributes &gt; E-mail accounts &gt;</li> <li>Attribute Values). By default, Rule screens the addresses the email is sent to however, if you wish to screen:</li> <li>an exact address - Exact address match should be selected</li> <li>an address from within the email itself rather than the To field - Screen mailbox should be selected.</li> </ul>
Add category	You can link your rule to a category meaning that when an interaction matches this screening rule, it receives a category name and a confidence level. The confidence level indicates that the system is X percent confident that this interaction belongs in this category. X percent is the Relevancy value that you will set here.
# Testing Screening Rules

# Requirements

Classification server must be added into the connection of Knowledge Center Cluster:

Home + Applications + App	fortions - g	c-cluster all Properties					(Cheer	E Debes	Mare To
General	Conner	tions							 Dence 1
Connections		larger	burned at	Canadian Perfectal	Leath, 8	famile - 1	Taxable		
Parts		pa (11)-10					Unincur Trace Media		
Teranto	- T-						Unincest Trace Made		
Options									
Persistent									
Andread and Andread									

## Use Case

1. Check the screening rule.



2. Click **Test** button.

Creat	• /	P	Test Jm	
	Order	¢	Name	
V	1		Test Rule 1 (email)	
0	1		Test Rule 2 (pattern)	
	1		Test Rule 3 (error)	

3. Click **Create/Edit/Delete** test message.

+ /		
Tent Messages		* Relevancy Level
Name	Description	Addressed to

- 4. Check the test message for testing with the rule.
- 5. Select the classification server.

- Helevancy Level	
15	
Addressed to	
customer.support@genesys.com	
Subject	
Header	
Text	
Classification Server	

6. Click the **Test** button.

	Тез
* Relevancy Level	
15	
Addressed to	
customer.support@genesys.com	
Subject	
Header	

7. Observe the results.

# Screening Rule Reference

## What Text Do Screening Rules Check?

Screening rules check the following parts of an interaction, depending on what you select in the Screening Rule Editor, and on the settings in the IRD screening objects:

- The subject, if you select that check box.
- The body, if you select that check box.
- The header, if you select that check box. See also "Subject, Body, and Header" information below, on how screening rules behave if two or more of the preceding are selected, and on the Pattern is found in any selected field (OR relation) checkbox.
- The destination address, if you have put anything in the Addresses area.
- The value of any key in the user data, if both of the following are true:
  - In the Multiscreen or Classify strategy object, you select a key in the User data key if specified dropdown list under Get screened data from.
  - In the Screening Rule Editor, you select the Body check box in the Pattern area. Use the check boxes to have the screening rule apply to the message body, subject, header, or any combination. You must select at least one.

User data is first associated with the interaction by the media server when it creates that interaction. As an example, E-mail Server associates the following user data with the interaction:

- FirstName (from Contact information)
- LastName (from Contact information)
- Mailbox (value of the address option in the [pop-client] section of the E-mail Server Application object)
- To (MIME header field)
- Subject (truncated to 512 characters)
- FromAddress (personal part of From header field)
- · FromPersonal (email address part of From header field)
- All Header fields (except Received, Return-Path, X-MIMETrack, Subject, Sender, From, To, Cc, Bcc) prefixed by Header\_
- All parent attached data (originally created by E-mail Server) which can be inherited; that is, all parent attached data:
  - not starting with Header\_
  - not starting with \_ (underscore)
  - not equal to GEM\_Failure
  - not equal to GEM\_FailureMsg

• not equal to GEM\_FailureArgs

User data may then be added or modified by a routing strategy.

## Email Sections to Screen

If you select more than one of the Subject, Body, and Header areas, a screening rule can behave in the following two ways:

- The default behavior is for the rule to apply to each area in turn; for example, with Subject and Body selected, the rule applies first to the Subject, then to the Body.
- The alternative behavior is for all selected items to first be concatenated so that the rule applies to all at once. There are two ways to achieve this alternative behavior.
  - To enforce it for all screening rules, set the subject-body-header option for Classification Server to true.
  - To enforce it for a particular screening rule:
    - 1. Leave subject-body-header set to false.
    - 2. Open the rule in the Screening Rule Editor.
    - 3. Set "Find at least one of selected field"

#### Important

Setting subject-body-header to true overrides any selection of the "Find at least one of selected field" for a particular rule.

## Functions, Arguments, and Operators

#### Functions

Screening rules can use three basic functions:

- Contain text (Find("<text>") in text mode), where <text> is a text string. It returns the result true if the interaction contains the exact string between quotes, ignoring case.
- Contain regex (RegExFind("<regular expression>") in text mode), where <regular expression> is a regular expression (see Regular Expressions). It returns the result true if the interaction contains any string that matches the regular expression between quotes.
- Matches Regex (RegExMatch("<regExp>") in text mode), where <regular expression> is a regular expression. It returns the result true only if the entire content of the interaction matches the regular expression between quotes.

#### Important

Contain regex and Matches Regex are the same except that Contain regex looks for a match anywhere in the body of the interaction, whereas Matches Regex demands that the entire body of the interaction match the regular expression.

#### Arguments

All functions have one required argument, which must appear between double quotation marks, as represented above (<text>) or (<regular expression>). This required argument can be followed by one or two optional arguments, depending on the function. The full form of each function, including all arguments, is as follows:

- Find("<text>", <IgnoreCase>)
- RegExFind("<regular expression>",<"key">,<IgnoreCase>)
- RegExMatch("<regular expression>",<IgnoreCase)</li>

#### Case insensitive (IgnoreCase)

The IgnoreCase argument must be a Boolean value (true or false). All three functions ignore case in searches unless you include the IgnoreCase argument with a value of false.

#### For example:

- Find("pacific") finds Pacific and pacific.
- Find("Pacific", false) finds Pacific but not pacific.

You can also substitute true for false—for example, Find("Pacific",true)—which means that case is ignored. So Find("Pacific",true)is the same as Find("Pacific").

Key

The key argument must be a string. If this argument is present, the system creates a key-value pair with the following characteristics:

- The key name is the string specified by the key argument, prefixed by ScrKey\_.
- The value is the material that the screening rule matches.

The system then adds this key-value pair to the interaction's attached data. For example, RegExFind("[A-Z]\d\d\d","ID\_code",false):

- 1. Finds strings consisting of a capital letter followed by three digits (see Regular Expressions).
- 2. Attaches to the interaction a key-value pair called ScrKey\_ID\_code whose value is A123, X005, M999, or whatever the function found in this interaction to match the regular expression.

#### Operators

Operators are of two types:

- Binary operators join two functions.
- Unary operators operate on a single function.

The operators are as follows:

&& is the binary operator "and". For example,

Find("interest rate") && Find("APR",false)

matches a message only if it includes both "interest rate" and "APR."

|| is the binary operator "or." For example,

Find("station wagon") || Find("convertible")

matches any message that includes either "station wagon" or "convertible" (or "Station Wagon" or "station Wagon" or "Convertible").

! is the unary operator "not." For example,

!Find("windows")

matches any message that does not include the word "windows."

You can combine ! with a binary operator. For example,

Find("bird") && !Find("goose")

matches any message that includes "bird" but does not include "goose."

#### Operator Precedence

p && q || r

is parsed as

(p && q) || r

For example, consider:

Find("debt") && Find("income") || Find("profit")

To paraphrase, this screening rule is basically "find X or find Y," where X is "debt" and "income," and Y is "profit." It matches both "debt exceeds income" and "profits are fantastic".

You can modify the default precedence by the explicit use of parentheses; for example:

Find("debt") && (Find("income") || Find("profit"))

This screening rule is basically "find X and find Y," where X is "debt" and Y is either "income" or "profit." It matches both "debt exceeds income" and "debts impact profit."

# Regular Expressions

A regular expression stands for, not one particular character string, but a class of character strings. For example, suppose that you want to find all interactions with U.S. Zip codes in them. U.S. Zip codes are five-digit numbers, so you could in theory write about 9,000 screening rules (Find("00000"), Find("00001"), Find("00002"), and so on).

Fortunately, you can use the special symbol \d, which stands for any digit, to write a screening rule using a regular expression: RegExFind("\d\d\d\d"). This screening rule matches any sequence of five digits. There are often several different ways of writing the same regular expression.

For instance, two items separated by a hyphen and enclosed in square brackets denotes a range of which the two items are endpoints. So [a-d]matches a, b, c, or d, and [5-8] matches any digit between 5 and 8; hence \d is the same as [0-9].

#### Important

In general usage regular expressions are case sensitive. However, in the Knolwedge Center CMS, regular expressions are not case sensitive unless you select this option as described in "Case insensitive".

The table "Elements of Regular Expressions" lists some of the most commonly-used elements of regular expressions:

#### Elements of Regular Expressions

Symbol	Meaning	Example
	Any character, including space	b.t matches <i>bat, bet, bit,</i> and <i>but</i> .
\d	Any digit	\d\d matches any pair of digits from 00 to 99.
\s	Space	\d\s\d matches 1 0, 5 9, and so on.
	Zero or more instances of the preceding expression	o*f matches oof, of, and f. me.*d matches med, mead, and meed.
+	One or more instances of the preceding expression	bre+d matches bred, breed and breeed.
?	Zero or one instances of the preceding expression	c?rude matches rude and crude.
{x}	X instances of the preceding expression	st.{2}k matches steak, stork , and stink.

Symbol	Meaning	Example
^	Any character except the following	s[^e]t matches <i>sat</i> , <i>sit</i> , and <i>sot</i> , but not <i>set</i> .
[]	Any characters or ranges within the brackets	Any characters: b[aeiou]at matches <i>boat</i> but not <i>brat</i> . Any range(s): [0-9]th matches <i>5th</i> , <i>6th</i> , <i>7th</i> [a-z] matches any lowercase letter; [A-Z] matches any uppercase letter.
١	Turns off the special meaning of the following symbol	\* matches the character * (asterisk);\. matches the character . (period or full stop).
1	Or	p]ig matches <i>big</i> and <i>pig</i> . Do not be confused:   means <i>or</i> in regular expressions, but    means <i>or</i> as one of the Operators used in screening rule formulas.

Here are some other points to keep in mind:

- Space is just another character. The regular expression savings account contains a space, and so it does not match the string savingsaccount.
- Word boundaries are not considered. The regular expression read matches not only read, but also reader, ready, spread, bread, and so on.
- Use parentheses to group parts of regular expressions together. For example, RegExFind("(\d{3}\.){2}") puts \d{3}\. in parentheses so that the number-of-instances item {2} applies to the all of d{3}\., not just to \. This expression matches any group of three digits plus period plus any three digits plus period (for example, 198.351.). Further examples are provided in Examples of Screening Rules below.
- Regular expressions make use of many more special characters and operators than those listed in the table "Elements of Regular Expressions." Much documentation on regular expressions is available on the Web. Because Genesys Knowledge Center CMS uses Java classes for regular expressions, it is best to consult documents describing the particular version of regular expressions used in Java.

#### **Examples of Screening Rules**

#### Credit Card Number

To find text that includes a typical credit card number, you need to match a sequence of four groups of four digits, each group separated by -(hyphen):

#### Important

This regular expression also works without the \ (backslash) before the hyphens. However, it is better practice to write \- for the character hyphen, because the hyphen also has a special use in range expressions like [a-z].

Or if you want to allow for the possibility that some people will omit the hyphens, use? to make the hyphen optional:

d/d/d/-?/d/d/d/-?/d/d/d/d/

You could also use the repetition notation to shorten each  $d\d\d\d$  to  $d{4}$ .

North American Phone Number

North American phone numbers consists of ten digits, grouped into two groups of three and one of four. There are a number of ways for the groups to be separated:

203-555-1234 (203) 555-1234 (203) 555-1234 203 555-1234 203 555.1234

The following regular expression matches all of the above:

The table "Phone Number Regular Expression" analyzes this regular expression.

Phone Number Regular Expression

Symbols	Туре	Notes
\d\d\d	Three digits	n/a
\(\d\d\d\)	Three digits, or three digits enclosed in parentheses	$\$ turns off the special meaning of the character (
[\s\.\-]?	Space or period or hyphen or zero	Any one of the items enclosed in square brackets, either once or not at all
\S*	Zero or more spaces	n/a
\d\d\d	Three digits	n/a
[\-\.]	Hyphen or period	Note again the need to use $\$
\d\d\d	Four digits	n/a

#### **Telltale Words**

To screen for interactions from dissatisfied customers, you might try a regular expression like the following:

(not\s([a-z]+\s)\*(pleased | satisfied)) | unhappy | complain

The first part of this expression matches not followed by zero or more words followed by pleased or satisfied; for example, not very pleased, not satisfied, not at all satisfied (but it also matches strings

like can not believe how pleased I am). The rest matches the single words "unhappy" and "complain."

# Variables

Variables can be used in interaction routing but are mainly your building blocks for field codes. The ability to access interaction data is perhaps the most frequent use of field codes. Although field code formulas can be very complicated, many simply retrieve a single piece of data, such as a contact's name.

## Creating a new variable

- 1. Click **Tools > Variables**.
- 2. Click Create.
- 3. Fill in the mandatory fields (**Name**, and **Default value**) as well as any other relevant fields for your new variable. See Field descriptions for more information.
- 4. Click Save & Close to apply your changes.

MS Knowledge bases +	Tools -	🗘 = default default = 🔂 🖣
New Variable	Screening rules Field codes	
+	Variables	Seve & Close +
* Name		
Туре		
String		· ·
* Default value		
		/
CONTRACTO		
	and the second se	

#### Field descriptions

Field	Description
Name	Mandatory. The name of the new variable.
Туре	Optional. String - alphanumeric Integer - numeric
Default value	Mandatory.

Field	Description
	The content of your variable.
Comment	Optional. Any additional comments you have regarding this new variable.

# Using Variables in Standard Responses

## Using UCS Data as System Variables in Standard Responses

In the example given in Field Codes Overview, the field code Contact.FirstName retrieves a piece of data about the interaction. The ability to access interaction data is perhaps the most frequent use of field codes. Although field code formulas can be very complicated, many simply retrieve a single piece of data, such as a contact's name.

You access Universal Contact Server data using predefined variables, called "System Variables."

These variables access three predefined objects. Each object has a name and a set of properties. In the example, Contact is an object and FirstName is one of its properties. The system variable Contact.FirstName retrieves the value of the FirstName property of the Contact object.

In similar fashion, there is a system variable for each object+property pair. The objects and properties that you can use in field code formulas are described in the following sections.

#### Interaction

This object represents the particular interaction being worked on, such as an inbound email. These are its properties:

- AttachedData
- DateCreated
- FromAddress
- Id
- Subject
- TimeZone
- ToAddress

#### Contact

This object represents the contact associated with the interaction being worked on. These are its properties:

- FirstName
- FullName
- Id
- LastName
- PrimaryEmailAddress

- PrimaryPhoneNumber
- Title

#### Agent

This object represents the agent working on the interaction. These are its properties:

- FirstName
- FullName
- LastName
- Signature

#### Important

Automated responses use the default agent. Create the default agent as a Person object just like any other in Configuration Manager. Then select this Person on the Automated Reply Agent screen of the E-mail Server configuration wizard (or set this Person as the value of the autobot-agent-login-name option in the E-Mail Processing section of the E-mail Server Java application). Since this is the Person who the automated response appears to be from, you may want to name it after your company or institution.

# Custom Variables

In addition to the system variables, you can use Knowledge Manager to create custom variables. Custom variables have the following properties:

- Their values are assigned by strategy objects.
- Therefore, standard responses that use field codes containing custom variables must have the usage type Autoresponse or Acknowledgment.

For an example of the use of a custom variable in a standard response, see Using a Custom Variable. For a complete description of the Routing objects that can use custom variables, see the Universal Routing 8.1 Reference Manual.

#### Important

The names of custom variables must begin with an alphabetic character or underscore, and the remainder of the name must consist only of alphanumeric characters or underscores. This differs from the requirements for the names of other objects, which may also contain hyphen and space. For example, 5-usercode is not an acceptable name for a custom variable, but it is acceptable as the name of a screening rule or category.

## Using Your Own Data in Standard Responses

It is possible to incorporate data that you keep external to Universal Contact Server into your standard responses (including automated responses). This data could include case numbers, account information, and so on. Remember that attached data always consists of key-value pairs.

Incorporating external data into standard responses is a two-step process:

- 1. Retrieve the external information and add it to the interaction as attached data. One place to do this is in a routing strategy (see Interaction Routing Designer Help).
- 2. Now that you have attached the data to the interaction, you can use the AttachedData property of the Interaction object to access the data and incorporate it into your standard response. The AttachedData property requires one argument, which is the key name. The result of the following formula is the value associated with the OrderStatus attached-data key:

<\$Interaction.AttachedData("OrderStatus")\$>

# Field Codes

The main use of field codes is to particularize standard responses. For example, you can use the field code <\$Contact.FirstName\$> in a response beginning Dear <\$Contact.FirstName\$>, which you send to dozens of recipients. In each message, <\$Contact.FirstName\$> is replaced by the first name of the addressee of the message (the contact) as listed in the Universal Contact Server database. The most common type of such text object is a standard response (triggered by an Autoresponse or Acknowledgement object), but you can also insert field codes into other types, such as chat transcripts, SMS messages, and forwarded or redirected emails. In some cases, the only place you can insert a field code is in the Subject line using the Format tab in a strategy object.

## Creating a custom field code

- 1. Click **Tools > Field codes**.
- 2. Click Create.
- Fill in the mandatory fields (Name, and Value) as well as any other relevant fields for your new variable. See Field descriptions for more information. When defining the value, you can use the following variables:
  - system variables a list of standard variables pre-defined in the configuration server.
  - **custom variables** a list of custom variables and routing values defined in the Variables section.
- 4. Click Save & Close to apply your changes.

w Field code Variables tame	Knowledge bases + Tools +	🗘 🖛 default ó	efault -
W Field Code Variables  Save & Close  Ause  Insert system variable  Insert custom variable  Insert system variable  Insert system variable  Insert system variable  Insert custom variable  Insert system variable  Insert custom variable  Insert system variable  Insert sy	Screeping rules		
Variables         Save & Close           Alsee         Insert system variable              •   195   25	EW FIEld CODe Field codes		
lane falue Insert system variable	← Variables	Save & Clos	•
anne Table Insert system variable - Insert custom variable - I ♥ I X mment			
talue Insert system variable	Name		
Insert system variable - Insert custom variable - IV IV St			
Insert system variable 🔹 Insert custom variable 🔹 😻 🔀	Value		
nment	Insert system variable 🕒 Insert custom variable 🕒 🖷 🔀		
nment			
mment			
nnet			
	omment		

#### Field descriptions

Field	Description
Name	Mandatory.

Field	Description
	The name of the new field code.
Value	Mandatory. A formula that you insert into an outgoing text object (such as an email) that the E-mail Server generates when triggered to do so by a routing strategy object. Note: Always be sure to check the completeness of your field code by clicking on the validate field code icon:
Comment	Optional. Any additional comments you have regarding this new field code.

# Overview

The main use of field codes is to particularize standard responses.

For example, you can use the field code <\$Contact.FirstName\$> in a response beginning "Dear <\$Contact.FirstName\$>", which you send to dozens of recipients. In each message, <\$Contact.FirstName\$> is replaced by the first name of the addressee of the message (the contact) as listed in the Universal Contact Server database.

More generally, a "field code" is a formula that you insert into an outgoing text object, such as an email that E-mail Server generates when triggered to do so by a routing strategy object.

The most common type of such a text object is a standard response (triggered by an Autoresponse or Acknowledgement object), but you can also insert field codes into other types, such as chat transcripts, SMS messages, and forwarded or redirected emails. In some cases, the only place you can insert a field code is in the **Subject** line using the **Format** tab in a strategy object.

The following is a complete list of the strategy objects that can use field codes either in a standard response or in the **Subject** line:

- Acknowledgement
- Autoresponse
- ChatTranscript
- Create EmailOut
- Create Notification
- Create SMS
- Forward
- RenderMessageContent

The following is a complete list of the strategy objects that can use field codes only in the **Subject** line:

- Redirect
- Reply from External Resource
- Send

When a text object containing such a formula is processed, the following happens:

- 1. The formula performs an operation, which produces a result.
- 2. The result replaces the field code in the text object.

This process of performing an operation and substituting its result is called "rendering."

#### Important

Field codes can be used in outgoing text objects only.

# Using Formulas in Field Codes

A complete reference list of field codes is available in the Genesys Field Codes Reference Information section.

In addition to system variables such as Contact.FirstName, field codes may contain formulas. This section provides an outline of formula usage. Details on many of these topics are provided in the Genesys Field Codes Reference Information section.

You must always delimit field codes by using <\$ ... \$>. If you type a field code directly into the body of a standard response, then you must enter the delimiters yourself. If you select from the list of field codes, then the delimiters are added automatically.

The text that appears inside the delimiters is a formula. Field code formulas are very similar to formulas in other applications, such as Microsoft Excel.

A *formula* is a sequence of one or more operands (such as numbers and text strings), separated by operators (such as + and -).

For example, in the following formula, 2 and 3 are operands and + is an operator:

#### <\$2 + 3\$>

Operands can be values that do not change (constants), or values that vary based on the context. In the previous formula, all the operands are constants, so the formula always evaluates to 5. The next formula, on the other hand, evaluates to a different value for each agent who uses it:

#### <\$Agent.Signature\$>

#### Field Code Syntax

To summarize field code syntax:

- A field code must be delimited by <\$ ... \$>.
- Alphabetic strings, whether constants in formulas or elsewhere in a field code, must be enclosed in double quotes.
- Numeric constants require no special treatment.
- You must use special characters for some purposes. For example, for your field code to render with a line break, you cannot simply type a carriage return. Instead, you must insert the expression \n. A list of these special characters is available.

#### HTML in Field Codes

With special configuration, field codes can contain HTML markup; for example, you could have a field code <\$my.agent.signature\$> defined as

```
Sam Agent<BR />
Acme Products<BR />
29 Exterior Blvd<BR />
Springfield, CX 09090<BR />
```

To enable this, you must use the Java property -Dsrl-field-code-allow-html=true, in one of the following ways:

- Add it to the JavaArgs section of ContactServerDriver.ini
- Add it as an argument to the startup command line in contactServer.sh.

## **Operator Precedence**

If you use more than one operator in a formula, the order in which they are evaluated depends on their relative *precedence* (higher precedence operators are evaluated first). For example, multiplication (\*) has a higher precedence than addition (+), so that the formula below evaluates to 14, not 20:

<\$2 + 3 \* 4\$>

You can use parentheses to override the default precedence. The formula below evaluates to 20:

<\$(2 + 3) \* 4\$>

For a complete list of operators and their relative precedence, see "Operator Precedence" in the Genesys Field Codes Reference Information section.

#### Data Types

Operands of several different types may appear in formulas:

- Number
- String (text)
- Date/time
- Boolean (true/false)
- Object (Contact, Interaction, and Agent)

Each data type behaves differently in formulas, and the operators have different meanings when you use them with different data types. For example, the + operator means "add" when used with numbers, but "concatenate" (paste together) when used with strings. This formula evaluates to *Uncle Sam Wants You* 

#### <\$"Uncle Sam " + "Wants You"\$>

In addition, some operators cannot be used with some data types at all. For example, you cannot use the multiplication (\* ) operator on two strings.

All formulas, regardless of their final data type, are converted to strings before being merged into your standard response. This conversion follows a set of default rules that depend on the data type. For example, the default rules for numbers round them off to integers. This formula causes 2 to be inserted into your standard response, even though the real result is 2.25:

<\$9 / 4\$>

You can use the Text function (see below) or format operator:) to override the default formatting. Either of the following formulas inserts 2.25 into your standard response:

<\$Text(9 / 4, "#.##")\$> <\$(9 / 4):"#.##"\$>

For a detailed list of data types and how you can use them, see "Data Types" in the Genesys Field Codes Reference Information section.

### Functions

When composing formulas, you can use many built-in functions. *Functions* are predefined formulas that perform calculations using values, called *arguments*, which you supply. To use a function, write its name, followed by an opening parenthesis, the arguments for the function separated by commas, and a closing parenthesis.

Function arguments may be of any data type, although individual functions may place restrictions on their arguments. Function arguments may be constants or formulas. The Length function, for example, takes a single string argument and returns its length in characters. This formula evaluates to 13:

<\$Length("Hello, world!")\$>

As another example, the Date function takes individual date components (year, month, day, and so on), and constructs a date/time value. The formula below evaluates to 1965-11-23 09:03:10:

<\$Date(1965, 11, 23, 9, 3, 10)\$>

Functions may act as arguments to other functions. The WeekdayName function takes a single date/ time argument and returns the day of the week as a string. The formula below evaluates to Tuesday:

```
<$WeekdayName(Date(1965, 11, 23, 9, 3, 10))$>
```

This formula evaluates to 7:

#### <\$Length(WeekdayName(Date(1965, 11, 23, 9, 3, 10))\$>)

For detailed descriptions of all available functions, see "Functions" in the Genesys Field Codes Reference Information section.

# Important If you want to combine data types, you must first convert the data types to text. Consider the following example: <\$ Agent.FirstName + Interaction.DateCreated \$> This formula causes an error, as it mixes two data types: Text (Agent.FirstName) and Date (Interaction.DateCreated). Instead, use the Text type for both types, as shown below:

Agent.FirstName + Text(Interaction.DateCreated)

#### Using Objects

All object/property pairs are also available in the Variables drop-down menu in the Field Code Editor.

Object properties can be of any data type. Agent.FullName, for example, is a string, but Interaction.DateCreated is a date/time.

The data type of an object property can even be another object. For example,

Contact.EmailAddresses yields another object called a ContactEmailAddressList. In cases such as this, you can access the properties of the resulting object by entering a period (.), followed by the property name, just as before. For example, the formula below evaluates to the number of email addresses assigned to the contact:

<\$Contact.EmailAddresses.Count\$>

Some object properties require arguments just as functions do. For these properties, write the arguments, enclosed in parentheses after the property name, just as before.

For example, the ContactEmailAddressList object has a property named Exists, which you can use to test whether a particular email address is assigned to a contact. The data type of this property is Boolean (true/false), and it takes one argument, the email address to test. For example:

<\$Contact.EmailAddresses.Exists("samd@acme.com")\$>

For detailed descriptions of all objects and their properties, see "Objects" in the Genesys Field Codes Reference Information section.

# Field Code Examples

This section presents examples of the use of field codes.

# Using a Custom Variable

**Purpose:** This is a simple example of the use of a custom variable in a standard response.

#### Prerequisites

This example assumes a category tree that includes categories called Cookbooks, Mysteries, and Reference.

- 1. In Knowledge Center CMS:
  - a. Create a variable called QueryTopic.
  - b. Create a field code called Query\_Topic that consists of the variable QueryTopic.
  - c. Create a standard response of type Autoresponse called AUTO that includes the sentence Thank you for your inquiry about <\$ Query\_Topic \$>.
  - d. Create the following screening rules:
  - e. Cookbook: RegExFind("cook") || RegExFind("recipe") || RegExFind("food") || RegExFind("cuisine")
  - f. Mystery: RegExFind("murder") || RegExFind("crime") || RegExFind("case of the") ||
     RegExFind("detective")
  - g. Reference: RegExFind("dictionar") || RegExFind("encyclopedia") || RegExFind("almanac")
- 8. In Interaction Routing Designer, create a strategy that applies these screening rules one after the other, assigning a different value to the custom variable for each screening rule:
  - a. Create a variable called var\_screen.
  - b. Create a strategy. Start the strategy with a Screen object. On the General tab of the Screen object, select the Cookbook rule.
  - c. On the Result tab, click Assign values of the key-value pairs. Then under Output values select var\_screen for Variable and enter ScreenRuleMatch for Key from output.
  - d. Connect the Screen object to a Generic Segmentation object. Create two segments: var\_screen = true and var\_screen = false.
  - e. Connect an Autoresponse object to the top green port (the one corresponding to true) of the Segmentation object. In the Autoresponse, select the Select standard response radio button and select AUTO in the associated drop-down list.
  - f. Still in this Autoresponse, go to the General tab and in the Field Codes area (bottom of the tab) click the New icon, enter QueryTopic under Key, and enter cookbooks under Value. This will generate an email that includes the sentence *Thank you for your inquiry about cookbooks*.

- g. Return to the Generic Segmentation and connect a new Screen object to its second green port (the one corresponding to false).
- h. On the General tab of the new Screen object, select the Mystery rule. On the Result tab, click Assign values of the key-value pairs. Then under Output values select var\_screen for Variable and enter ScreenRuleMatch for Key from output.
- i. Proceed as in Steps d-f: Connect this Screen object to a new Generic Segmentation, again with segments for var\_screen = true and var\_screen = false.
- j. As in Step e, connect a new Autoresponse object to the green port for true, select the AUTO standard response, and enter QueryTopic under Key. This time enter mysteries under Value.
- k. Return to the second Generic Segmentation's green port for false and repeat Steps g-j, creating a third Screen object and Generic Segmentation. In the Screen object, select the Reference rule; in the Segmentation object, set the custom variable to reference.

The figure "Strategy Using Custom Variable" shows the strategy as described. The single standard response AUT0 generates three emails, each with a different word filling the blank in *Thank you for your inquiry about* \_\_\_\_.



## Using a Complex Field Code

The following is an example of a complex field code:

<\$ If (Time() - Interaction.DateCreated > 14, "Please accept our apologies for not having replied sooner. ", "") \$>

This field code inserts a tardiness apology if more than 14 days have elapsed since the interaction first entered the system. It uses the function If, which has these properties:

- Its syntax is If (Boolean, TrueResult, FalseResult)
- If Boolean evaluates to True, it returns the second argument.

• If Boolean evaluates to False, it returns the third argument.

In this example, the three arguments of If are as follows:

- Time() Interaction.DateCreated > 14 A formula that returns True if the difference between the date created and the current system time is more than 14 days. (The result of a mathematical operation on dates is given in days.)
- 2. "Please accept our apologies for not having replied sooner. " A text string apologizing for tardiness, inserted if the formula evaluates to True.
- 3. The null string: if the reply is not late (the formula evaluates to False), nothing is inserted in it.

# Field Codes Reference Information

With field codes, you can compose standard responses that are automatically personalized when they are used. This feature is very similar to the Mail-Merge feature in word-processing applications such as Microsoft Word. Consider, for example, this standard response:

Dear <\$Contact.FirstName\$>,

......

<\$Agent.Signature\$>

This response has two field codes. When an agent inserts this response into an e-mail, the first field code, <\$Contact.FirstName\$>, is replaced by the contact's first name as it appears in Universal Contact Server. The second field code, <\$Agent.Signature\$>, is replaced by the agent's signature as it appears in Configuration Manager.

For example, if an agent named Danielle uses this standard response while replying to an e-mail from a contact named Sam, the result might look like this:

Dear Sam, ... Thank you for choosing My Cloud Security Systems. Sincerely,

Danielle Rodriguez Customer Support www.MCSS.com

For more reference information, see the following reference sections:

- Escape Codes and Sequences
- Data Types
- Operator Precedence
- Named Constants
- Functions
- Objects

# Escape Codes and Sequences

Since the delimiters <\$ and \$> have special meanings when they appear in field codes, you cannot include them "as is" in a standard response. If you want to write a standard response that includes either or both of these field code delimiters, you must insert a space between the two symbols that make up each delimiter. For example, here is a valid standard response:

These field codes are great! You begin them with < \$ and end them with \$ >.

# Data Types

The eServices Field Codes include the following data types:

#### Number

You use numbers in field code formulas in much the same way you would in other applications, such as Microsoft Excel. All arithmetic calculations are performed internally using floating point arithmetic (with the decimal point). Rounding occurs only during formatting.

When you write numbers in formulas, you can use scientific notation (for example, 12.34e-2 is the same as0.1234).

The Operators table lists the operators that you can use with numbers. (Some rows show more than one symbol for the same operator. In these cases, the symbols are synonyms.)

Operator	Description	Example	Result
-	Unary Minus	-4	-4
^	Exponentiation	2^3	8
•	Multiplication	2*3	6
1	Division	8/2	4
Mod	Modulus (Remainder)	14 Mod 5	4
+	Addition	2 + 3	5
-	Subtraction	2 - 3	-1
> GT	Greater Than	2 > 3	False
>= GE	Greater Than or Equal To	2 >= 2	True
< LT	Less Than	2 < 3	True

#### Operators

Operator	Description	Example	Result
<= LE	Less Than or Equal To	2 <= 3	True
= == EQ	Equal To	2 = 3	False
<> != NE	Not Equal To	2 <> 3	True
:	Format	2:"#.##"	2.00

#### String

Use the String data type to represent textual data. When you write a string in a formula, you must enclose it in double quotation marks. For example:

"The sixth sheik's sixth sheep's sick."

You can use the escape sequences shown in the Escape Sequences table to include special characters in a string, such as tabs or carriage returns.

It is also possible to use HTML tags in field codes.

Escape	Translates to
\a	Alert (Bell)
\b	Backspace
\f	Form Feed
\n	Line Feed (Newline)
\r	Carriage Return
\t	Horizontal Tab
\v	Vertical Tab
\'	Single Quotation Mark

#### Escape Sequences

Escape	Translates to
\"	Double Quotation Mark
11	Backslash

The Operators and Strings table lists the operators that you can use with strings. All the comparison operators are case insensitive. (Some rows show more than one symbol for the same operator. In these cases, the symbols are synonyms.)

Symbol	Meaning	Example	Result
+	Concatenation	"How" + "die"	"Howdie"
>GT	Greater Than	"A" > "B"	False
>=GE	Greater Than or Equal To	"A" >= "B"	False
<17	Less Than	"A" < "B"	True
<=LE	Less Than or Equal To	"A" <= "a"	True
= ==EQ	Equal To	"A" = "a"	True
<> != NE	Not Equal To	"A" NE "B"	True

#### **Operators and Strings**

#### Date and Time

Date/Time values in field-code formulas represent specific moments (for example, February 3, 2002, at 10:03:55 AM). The most common operations performed on Date/Times are comparisons (for example, <, =, and so on).

If you subtract two Date/Time values, the result is the number of days between them. See the Date/ Time Example 1 table for examples.

#### Date/Time Example 1

Formula	Result
Date(2002, 11, 23) - Date(2002, 11, 22)	1
Date(2002, 11, 22) - Date(2002, 11, 23)	-1
Date(2002, 11, 23) - Date(2002, 11, 23, 12)	-0.5

If you add (or subtract) a number to (from) a Date/Time, the result is the Date/Time moved forward (or backward) by that many days. See the Date/Time Example 2 table for examples.

#### Date/Time Example 2

Formula	Result
Date(2003, 11, 23) + 1	2003-11-24 00:00:00
Date(2003, 11, 23) - 0.5	2003-11-22 12:00:00

#### Boolean

Set Boolean values in field-code formulas to either True or False. You can use the True and False keywords to write a Boolean value explicitly, although this is rarely required. Comparison operators (for example, <, =, and so on) always yield Boolean results.

The Operators and Booleans table lists the operators that you can use with Booleans. (Some rows show more than one symbol for the same operator. In these cases, the symbols are synonyms.)

#### Operators and Booleans

Symbol	Meaning	Example	Result
Not !	Unary Not	Not False Not True	True False
And &&	Logical And	False And False False And True True And False True And True	False False False True
Or	Logical Or	False Or False False Or True True Or False True Or True	False True True True

Symbol	Meaning	Example	Result
XOr	Logical Exclusive Or	False XOr False False XOr True True XOr False True XOr True	False True True False
= == EQ	Equal To	True = False	False
<> != NE	Not Equal To	True <> False	True

# **Operator Precedence**

The Operator Precedence table lists all the operators that you can use in field-code formulas.

- Unary operators are shown with [Unary] after their symbols.
- The operators are listed in order of precedence, with operators of higher precedence above those of lower precedence.
- Operators in the same row have the same precedence. If two operators of the same precedence are
  used in a formula, then they are computed left to right if they are binary, and right to left if they are
  unary.
- You can write some operators using more than one symbol. In these cases, the alternatives are shown in parentheses.

#### Operator Precedence Table

Operator
+ [Unary], - [Unary]
^
• , /, Mod
+, -
< (LT), <= (LE), > (GT), >= (GE), = (==, EQ), <> (!=, NE)
Not (!) [Unary]
And (&&)
XOr
Or (  )
:

# Named Constants

The Keyword Equivalents table lists keywords that are equivalent to certain useful values. Many of these values can be represented in other ways, but the keywords are provided for convenience.

#### Keyword Equivalents Table

Keyword	Equivalent
iccCr	"\r"
iccLf	"\n"
iccCrLf	"\r\n"
iccBackslash	"//"
Null	None
True	None
False	None
Pi	3.14159265358979
E	2.71828182845904

# Functions

The Field Codes include the following functions:

- String Functions
- Date/Time Functions
- Type Conversion
- Mathematical Functions
- Miscellaneous Functions

# String Functions

The Field Codes include the following string functions:

#### [+] Find

Find

#### Description

Finds a substring within a string. Returns the 0- based character position of the found substring. Returns -1 if the substring is not found. Syntax

Find(SearchIn, SearchFor )

#### Find String

Argument	Description
Searchin	The string to search in
SearchFor	The string to search for

#### Remarks
# Examples of Find String

Example	Result
<\$Find("Hello, World!", "H")\$>	0
<\$Find("Hello, World!", "lo")\$>	3
<\$Find("Hello, World!", "Qbert")\$>	-1

# [+] Left

### Left

### Description

Returns a string containing a specified number of characters from the left side of a specified string. **Syntax** Left(*String, Number*)

### Left String

Argument	Description
String	The string from which the leftmost characters are returned.
Number	The number of characters to return. If $\theta$ , an empty string ("") is returned. If greater than the length of String, then the entire string is returned.

### Remarks

# Examples of Left String

Example	Result
<\$Left("Hello, World!", 5)\$>	"Hello"
<\$Left("Hello, World!", 0)\$>	
<\$Left("Hello, World!", 25)\$>	"Hello, World!"

# [+] Length

Length

**Description** Returns the length of a string. **Syntax** Length(*String*) **Remarks** 

### Example of Length String

Example	Result
<\$Length("Hello")\$>	5

# [+] Mid

Mid

### **Description** Returns a specified substring of a string. **Syntax**

Mid(String, Start, Length)

### Mid String

Argument	Description
String	The string from which the substring is returned.
Start	The 0- based character position at which the substring begins. If Start is greater than the length of String, then an empty string ("") is returned.
Length	The number of characters to return. If <i>Length</i> is $0$ , then an empty string ("") is returned. If <i>Length</i> is greater than the portion of <i>String</i> after <i>Start</i> , then all the characters after <i>Start</i> are returned.

### Remarks

### Examples of Mid String

Example	Result
<\$Mid("Hello, World!", 2, 3)\$>	"llo"
<\$Mid("Hello, World!", 25, 5)\$>	
<\$Mid("Hello, World!", 7, 25)\$>	"World!"

# [+] Replace

### Replace

### Description

Returns a string in which all instances of a specified substring have been replaced with another string. Syntax

Replace(String, Find, ReplaceWith)

### Replace String

Argument	Description
String	The string containing the substring to replace
Find	The substring to search for
ReplaceWith	The replacement string

### Remarks

### Examples of Replace String

Example	Result
<\$Replace("Hello", "I", "*")\$>	"He**o"
<\$Mid("Hello", "j", "*")\$>	"Hello"

Example	Result
<\$Mid("Hello", "Hello", "")\$>	

# [+] Right

Right

### Description

Returns a string containing a specified number of characters from the right side of a specified string. **Syntax** Right(*String, Number*)

### **Right String**

Argument	Description
String	The string from which the rightmost characters are returned.
Number	The number of characters to return. If $0$ , an empty string ("") is returned. If greater than the length of <i>String</i> , then the entire string is returned.

### Remarks

### Examples of Right String

Example	Result
<\$Right("Hello, World!", 5)\$>	"orld!"
<\$Right("Hello, World!", 0)\$>	
<\$Right("Hello, World!", 25)\$>	"Hello, World!"

# [+] To Lower

### ToLower

### Description

Returns a string that has been converted to lowercase.

Syntax ToLower(String) Remarks

### Example of ToLower String

Example	Result
<\$ToLower("Hello, World!")\$>	"hello, world!"

# [+] ToUpper

ToUpper

Description Returns a string that has been converted to uppercase. Syntax ToUpper(String ) Remarks

### Example of ToUpper String

Example	Result
<\$ToUpper("Hello, World!")\$>	"HELLO, WORLD!"

# [+] Trim

Trim

#### **Description** Returns a copy of a specified string without specified leading or trailing characters. **Syntax** Trim(*String*, [*CharSet*])

### Trim String

Argument	Description
String	The string from which to trim

Argument	Description
CharSet	Optional. The characters to trim. If omitted, then white space (" $\t r\n $ ) is trimmed.

### Remarks

### Examples of Trim String

Example	Result
<\$Trim(" Howdie ")\$>	"Howdie"
<\$Trim("Howdie", "Howd")\$>	"ie"
<\$Trim("Howdy", "y")\$>	"Howd"

# [+] TrimLeft

TrimLeft

**Description** The same as Trim, except it trims only leading characters. **Syntax** TrimLeft(*String*, [*CharSet* ])

# [+] TrimRight

TrimRight

Description The same as Trim, except it trims only trailing characters. Syntax TrimRight(String, [CharSet ])

# [+] FullName

Wrap

### Description

Returns a string that has been word-wrapped to a specified line length. **Syntax** Trim(*String, LineLength, [LinePrefix, [Eol ]*])

### Wrap String

Argument	Description
String	The string to wrap.
LineLength	The maximum length, in characters, of any line, including LinePrefix (if specified), but not Eol.
LinePrefix	Optional. A string to prefix to each line. Often used to "quote" e- mails being replied to. If omitted, lines are not prefixed.
Eol	Optional. A string to use as a line terminator. If omitted, lines are terminated with "\r\n" as usual.

### Remarks

```
Example:
<$Wrap(> "Once upon a midnight dreary",<
11,<
">",<
"*\r\n")$>
```

```
Result:
>Once upon*<
>a midnight*<
>dreary*
```

# Date and Time Functions

The Field Codes include the following date/time functions:

# [+] Date

Date

Description
Returns a Date/Time constructed from individual components or a string.
Syntax
Date(Year, Month, Day [, Hour[, Minute[, Second ]]])
Or
Date(String[, String])

### Date String

Argument	Description
First argument	The string to parse.
Second argument	Optional. The locale that must be used to parse the first segment. Some examples include: en_US for English (United States), en_GB for English (United Kingdom), and fr_FR for French (France). See See Values for fieldcode-format-locale Option for a complete list.

# Important

Date(String[, String]) is not recommended. See the "Remarks" section.

#### Remarks

- When using the first syntax function, the optional arguments each default to 0 if omitted. For example, <\$Date(1965, 11, 23)\$> is equivalent to <\$Date(1965, 11, 23, 0, 0, 0)\$>.
- When using the second syntax function, the date is constructed by parsing the first string. If the optional argument is omitted, first the E-mail Server fieldcode-format-locale option (See fieldcode-format-locale) in the email-processing section is used if present. Otherwise, the platform locale is used. For example:
  - <\$Date("November 23, 1965 9:03 AM")\$> if the fieldcode-format-locale option or platform
    locale is set to en\_US.
  - <\$Date("23 novembre 1965 21:03:00", "fr\_FR")\$>

# Important

Avoid using this second syntax function, since it successively tries multiple Date/Time patterns in order to parse the first argument and so consumes a great deal of CPU time. Also, these patterns are not very lenient. For example, <\$Date("November 23, 1965, at 9:03 AM")\$> will not parse due to the word at. This method of constructing Date/Time values is less exact than specifying the individual components directly, and may yield incorrect results if the day appears before the month.

# [+] Day

Day

Description
Returns the numeric day component of a Date/Time (1 to 31).
Syntax
Day(DateTime)

# [+] Hour12

Hour12

**Description** Returns the numeric hour component of a Date/Time based on a 12-hour clock (1 to 12). **Syntax** Hour12(*DateTime*)

# [+] Hour24

### Hour24

**Description** Returns the numeric hour component of a Date/Time based on a 24-hour clock (0 to 23). **Syntax** Hour24(DateTime )

# [+] IsAm

### IsAm

### Description

Returns a Boolean indicating whether a specified Date/Time is AM (between midnight and noon). True indicates AM and False indicates PM. Syntax

IsAm(*DateTime* )

# [+] IsPm

```
IsPm
```

### Description

Returns a Boolean indicating whether a specified Date/Time is PM (between noon and midnight). True indicates PM and False indicates AM. **Syntax** IsPm(*DateTime*)

# [+] Minute

Minute

**Description** Returns the numeric minute component of a Date/Time (0-59). **Syntax** Minute(*DateTime*)

# [+] Month

### Month

**Description** Returns the numeric month component of a Date/Time (1-12) . **Syntax** Month(*DateTime* )

# [+] MonthName

### MonthName

**Description** Converts a month number or a Date/Time to a month name. **Syntax** MonthName(*Arg[, String]*)

### MonthName String

Argument	Description
First argument	If it is a numeric value (1 to 12 ), it is converted to the appropriate month name. If it is a Date/Time, the month number is extracted and converted.
Second argument	Optional. The locale that must be used to format the first argument. Some examples include: en_US for English (United States), en_GB for English (United Kingdom), and fr_FR for French (France). See See Values for fieldcode-format-locale Option for a complete list.

### Remarks

If the optional argument is omitted, first the E-mail Server fieldcode-format-locale option (See fieldcode-format-locale) in the email-processing section is used if present. Otherwise, the platform locale is used.

# [+] MonthNameShort

### MonthNameShort

#### Description

The same as the MonthName, but this returns an abbreviated version of the month name instead.

#### Syntax

MonthNameShort(Arg[, String])

### MonthNameShort String

Argument	Description
First argument	If it is a numeric value (1 to 12 ), it is converted to the appropriate abbreviated name. If it is a Date/Time, the month number is extracted and converted.
Second argument	Optional. The locale that must be used to format the first argument. Some examples include: en_US for English (United States), en_GB for English (United Kingdom), and fr_FR for French (France). See See Values for fieldcode-format-locale Option for a complete list.

#### Remarks

If the optional argument is omitted, first the E-mail Server fieldcode-format-locale option (See fieldcode-format-locale) in the email-processing section is used if present. Otherwise, the platform locale is used.

# [+] Second

### Second

**Description** Returns the numeric second component of a Date/Time (0–59). **Syntax** Second (*DateTime*)

# [+] Time

### Time

### Description

Returns a Date/Time constructed from individual time components. **Syntax** 

Time ([Hour, [Minute, [Second ]]])

#### Remarks

The date components of the result (year, month, and day) are set to the current system date. The optional arguments default to 0 if omitted. If all the optional arguments are omitted, then the time is set to the current system time.

# Important

The examples in the Examples of Time String table assume that the current system date is November 23, 2003, @ 09:03:10.

### Examples of Time String

Example	Result
<\$Time()\$>	2003-11-23 09:03:10
<\$Time(15)\$>	2003-11-23 15:00:00
<\$Time(15, 23, 10)\$>	2003-11-23 15:23:10

# [+] TimeGMT

### TimeGMT()

### Description

Returns a Date/Time set to the current system time and converted to GMT (Greenwich mean time), also called Universal Time Coordinated, or UTC. **Syntax** TimeGMT()

# [+] ToTimeZoneDate

### ToTimeZoneDate

Returns a Date/Time constructed from a string and a time zone. Syntax ToTimeZoneDate(DateString, TimeZoneString) Remarks This date is constructed by parsing the <DateString> string and using the specified time zone <TimeZoneString>. Examples include the following: <\$ToTimeZoneDate(Date("November 23, 1965 9:03 AM"), "America/Los Angeles")\$> <\$ToTimeZoneDate(Date("11/23/65 9:03:00"), "Europe/Paris")\$>

# [+] Weekday

Weekday

Description Returns the numeric weekday component of a Date/Time (0 =Sunday to 6 = Saturday). Syntax Weekday (DateTime)

# [+] WeekdayName

WeekdayName

#### Description

Converts a number of a Date/Time to a weekday name. **Svntax** WeekdayName(Arg[, String])

WeekdayName String

|- valign="top" | rowspan="1" colspan="1" | Argument | rowspan="1" colspan="1" | Description - valign="top" | rowspan="1" colspan="1" | First argument rowspan="1" colspan="1" | If it is a numeric value (0 to 6), it is converted to the appropriate weekday name. If it is a Date/Time, the weekday number is extracted and converted. |- valign="top" | rowspan="1" colspan="1" | Second argument rowspan="1" colspan="1" | Optional. The locale that must be used to format the first argument.

Some examples include: en US for English (United States), en GB for English (United Kingdom), andfr FR for French (France). See See Values for fieldcode-format-locale Option for a complete list. |} Remarks

If the optional argument is omitted, first the E-mail Server fieldcode-format-locale option (See fieldcode-format-locale) in the email-processing section is used if present. Otherwise, the platform locale is used.

# [+] WeekdayNameShort

WeekdayNameShort

### Description

The same as WeekdayName but this returns an abbreviated weekday name instead. **Syntax** WeekdayNameShort(Arg[, String])

### WeekdayNameShort String

```
|- valign="top" | rowspan="1" colspan="1" | Argument
```

| rowspan="1" colspan="1" | Description

- valign="top" | rowspan="1" colspan="1" | First argument

| rowspan="1" colspan="1" | If it is a numeric value (0 to 6), it is converted to the appropriate abbreviated weekday name. If it is a Date/Time, the weekday number is extracted and converted. |- valign="top" | rowspan="1" colspan="1" | Second argument

| rowspan="1" colspan="1" | Optional. The locale that must be used to format the first argument. Some examples include: en US for English (United States), en GB for English (United Kingdom), and fr FR for French (France). See See Values for fieldcode-format-locale Option for a complete list.

```
|} Remarks
```

If the optional argument is omitted, first the E-mail Server fieldcode-format-locale option (See fieldcode-format-locale) in the email-processing section is used if present. Otherwise, the platform locale is used.

# [+] Year

Year

```
Description
Returns the numeric year component of a Date/Time with the century.
Syntax
Year (DateTime)
```

# [+] YearShort

YearShort

Description Returns the numeric year component of a Date/Time without the century (0 - 99). **Syntax** YearShort (DateTime)

# Type Conversion

The Field Codes use the following type conversions:

Bool

### [+] Bool

### Description

Returns a Boolean converted from a number or a string. **Syntax** 

### Bool(Arg, [Default ])

Bool String	
Argument	Description
Arg	If a number, then converts 0 to False and nonzero to True. If a string, then converts Off, No, and False to False, and On, Yes, and True to True. If another string, then returns Default. If Default is omitted, then returns False.

### Remarks

### **Examples of Bool String**

Example	Result
<\$Bool(0)\$>	False
<\$Bool(25.23)\$>	True
<\$Bool("Yes")\$>	True
<\$Bool("off", True)\$>	False
<\$Bool("Asteroids")\$>	False
<\$Bool("Asteroids", True)\$>	True

### Num

### [+] Num

#### **Description** Returns a number converted from a string. **Syntax** Num (*String[, String]* )

### Num String

Argument	Description
First argument	The string to be converted. May be expressed in scientific

	notation. Returns $\theta$ if the string is not recognizable as a number. Ignores nonnumeric characters following the number.
Second argument	Optional. The locale that must be used to parse the first argument. Some examples include: en_US for English (United States), en_GB for English (United Kingdom), and fr_FR for French (France). See the Values for fieldcode-format-locale Option in the <i>eServices 8.1 Reference Manual</i> for a complete list.

### Remarks

If the optional argument is omitted, first the E-mail Server fieldcode-format-locale option (see option description in the *eServices 8.1 Reference Manual*) in the email-processing section is used if present. Otherwise, the platform locale is used.

For clarity, the results shown in the Examples of Num String table appear with three digits after the decimal point and always in the en\_US format. Default number formatting shows no digits after the decimal point. Use the Text function (see Field Codes in Standard Responses Reference: Text) or format operator (%) to override the default formatting.

Example	Result
<\$Num("10")\$>	10.000
<\$Num("10.00")\$>	10.000 (Assuming the locale is en_US. )
<\$Num("10,00", "fr_FR")\$>	10.000 (Note the comma-decimal separator in the first argument.)
<\$Num("12e-2")\$>	0.120
<\$Num("12.2e2Zork")\$>	1220.000 (Assuming the locale is en_US .)
<\$Num("12,2e2Zork", "fr_FR")\$>	1220.000 (Note the comma-decimal separator in the first argument.)
<\$Num("Zaxxon")\$>	0.000

### Examples of Num String

### Text

# [+] Text

Text

### Description

Returns a string converted from an argument of any data type. Use the format operator (:) as shorthand for this function. **Syntax** Text (*Arg[, Pattern[, String]]*) or Arg:Pattern

### Text String

Argument	Description
Arg	The value to be converted
Pattern	Optional. The picture string to use for formatting. If omitted, default formatting is used. The syntax of the picture string depends on the data type. See Number Formatting - "Number Formatting (Arg is a Number)" ).
String	Optional. The locale that must be used to parse the first argument. Some examples include: en_US for English (United States), en_GB for English (United Kingdom), and fr_FR for French (France). See Values for the fieldcode - format - locale Option in the <i>eServices 8.1 Reference Manual</i> for a complete list. If the optional argument is omitted, first the E-mail Server fieldcode - format - locale option in the email-processing section is used, if present. Otherwise, the platform locale is used.

# [+] Number Formatting

Number Formatting (Arg is a Number)

If Arg is a number, then the regular expression syntax of the optional pattern string is as follows:

#\*.?#\*

Where:

# -The pound sign (#) represents a digit. Any number of # s, including 0 may appear before the decimal character. Specify the minimum number of digits that should appear to the left of the decimal. If the integer part of the formatted number contains fewer than the specified number of digits, the number is padded with leading zeros. Any number of # s, including 0, may appear after the decimal character. Specify the precision of the fractional part of the number. The number is rounded to the specified precision.

Only the decimal separator in the result is locale dependent (There is no grouping separator).

The Examples of Number Formatting table contains some examples.

Pattern	Arg Value	Locale	Result
	0	en_US	"0"
	123.456	en_US	"123"
"#"	0	en_US	"0"
"##"	0	en_US	"00"
"##"	123.456	en_US	"123"
"#."	0	en_US	"0. "
"#."	123.456	en_US	"123. "
".##"	0	en_US	".00"
".##"	0.456	en_US	".46"
".##"	123.456	en_US	"123.46"
".##"	20000.456	en_US	"20000.46" (Note the decimal point separator in the result.)
".##"	123.456	fr_FR	"123,46" (Note the comma-decimal separator in the result.)
".##"	20000.456	fr_FR	"20000,46"

### Examples of Number Formatting

Pattern	Arg Value	Locale	Result
			(Note the comma-decimal separator in the result.)

# [+] Duration Formatting

Duration Formatting (Arg is a Number)

If Arg is a number, then the regular expression syntax of the optional pattern string is as follows:

(<dur>).?#\*

Where:

<dur> represents a duration and can be any of the sequences in the following list. (Upper- or lowercase letters are accepted.) HH

> <dur> may be followed by a .## string, which specifies the precision of the last element of the duration. Any C or % suffixes are ignored. When you format a value as a duration, the value is always assumed to be expressed in days.

The pound sign (#) represents a digit. Any number of # s, including 0, may appear before the decimal character and specify the minimum number of digits that should appear to the left of the decimal. If the integer part of the formatted number contains fewer than the specified number of digits, the number is padded with leading zeroes.

Any number of # s, including 0, may appear after the decimal character and specify the precision of the fractional part of the number. The number is rounded to the specified precision. The Examples of Duration Formatting table contains some examples.

Pattern	Arg Value	Locale	Result
"HH"	10.5083	en_US	"11"
"HH.## "	10.5083	en_US	"10.51"
"HH:MM"	10.5083	en_US	"10:30"
"HH:MM.# "	10.5083	en_US	"10:30.5"
"HH:MM:SS"	10.5083	en_US	"10:30:30"
"MM"	10.5083	en_US	"630"
"MM.## "	10.5083	en_US	"630.50"
"MM:SS"	10.5083	en_US	"630:30"
"SS"	10.5083	en_US	"37830"

### Examples of Duration Formatting

# [+] Currency Formatting

Currency Formatting (Arg is a Number)

If Arg is a number, then the regular expression syntax of the optional parameter string is as follows:

#\*.?#\*[Cc]

Where:

A C or a c means format as currency. The grouping separator, the decimal separator, and the currency sign in the result are locale dependent. The Examples of Currency Formatting table contains some examples

### Examples of Currency Formatting

Pattern	Arg Value	Locale	Result
"С"	12.34	en_US	"\$12.34"

Pattern	Arg Value	Locale	Result
"C"	-12.34	en_US	"(\$12.34)"
"#.#C"	12.34	en_US	"\$12.3"
"#.#C"	-12.34	en_US	"(\$12.3)"
"C"	12.34	en_GB	"£12.34 "
"C"	-12.34	en_GB	"-£12.34 "
"#.#C"	12.34	en_GB	"£12.3 "
"#.#C"	-12.34	en_GB	"-£12.3 "
".##C"	20000.456	en_US	"\$20,000.46" (Note the comma grouping separator and point decimal separator in the result.)
".##C"	20000.456	fr_FR	"20 000,46 €" (Note the decimal comma separator in the result.)

# [+] Percentage Formatting

Percentage Formatting (Arg is a Number)

If Arg is a number, then the regular expression syntax of the optional pattern string is as follows:

### #\*.?#\*%

Where:

The percent sign (%) means multiply by 100 and append the locale-dependent sign for percent values. If the % appears by itself, the formatter rounds to the nearest integral value and omits a decimal point (equivalent to the format #%).

The grouping separator, the decimal separator, and the percent sign in the result are locale dependent.

The Examples of Percentage Formatting table contains some examples.

Pattern	Arg Value	Locale	Result
"%"	0	en_US	"0%"
"%"	0.123456	en_US	"12%"
"#.##%"	0.123456	en_US	"12.35%"
"#.##%"	0.123456	fr_FR	"12,35%" (Note the comma-decimal separator in the result.)

# [+] Date/Time Formatting

### Date/Time Formatting

Use elements shown in the Date/Time Pattern Letters table to construct a Date/Time pattern string. The letters must be in uppercase or lowercase, as shown in the table (for example, MM not mm). Characters that are not picture elements, or that are enclosed in single quotation marks, will appear in the same location and unchanged in the output string.

### Date/Time Pattern Letters

Element	Meaning
d	Day of month as digits, with no leading zero for single-digit days
dd	Day of month as digits, with leading zero for single-digit days
ddd	Day of week as a three-letter abbreviation
dddd	Day of week as its full name
Μ	Month as digits, with no leading zero for single-digit months
ММ	Month as digits, with leading zero for single-digit months
МММ	Month as a three-letter abbreviation

Element	Meaning
ММММ	Month as its full name
у	Year as last two digits, but with no leading zero for years less than 10
уу	Year as last two digits, but with leading zero for years less than 10
уууу	Year represented by full four digits
h	Hours, with no leading zero for single-digit hours; 12-hour clock
hh	Hours, with leading zero for single-digit hours; 12-hour clock
н	Hours, with no leading zero for single-digit hours; 24-hour clock
нн	Hours, with leading zero for single-digit hours; 24-hour clock
m	Minutes, with no leading zero for single-digit minutes
mm	Minutes, with leading zero for single-digit minutes
s	Seconds, with no leading zero for single-digit seconds
SS	Seconds, with leading zero for single-digit seconds
tt	Time-marker string, such as AM or PM

The examples in the Examples of Date/Time Formatting table assume that the date being formatted is August 6, 2003, @ 15:05:10:

### Examples of Date/Time Formatting

Pattern	Locale	Result
"MMMM d, yyyy @ hh:mm:ss tt"	en_US	"August 6, 2003@03:05:10 PM"
"MMMM dd, yyyy @ HH:mm:ss"	en_US	"August 06, 2003@15:05:10"

Pattern	Locale	Result
"dd MMMM yyyy HH:mm:ss"	fr_FR	"06 aout 2003 15:05:10"
"MMM d, yy @ h:mm:ss tt"	en_US	"Aug 6, 03@3:05:10 PM"
"M/dd/yy"	en_US	"8/06/03"

# [+] Boolean Formatting

**Boolean Formatting** 

A Boolean picture string is simply two words separated by a comma. The first word is used if the Boolean value is True, and the second is used otherwise. The Examples of Boolean Formatting table shows some examples:

### Examples of Boolean Formatting

Field Code	Result
<\$Text(True, "Yup,Nope")\$>	"Yup"
<\$Text(False, "Si,No")\$>	"No"
<\$Text(False, "walnut,peach")\$>	"peach"

# [+] String Formatting

### String Formatting

Picture strings do not apply to string values. Strings are always output unchanged. If you want to output a piece of a string, or change the case, then you can use one of the string-manipulation functions previously described.

# Mathematical Functions

The Field Codes include the following mathematical functions:

Abs

# [+] Abs

Description Returns the absolute value of a number. Syntax Abs (*Number*) Remarks The *absolute* value of a number is the number without regard to its sign.

Ceil

# [+] Ceil

Description Returns the ceiling of a number. Syntax Ceil (Number ) Remarks The *ceiling* of a number is the smallest integer that is greater than or equal to that number.

Floor

# [+] Floor

Description Returns the floor of a number. Syntax Floor (*Number*) Remarks The *floor* of a number is the largest integer that is less than or equal to that number.

# Miscellaneous Functions

The Field Codes include the following miscellaneous functions:

lf

# [+] If

### Description

Returns either the second or the third argument, depending on the value of the first (Boolean) argument. Syntax If (Boolean, TrueResult, FalseResult)

IsBoolean

### [+] IsBoolean

### Description

Returns True if the data type of the argument is Boolean; otherwise, it returns False. **Syntax** IsBoolean (*Arg*)

IsDateTime

### [+] IsDateTime

### Description

Returns True if the data type of the argument is Date/Time, and False otherwise. **Syntax** IsDateTime (*Arg* )

IsNumber

# [+] IsNumber

#### **Description** Returns True if the data type of the argument is number, and False otherwise. **Syntax** IsNumber (*Arg* )

### IsString

### [+] IsString

#### **Description** Returns True if the data type of the argument is string, and False otherwise. **Syntax** IsString (*Arg* )

Туре

# [+] Type

### Description

Returns the type name (String, Boolean, and so on) of its argument. **Syntax** Type (*Arg*)

# Objects

The following objects can be accessed through Field Codes:

- Agent Object
- Contact Object
- Interaction Object

# Agent Object

The Agent object is associated with the Interaction object. For an automated reply, this object is the agent whose login name equals the E-mail Server autobot-agent-login-name option (see option description in the *eServices Reference Manual*) in its email-processing section.

### FirstName

# [+] FirstName

Description

Returns this agent's first name.

Syntax

Agent.FirstName

### LastName

# [+] LastName

Description

Returns this agent's last name.

Syntax

Agent.LastName

FullName

# [+] FullName

Description

Returns this agent's full name (first and last).

Syntax

Agent.FullName

Signature

# [+] Signature

Description

Returns this agent's signature.

Syntax

Agent.Signature

# Contact Object

The Contact object is associated with the current EmailIn interaction. The properties include:

Id

# [+] Id

Description

Returns this contact's ID.

Syntax

Contact.Id

### FirstName

### [+] FirstName

Description

Returns this contact's first name.

Syntax

Contact.FirstName

LastName

### [+] Lastname

Description

Returns this contact's last name.

Syntax

Contact.LastName

FullName

### [+] FullName

Description

Returns this contact's full name (first and last).

Syntax

Contact.FullName

Title

# [+] Title

Description

This contact's title (for example, Mr., Ms., and so on).

Syntax

Contact.Title

PrimaryEmailAddress

# [+] PrimaryEmailAddress

Description

Returns this contact's primary e-mail address.

Syntax

Contact.PrimaryEmailAddress

PrimaryPhoneNumber

# [+] PrimaryPhoneNumber

Description

Returns this contact's primary phone number.

Syntax

Contact.PrimaryPhoneNumber

# Interaction Object

The Interaction object is the currently processed interaction that is built from a standard response and includes Field Codes.

- For Acknowledgement, Redirect, Autoresponse, Chat Transcript, Forward, and Reply From External Resource strategy objects, this Interaction object handles EmailIn.
- For the Send object, which only supports Field Codes for this Subject, this Interaction object handles EmailOut.
- This distinction affects the the FromAddress and ToAddresses properties.

The properties for this object include:

Id

# [+] Id

Description

Returns the Interaction's ID.

Syntax

Interaction.Id

DateCreated

# [+] DateCreated

Description

Returns the Date/Time at which this Interaction was created in the system.

Syntax

Interaction.DateCreated

Subject

# [+] Subject

Description

Returns the Subject of this Interaction.

Syntax

Interaction.Subject

ToAddress

# [+] ToAddress

Description

Returns the recipient (To field) of this Interaction.

Syntax

Interaction.ToAddress

### Important

For the Send strategy object, this syntax translates into the current EmailOut.ToAddresses. For the Acknowledgement, Redirect, Autoresponse, Chat Transcript, Forward, and Reply From External Resource strategy objects, this translates into the current EmailIn.ToAddresses.

FromAddress

# [+] FromAddress

Description

Returns the originator (From field) of this Interaction.

Syntax

Interaction.FromAddress

### Important

For the Send strategy object, this syntax translates into the current EmailOut.ToAddresses. For the Acknowledgement, Redirect, Autoresponse, Chat Transcript, Forward, and Reply From External Resource strategy objects, this translates into the current EmailIn.FromAddresses.

AttachedData

# [+] AttachedData

Description

Returns the attached data (Interaction Attribute ) value associated with a specified key. The value can be either a string or a number.

Syntax

Interaction.AttachedData ("Key")

Example

```
Interaction.AttachedData ("ParentId")
Interaction.AttachedData ("Language")
```

TimeZone

# [+] TimeZone

Description

Returns the time zone of the parent interaction (Interaction in general). The value is a string formatted as "GMT", "GMT+"hh.mm, or "GMT-"hh.mm.

Syntax

Interaction.TimeZone.

Examples

GMT+01.00 indicates a Paris time zone.

GMT-04.00 indicates a Canada east coast (Maritimes) time zone.

GMT-05.00 indicates an eastern U.S./Canada time zone.